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NOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERS

NOTICE is hereby given that the 30" Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company
will be held on Monday the 7" December, 2020 at 11.30 AM through Video Conferencing (VC) /
Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) to transact the business set out in the agenda given below:

You are requested to make it convenient to aftend the meeting.

AGENDA

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company both
Standalone and Consolidated for the financial year ended 31" March, 2020, the reports of the
Board of Directors” and the Auditors thereon;

To appoint a Director in the place of Sri SV Arumugam, (DIN 00002458) who retires by rotation and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

APPOINTMENT OF SMT S SIHAMANI AS AN INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR FOR A FURTHER TERM OF FIVE
YEARS:

RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 1580, 152 and any other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule IV to the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 (1)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Smt S Sihamani (DIN 06945399), in respect of whom the Company
has received a notice in writing from a member proposing her candidature for the office of
Director, who'is eligible for appointment, be and is hereby reappointed as an Independent Director
of the Company to hold office for second term of five consecutive years, from 28.9.2020 to
27.9.2025 and whose office shallnot be liable to retire by rotation.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

APPROVAL OF PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION TO COST AUDITOR:

RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and pursuant to
the recommendation of Audit Committee, the remuneration of Rs.1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh
only) (besides reimbursement of out of pocket expenses incurred by him for the purpose of Audit)
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payable to SriM Nagarajan, Cost Auditor (Firm Registration No. 102133), as approved by the Board
of Directors for conducting the audit of the Cost Records of the Company for the Financial Year
ending 31" March, 2021 be and is hereby ratified and confirmed.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

SUB-DIVISION OF FACE VALUE OF EQUITY SHARES INTO SMALLER AMOUNT:

RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of section 13, 14, 61, 64 and all other applicable provisions,
if any of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder including the statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force and the relevant provisions of
the Articles of Association of the Company and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 issued by the Securities Exchange
Board of India (SEBI) and the other Rules, Regulations, Circulars, Noftifications, etc. issued there
under, consent of the Shareholders of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the sub-division
of 1 (one) Equity Share of face value of Rs.10/- (ten) each fully paid up into Equity Shares of Rs.5/-
(five) each fully paid up, resulting in issuance of 2 (two) Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- (five) each fully paid
up, thereby keeping the paid up capitalintact.

RESOLVED FURTHER that pursuant to sub-division of the equity shares of the Company, nominal
value of Rs.10/- of all the issued, subscribed and paid-up equity shares of the Company existing on
the Record Date to be fixed by the Board shall stand sub-divided intfo equity shares of nominal
value of Rs.5/- each fully paid.

RESOLVED FURTHER that upon sub-division of equity shares, as aforesaid, the existing share
certificate(s) in relation to the existing equity shares of the nominal value of Rs.10/- each held in
physical form shall be deemed to have been automatically cancelled and be of no effect on and
fromthe "Record Date” to be fixed by the Boad and Company may without requiring the surrender
of existing share certificate(s) directly issue and dispatch the new share certificate(s) of the
Company, in lieu thereof, subject to the provisions of the Companies (Share Capital and
Debentures) Rules, 2014 and in the case of members who hold the equity shares / opt to receive the
sub-divided equity shares in dematerialized form, the subdivided equity shares of nominal value of
Rs.5/- (Rupee Five only) each shall be credited to the respective beneficiary account of the
members with their respective depository participants and the Company shall undertake such
Corporate Action(s) as may be necessary in relation to the existing equity shares of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized on
behalf of the Company to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be required or considered
necessary orincidental thereto.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

RECLASSIFICATION AND INCREASE OF AUTHORJISED SHARE CAPITAL AND ALTERATION IN THE CAPITAL
CLAUSE OF THE MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION OF THE COMPANY:

RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section 4, 13, 61 and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), including any amendment thereto or
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re-enactment thereof and the rules framed there under, the Approval of the Members of the
Company be and is hereby accorded to reclassify and increase the Authorised Share Capital of
the Company from existing Rs.16,50,00,000/- (Rupees Sixteen Crores Fifty Lakhs only) divided into
1,60,00,000 (One Crore Sixty) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten only) each and 50,000 (Fifty
thousand) Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- (Rupees Hundred only) each to
Rs.50,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty Crore Only) divided into 10,00,00,000 (Ten crore) Equity Shares of
Rs.5/- (Rupee Five only) each.

RESOLVED FURTHER that the Memorandum of Associafion of the Company be altered in the
following manner: i.e., existing Clause V of the Memorandum of Association be deleted and the
same be substituted with the following new clause as Clause V:

The authorized share capital of the Company is Rs.50,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty Crore Only) divided
into 10,00,00,000 (Ten Crore) Equity Shares of Rs.5/- (Rupee Five only) each.

RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board of Directors of the Company (“the Board”) be and is hereby
authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed necessary and
expedient to give effect to the aforesaid resolution.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

ADOPTION OF NEW SET OF ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section 14, 15 and any other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014
(including any staftutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the fime being in force),
approval of the members be and is hereby accorded for the adoption of new set of Articles of
Association, a copy of which is placed before the meeting duly initialed by the Chairman for the
purpose of identification be and are hereby adopted as the Articles of Association of the
Company to the entire exclusion of all the previous Articles.

RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board of Directors be and are hereby severally authorised to do all such
acts, deeds, matters and things and execute all such documents, instruments and writings as may
be required and to delegate all or any of the powers herein vested in them to any person to give
effect of this decision.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

FURTHER ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES ON RIGHTS BASIS

RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section 62 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Share capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, the
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Company and Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 as
amended from time to time ("SEBI ICDR Regulations”), Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time
("SEBI LODR Regulations”), subject to the approvals and consents as may be necessary from
Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI”), Reserve Bank of India (*RBI”), Stock Exchanges and
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any other competent authority, the Approval of the shareholders of the Company be andis hereby
granted to the Board of Directors to create, offer, issue and allot equity shares ranking pari-passu
with the existing equity shares of the Company (the Equity Shares) on rights basis ("Rights Issue”) to
the shareholders of the Company at such price and rights entitlement ratio as may be decided by
the Board or Committee of the Board formed for this purpose, including granting of rights to the
Eligible Equity Shareholders to whom the offer is made to renounce the Equity shares being so
offered to them in favour of any other person(s), rights to the persons to whom the Equity Shares are
being issued to apply for additional Equity Shares and to decide, at its discretion, subject to
applicable laws, the proportion in which such additional Equity Shares shall be allotted, upto an
amount not exceeding Rs.100/- crore (Rupees One Hundred Crore Only) on such terms and
conditions as may be finalized by the Board or any Committee of the Board in consultation with the
Merchant Bankers, and that the Board may finalize all the matters incidental thereto as it may in its
sole discretion thinks fit and to list the equity shares so issued and allotted on the stock exchange on
which shares of company are listed, in a manner as may be decided by the Board from time to
fime.

RESOLVED FURTHER that the Equity Shares that are offered pursuant to the Issue but are not
subscribed to may be disposed of by the Board to such person(s) and in such manner and on such
terms as the Board in its absolute discretion may deem not disadvantageous to the shareholders
and to the Company, including offering or placing such Equity Shares with promoters and/or
promoter group/ banks/ financial institutions/ investment institutions/ mutual funds/ foreign
institutional investors/ bodies corporate/ underwriters or such other person(s) as the Board may,
subject to applicable law, inits absolute discretion deem fit and decide.

RESOLVED FURTHER that all the new equity shares as aforesaid to be issued and allotted in the
manner aforesaid shall be subject to the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company and shall rank pari-passu inter-se in all respects with the existing equity shares of the

Company.
By Order of the Board
S V ARUMUGAM
Coimbatore Chairman & Managing Director
15" September, 2020 DIN 00002458



STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

ITEM3
APPOINTMENT OF SMT S SIHAMANI AS AN INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR FOR A FURTHER TERM OF FIVE YEARS

Smt S Sihamani is a Non-Executive Independent Director (Woman Director) of the Company. She joined the
Board of Directors of the Company on 1.9.2014. She engaged in social welfare activities for the past 15 years.
She does not hold by herself or for any other person on a beneficial basis, any shares in the Company. In terms
of Section 149, 150 and 152 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Smt S Sihamani, is
proposed to be reappointed as an Independent Director for second term of five consecutive years from
28.9.202010 27.9.2025. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has also recommended the proposed
re-appointment at its meeting held on 15.9.2020.

Inthe opinion of the Board, Smt S Sihamani fulfills the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 andrules
made thereunder for her appointment as an Independent Director of the Company and is independent of
the management. Copy of the draft letter of appointment of Smt S Sihamani as an Independent Director
sefting out the terms and conditions would be available for inspection without any fee by the members at the
Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours on any working day.

The Board considers that her continued association would be of benefit to the Company and it is desirable to
continue to avail services of Smt S Sihamani as an Independent Director.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the Special Resolution in relation to appointment of Smt S Sihamani as
an Independent Director, for approval by the shareholders of the Company. Based on recommendation by
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee the Company has received a notice Under Section 160 from a
member proposing her candidature for being appointed as an Independent Director.

Except Smt S Sihamani, being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at
[tfemNo. 3.

ITEM 4
APPROVAL OF PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION TO COST AUDITOR

The Board of Directors of the Company on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, approved the
appointment and remuneration of Sri M Nagarajan, Cost Auditor to conduct the audit of the Cost records of
the Company for the financial year ending 319 March, 2021,

In ferms of the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor is to be ratified by the
members of the Company. Accordingly, the members are requested to ratify the remuneration payable to
the Cost Auditor for the financial year ending 31" March 2021, as set out in the resolution.

The Board of Directors recommend the Ordinary Resolution as set out in this item of the Notice for approval of
members.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No 4.

ITEM5
SUB-DIVISION OF SHARE CAPITAL INTO SMALLER AMOUNT

The Equity Shares of your Company are listed and traded on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited
(NSE) and the BSE Limited (BSE). With a view to have more participation from the investors in the trading of the
scrip andin order to increase the liquidity and make the equity shares of the Company more affordable to the
small investors, the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 13.8.2020 has recommended
sub-division of 1 (one) Equity Share of face value of Rs. 10/- (tfen) each fully paid up into 2 (two) Equity Share of
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Rs.5/- (five) each fully paid up, resulting in issuance of 2 (two) Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- (five) each fully paid up,
thereby keeping the paid up capitalintact.

The recommended sub-division of equity shares requires approval of the Shareholders by way of Special
resolution.

The draft of revised Memorandum of Association and the Article of Association of the Company, reflecting
the said changes are available for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company on alll
working days.

The consent of the members is sought for sub-division of equity shares of the Company into smaller
denomination and consequently o amend the Memorandum of Association and the Article of Association
through proposed Special Resolution.

The Record Date for the aforesaid sub-division of the Equity Shares will be fixed after approval of the Members
is obtained.

The Board of Directors accordingly recommends passing of the proposed resolution in item No. 5 as Special
Resolution.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company including their relatives are interested or
concernedin the aforesaid Resolution except to the extent of their shareholding. if any, inthe Company.

ITEM 6

RECLASSIFICATION AND INCREASE OF AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL AND ALTERATION IN THE CAPITAL CLAUSE OF
THE MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION OF THE COMPANY

The present Authorised Capital of the Company is Rs.16,50,00,000/- (Rupees Sixteen Crores Fifty Lakhs only)
divided intfo 1,60,00,000 (One Crore Sixty) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten only) each and 50,000
(Fifty thousand) Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs.100/- (Rupees Hundred only) each. The
Company proposes to reclassify and increase its authorized share capital tfo Rs.50,00,00,000/-
(Rupees Fifty Crores only) to facilitate any fund raising in future viarights issue of equity shares of the company.

Such reclassification and increase in the Authorised Share Capital of the Company will also require
consequentialamendment in the Clause 5 of the Memorandum of Association of the Company.

Under Section 13 and 61 the Companies Act, 2013, alteration of the Capital Clause requires approval of the
members of the Company by way of passing a Special Resolution to that effect.

The Directors recommend the Resolution set out in the Notice in the item No.6 for the approval of the
Members.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company including their relatives are interested or
concernedinthe aforesaid Resolution except to the extent of their shareholding, if any, in the Company.

ITEM7
ADOPTION OF NEW SET OF ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

The existing Articles of Association (AOA) are based on the Companies Act, 1956 and several regulations in
the existing AOA contain references 1o specific sections of the Companies Act, 1956 and some regulations in
the existing AOA are no longer in conformity with the Companies Act,2013.

Considering the same, the Board of Directors at their meeting held on September 15, 2020 proposed to adopt
anew set of Articles of Association (AOA) in place of and to the exclusion of existing Articles of Association of
the Company.

The new AOA to be substituted in place of the existing Articles of Association are based on “Table-F” of the
Companies Act, 2013, which sets out the model Articles of Association for a company limited by shares.

Pursuant to Section 14 of the Act, the consent of the Members by way of Special Resolution is required for
alteration of AOA of the Company.



The Board recommends the Special Resolution set forth in Item No.7 of the Notice for approval of the
Members. The proposed new draft AOA is being uploaded on the Company’s website for perusal by the
Members. Further, a copy of the proposed set of new AOA of the Company would be available forinspection
for the Members at the Registered Office/Corporate Office of the Company during the office hours on any
working day, except Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays, between 11.00 a.m. and 5.00 p.m. fill the date of
AGM. The aforesaid documents are also available forinspection atthe AGM.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company including their relatives are interested or
concernedinthe aforesaid Resolution except to the extent of their shareholding, if any, in the Company.

ITEM 8
FURTHER ISSUE OF SHARES ON RIGHTS BASIS

The Company proposes to create, offer and issue fresh equity shares of the Company up to an aggregate
value of Rs.100/- Crore (Rupees One hundred Crore) on such terms, in such manner, at such time and at such
price or prices and as may be decided by the Board of Directors of the Company in accordance with
applicable laws, including Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended from time to time (“"SEBI ICDR Regulations”), through issue of
Equity Shares to the shareholders of the company on Rights basis, as permitted under the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, 2018 as amended from fime to time and other applicable laws. The Equity Shares allofted shall
rankin all respects pari-passu with the existing Equity Shares.

Issue Price, rights ratio etc.,:

The price at which the Equity Shares will be allotted through the Rights Issue and the ratio / entitlement of each
of the shareholders for the Rights Issue shall be determined and finalized by the Board in consultation with the
lead manager in accordance with the SEBIICDR Regulations, 2018 as amended from time to time.

The object(s) of the Rights Issue

The proceeds of the Rights Issue are to be ufilized for the purposes that shall be disclosed in the Draft Letter of
Offer and the Letter of Offer to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Board of India and the Stock
Exchanges in connection with the Rights Issue, including repayment / pre-payment of loans availed from
Institutions / Banks and for general corporate purposes.

The Board has the authority to modify the above objects on the basis of the requirements of the Company.

The Board recommends the resolution for your approval. Additionally, to the extent the above requires
amendments to be made in tferms of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s)
or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force, the *Companies Act, 2013"), the SEBI ICDR) Regulations,
2009 as amended from fime to fime, any other law or if recommended by various advisors to the Company in
connection with the Rights Issue, the Board will make necessary amendments.

The Board of Directors of your Company have approved this item in the Board Meeting held on 13.8.2020 and
have recommended the Resolution as set out in the accompanying Notice for the approval of members of
the Company as a Special Resolution.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company including their relatives are interested
or concerned inthe aforesaid Resolution except to the extent of their shareholding, if any, in the Company.

By Order of the Board

SV ARUMUGAM
Coimbatore Chairman & Managing Director
15" September, 2020 DIN 00002458



Information pursuant to 1.2.5 of the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (§5-2) and in terms of
Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 regarding

Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment

Name Sri SV Arumugam
Age 71 Years
Qualification B.Sc., ACA

Experience

He has more than 35 years of experience in
Textile Industry

Terms and conditions of appointment or
re-appointment

Terms of Appointment for 5 years with effect
from 27.6.2018 to 26.6.2023

Last drawn remuneration

Rs. 60.40 Lakhs

Date of first appointment on the Board 16.5.1993
No.of shares held 168017
Relationship with Directors, Managers and KMP NIL

No. of Board Meetings attended during 2019-20

6 out of 6 meetings held.

Other Directorship

Bannari Amman Flour Mill Private Limited
Sakthi Murugan Transports Private Limited
Abirami Amman Designs Private Limited
Accel Apparels Private Limited
Anamallais Agencies Private Limited
Anamallais Automobiles Private Limited
Anamallais Motors Private Limited
Bannari Amman Logistics Private Limited
Bannari Amman Properties Private Limited
Bannari Amman Retails Private Limited
Bannari Amman Trendz Private Limited
Murugan Enterprise Private Limited
Senthil Infrastructure Private Limited
Young Brand Apparel Private Limited

State Industries Promotion Corporation of
Tamilnadu Limited

Member of Committee

Stakeholders Relationship Committee - Member

Chairman/Member of the Committees of the
Boards of other Companies

State Industries Promotion Corporation of
Tamilnadu Limited

Audit Committee - Member

Except Sri SV Arumugam, being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company and theirrelativesis concerned orinterested.




Name Smt S Sihamani

Age 67 Years
Qualification B.A.
Experience Engaged in social welfare activities for the past

15 years

Terms and conditions of appointment or
re-appointment

First term of 5 consecutive years from 28.9.2015
t0 27.9.2020. Now proposal for second term of
appointment for 5 consecutive years from

28.9.2020 to 27.9.2025
Last drawn remuneration Nil
Date of first appointment on the Board 1.9.2014
No.of shares held Nil
Relationship with Directors, Managers and KMP Nil

No. of Board Meetings attended during 2019-20

6 out of 6 meetings held.

Other Directorship Nil
Member of Committee Nil
Chairman/Memiber of the Committees of the Nil

Boards of other Companies

Except Smt S Sihamani, being an appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company and their relatives is concerned or interested.

By Order of the Board

SV ARUMUGAM
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN 00002458

Coimbatore
15" September, 2020



Notes:

1.

10.

1.

In view of continuing Covid-19 pandemic, Minisiry of Corporate Affairs Circular Ref. Nos: 14/2020
dated April 8, 2020, 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020 and SEBI Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020 (permitted the holding of Annual General
Meeting through VC/OAVM without the physical presence of the members at the common Venue.
In compliance with these MCA Circulars and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 the Annual
General Meeting of the members of the Company is being held through VC/OAVM.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the
Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the
proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA
Circulars through VC/OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with.
Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the
Annual General Meeting and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to the
Notice.

Institutional/Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals/HUF, NRI, etc) are request to send a
scanned copy (PDF/JPEG Format) of its Board Resolution or governing body Resolution /
Authorisation etfc., authorising its representative to attend the Annual General Meeting through
VC/OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote e-voting. The said Resolution / Authorization
shall be sent to the Scrutinizer by e-mail through their registered e-mail address to
sharpcs1@gmail.com with copies marked to the Company at shares@bannarimills.com and to its
RTA at coimbatore@linkintime.co.in.

Members are requested to submit the questions in advance on the e-mail address
shares@bannarimills.com.

As per MCA General Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020 dispatching of physical copies of the
financial statements (including Board’s Report, Auditor’s Report or other documents required to be
attached therewith), such statements shall be sent only by e-mail to the members and hence
sending of Annual Report by physicalmode has been dispensed with.

The members attending the meeting through VC / OAVM shall be reckoned for the purpose of
Quorum as stipulated under Section 103 of the Companies Act,2013.

Allthe resolutions will be passed through the facility of e-voting system only.

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, which sets out
details relating to Special Business in respect of items starting from 3 to 8 of the Agenda are
annexed hereto.

Previous year figures are given in brackets for the purpose of comparison.

Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall
e open forinspection through electronic mode only.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act, read with Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations

10



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Company is pleased to offer the facility of
voting through electronic means, as an alternate, to all its Members to enable them to cast their
votes electronically instead of casting their vote at a meeting. Please note that the voting through
electronic meansis optional forthe members.

The voting through electronic means will commence on 4" December, 2020 at 10.00 A.M and will
end on 6" December, 2020 at 5.00 P.M. The Members will not be able to cast their vote
electronically beyond the date and time menfioned above and the e-voting system shall be
disabled for voting thereafter. The persons those who are holding shares as on the cut-off date of
30" November, 2020 are only eligible to cast their e-voting.

Registration of email ID and Bank Account details:

In case the shareholder’s e-mail ID is already registered with the Company/its Registrar & Share
Transfer Agent "RTA”/ Depositories, log in details for e-voting are being sent on the registered email
address.

In case the shareholder has not registered his/her/their e-mail address with the Company/its
RTA/Depositories and or not updated the Bank Account mandate the following instructions to be
followed:

i) Shareholders holding shares in physical mode are requested to communicate their change of
postal address (enclose copy of Aadhar Card), e-mail address if any, self-attested copy of PAN
Card and bank account details (enclose cancelled cheque leaf) quoting their folio nos. to the
Registrar and Share Transfer Agents M/s. Link Infime India Private Limited, Surya, 35 Mayflower
Avenue, Behind Senthil Nagar, Sowripalayam Road, Coimbatore - 641028.

i) Inthe case of Shares heldin Demat mode:

The shareholder may please contact the Depository Participant ("DP”) and register the e-maiil
address and bank account details in the demat account as per the process followed and
advised by the DP.

The Noftice of the Annual General Meeting along with the Annual Report for the financial year
2019-20 is being sent only by electronic mode to those Memibers whose email addresses are
registered with the Company/Depositories in accordance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and
circular issued by SEBI dated May 12, 2020. Members may note that the Notice of Annual General
Meeting and Annual Report for the financial year 2019-20 will also be available on the Company’s
website www.lbannarimills.com; welbsites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. National Stock Exchange of
India Ltd and BSE Limited at www.nseindia.com and www.bseindia.com respectively. Members
can attend and participate in the Annual General Meeting through VC/OAVM facility only.

Members attending the meeting through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purposes of
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act,2013.

The Company has appointed Sri R Dhanasekaran, Practicing Company Secretary, to act as the
Scrutinizer for conducting the voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

Instructions for e-voting andjoining the Annual General Meeting are as follows:
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18. Instructions for shareholders to vote electronically:

R
0‘0

Log-intfo e-Voting website of Link Intime India Private Limited (LIIPL)

1.

Visit the e-voting system of LIPL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in.

Click on "Login” tab, available under ‘Shareholders’ section.

Enter your User ID, password and image verification code (CAPTCHA) as shown on the screen
and click on “*SUBMIT”.

Your User ID details are given below:

a. Shareholders holding shares in demat account with NSDL : Your User ID is 8 Character
DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID.

b. Shareholders holding shares in demat account with CDSL : Your User ID is 16 Digit
Beneficiary ID.

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form (i.e. Share Certificate): Your User ID is
Event No + Folio Number registered with the Company.

Your Password details are given below:

If you are using e-Voting system of LIIPL: https://instavote.linkintfime.co.in for the first time or if
you are holding shares in physical form, you needto follow the steps given below:

Click on "Sign Up” tab available under ‘Shareholders’ section register your details and set the
password of your choice and confirm (The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at
least one special character, at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one
capitallletter).

For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form or Physical Form

Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department

PAN
(applicable forboth demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders).

Members who have not updated their PAN with depository Participant orin
the company record are requested to use the sequence number which is
shared to the members.

Enter the DOB (Date of Birth)/ DOI as recorded with depository participant
DOB/ DO or in the company record for the said demat account or folio number in
dd/mm/yyyy format.

Bank Enter the Bank Account number (Last Four Digits) as recorded in your
Account demat account or in the company records for the said demat account or
Number folionumber.

Please enter the DOB/ DOI or Bank Account number in order to register. If
the above mentioned details are not recorded with the depository
participants or company, please enter Folio number in the Bank Account
number field as mentioned in instruction (iv-c).

12



If you are holding shares in demat form and had registered on to e-Voting system of LIIPL:
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in, and/or voted on an earlier voting of any company then you
can use your existing password to login.

If Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form or Physical Form have forgotten password:

EnterUser D, select Mode and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA). Click on "SUBMIT”.

Incase shareholder is having valid email address, Password will be sent to the shareholders
registered e-mail address. Else, shareholder can set the password of his/her choice by providing the
information about the particulars of the Security Question & Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI, Dividend Bank
Details etc. and confirm. (The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special
character, atleast one numeral, atleast one alphabet and at least one capital letter)

NOTE: The password is to be used by Demat shareholders for voting on the resolutions placed by

10.

11.

the company in which they are a shareholder and eligible to vote, provided that the
company opts for e-voting platform of LIIPL.

For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for voting on
the resolutions contained in this Notice.

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take
utmost care to keep your password confidential.

Cast your vote electronically

After successful login, you will be able to see the notification for e-voting on the home page of
INSTA Vote. Select/ View "Event No” of the company, you choose to vote.

On the voting page, you will see “"Resolution Description” and against the same the option
"Favour/ Against” for voting.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate optioni.e. Favour/Against as desired.

Enter the number of shares (which represents no. of votes) as on the cut-off date under
‘Favour/Against’. You may also choose the option “Abstain’ and the shares held will not be
counted under ‘'Favour/Against’.

If you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click on the "View Resolutions’ File Link.

After selecting the appropriate optioni.e. Favour/Against as desired and you have decided to
vote, click on "SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote,
clickon “YES”, else to change your vote, click on "NO” and accordingly modify your vote,

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change your
vote subsequently.

You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on "Print” option on the
Voting page.

General Guidelines for shareholders:

e Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are
required to log on to e-Voting system of LIIPL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and register
themselves as ’Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’.
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They are also required to upload a scanned certified true copy of the board resolution
/authority letter/power of attorney etc. fogether with attested specimen signature of the
duly authorised representative(s) in PDF formatin the ’"Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate
Body’ login for the Scrutinizer to verify the same.

e During the voting period, shareholders can login any number of time till they have voted
onthe resolution(s) for a particular “Event”.

e Shareholders holding multiple folios/demat account shall choose the voting process
separately for each of the folios/demat account.

In case the shareholders have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, please refer the
Frequently Asked Questions ("FAQs”) and Instavote e-Voting manual available at
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in, under Help section or write an e-mail tfo
enotices@linkintime.co.inor Callus:-Tel: 022 - 49186000.

Instructions for Shareholders/Members to Attend the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet:

D

Instructions for Shareholders/Members to attend the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet
(VC/OAVM) are asunder:

Shareholders/Members are entitled to afttend the Annual General Meeting through VC/OAVM
provided by Link Intime by following the below mentioned process. Facility for joining the Annuall
General Meeting through VC/OAVM shall open 30 minutes before the time scheduled for the
Annual General Meeting and will be available to the Members on first come first serve basis.

Shareholders/Members are requested to participate on first come first serve basis as participation
through VC/OAVM is limited and will be closed on expiry of 15 (fiffeen) minutes from the scheduled
tfime of the Annual General Meeting. Shareholders/Members with >2% shareholding, Promoters,
Institutional Investors, Directors, KMPs, Chair Persons of Audit Committee, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee and Auditors etc. may be
allowed to the meeting without restrictions of first-come-first serve basis. Members can log in and
join 30 (thirty) minutes prior fo the schedule time of the meeting and window for joining shall be kept
open fill the expiry of 15 (fiffeen) minutes after the schedule time. Participation is restricted upto
1000 members only.

Shareholders/ Members will be provided with InstaMeet facility wherein Shareholders/ Member
shallregister their details and attend the Annual General Meeting as under:

1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL for InstaMeet<<https://instameet.
linkintime.co.in>> and register with your following details:

a. DP ID / Client ID or Beneficiary ID or Folio No.: Enter your 16 digit DP ID / Client ID or
Beneficiary ID or Folio Number registered with the Company

b. PAN: Enter your 10 digit Permanent Account Number (PAN). (Members who have not
updated their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/Company shall use the sequence
number provided to you).

c. Mobile No. Enteryour Mobile No.

d. EmaillD

14



2. Click *GotoMeeting”InstaMeet Support Desk
Link Intime India Private Limited

Instructions for Shareholders/Members to register themselves as Speakers during Annual General
Meeting:

Shareholders/Members who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may
register themselves as a speaker by sending their request mentioning their name, demat account
number/folio number, e-mail id, mobile number and PAN at (shares@bannarimills.com) from
3“December, 2020 at 10.00 A.M (Date & Time) to 5" December, 2020 at 5.00 P.M (Date & Time).

The first 10 Speakers on first come basis will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions
during the meeting.

Shareholders/ Members, who would like to ask questions, may send their questions in advance
mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, e-mail id, mobile number at
(shares@bannarimills.com). The same will be replied by the company suitably.

Note:

Those shareholders/members who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to
express their views/ask questions during the meeting. The Company reserves the right to restrict the
number of speakers depending on the availability of time for the Annual General Meeting.

Shareholders/ Members should allow to use camera and are required 1o use Internet with a good
speed (preferably 2 MBPS download stream) to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

Instructions for Shareholders/Members to Vote during the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet:

Once the electronic voting is activated by the scrutiniser during the meeting, shareholders/
members who have not exercised their vote through the remote e-voting can cast the vote as
under:

1. Onthe Shareholders VC page, click on the link for e-Voting “Cast your vote”.

2. Enter Demat Account No. / Folio No. and OTP (received on the registered mobile number/
registered e-mail Id) received during registration for InstaMeet and click on “Submit’.

3. After successful login, you will see "Resolution Description” and against the same the option
"Favour/ Against” for voting.

4. Castyourvote by selecting appropriate optioni.e. “Favour/Against” as desired.

Enter the number of shares (which represents no. of votes) as on the cut-off date under
‘Favour/Against’.

5. Afterselecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour/Against as desired and you have decided to
vote, click on “Save”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote,
click on "Confirm”, else to change your vote, click on “Back” and accordingly modify your
vote.

15



6.  Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change your
vote subsequently.

Note:

Shareholders/ Members, who will be present in the Annual General Meeting through Insta
Meet facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting
and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting
facility during the meeting.

Shareholders/Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting prior to the Annual
General Meeting will be eligible to attend/participate in the Annual General Meeting
through InstaMeet. However, they will not be eligible to vote again during the meeting.

In case the shareholders/members have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you can
write an emailto instameet@linkintime.co.in or Call us: -Tel : (022-49186175 )

Since, the AGM is held through VC/OAVM, the Route Map of the Venue is not annexed with
this notice.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 30" Annual Report together with audited accounts of the
Company for the year ended 31 March, 2020.

FINANCIAL RESULTS : (Rs. in Lakhs)

2019-2020 2018-2019
Profit before Depreciation 2854.65 4912.48
Less : Depreciation 2831.16 3005.32
Less : Taxes 3.59) (26.93)
Add / (Less) : Other Comprehensive Income 57.30 (9.29)
Profit after Tax 77.20 1924.80
Surplus brought forward from last year 5108.02 3487.10
Amount available for appropriation 5185.22 5411.90
DIVIDEND

Your Directors have not recommended any dividend forthe year 2019-20.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The performance of Spinning and Knitting divisions during the year was impacted due to variety of
reasons which included fall in demand in export markets in the first half of the year caused mainly by
USA-China Trade war and consequent fluctuation in prices of yarn/fabric which affected the margins.
Weaving and Home Textiles divisions have done reasonably well. The Company is concentrating on
manufacture of value added products, in this segment of its business. The performance of the
Processing division was satisfactory barring the closure of the unit for about 20 days in the third quarter of
the year which affected the working of the unit and the Company as a whole as it takes time to return to
normalcy. Though lot of measures were taken to improve the performance of Retail division, the desired
results have not been achieved. However the Company is confident of improved performance by
creating better visibility for the products.

IMPACTOF COVID-19

During FY 2019-20, the overall exports of Textile and Apparel items from India was affected by US-China
Trade war, Britain’s exit from European Union, Preferential access by developed nations to competing
countries like Vietnam, Cambodia, Bangladesh etc. The COVID-19 pandemic has worsened the
situation further and has disturbed the demand-supply situation of the Indian textiles industry.

The demand for textiles will face headwinds in both the markets, domestic and international. Exports
constitute about 25% of the total revenue of the Company. As aresult of muted demand fromn domestic
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and International markets, India’s export unit realisations and the domestic prices s likely to be affected
adversely. Hence the overall prospects for Textile Industry for FY 2020-21 does not look encouraging at
this point of time.

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to
COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of Property, plant and equipment, intangibles, inventories,
receivables and other assets. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties
inthe global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval
of these financial results has used internal and external sources on the expected future performance of
the Company. The Company has evaluated its liquidity position, recoverability and based on current
estimates expects the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered.

The unit wise performance of the company is furnished below :
Spinning Division
During the year under review, the Spinning mills produced 30714.94 tonnes (32573.26 tonnes) inclusive

of purchased quantity 77.11 tonnes (Nil tonnes) of Yarn and sold 25779.09 tonnes (24200.63 tonnes) of
Yarn.

The sales include 3322.73 tonnes (4135.82 tonnes) by way of export. The total yarn sales of this division
amountedto Rs. 54017.30 Lakhs (Rs.54447.61 Lakhs) of which export sales amounted to Rs. 6701.80 Lakhs
(Rs.9037.43 Lakhs) constituting 12.41% (17.49%) of the total yarn sales.

The Spinning division produced 8809.02 tonnes (9177.67 tonnes) of saleable waste cotton and sold
8438.23 fonnes (9707.61 fonnes) and the total waste cotton sales of this division amounted to Rs. 5466.79
Lakhs (Rs.5692.72 Lakhs).

Weaving Division

The Weaving division specializes in manufacturing wider-width cotton grey woven fabric. During the
year under review, 159.20 Lakh metres (144.13 Lakh metres) of fabric were produced and 123.22 Lakh
metres (94.57 Lakh metres) of fabric were sold.

The sales include 33.09 tonnes (34.27 tonnes) by way of export. The total fabric sales of this division
amounted to Rs.10324.09 Lakhs (Rs.8307.63 Lakhs) of which export sales amounted to Rs.2807.32 Lakhs
(Rs.3057.11 Lakhs).

Home Textile Division

During the year under review, the Home Textile division produced 14.66 Lakh pieces (12.19 Lakh pieces)
of made ups andsold 14.56 Lakh pieces (11.30 Lakh pieces).

The tfotal sales of this division amounted to Rs. 3187.10 Lakhs (Rs.3867.86 Lakhs) which includes
fabric sales 19.72 Lakh metres (30.25 Lakh metres) and the sales amounted to Rs. 1590.60 Lakhs
(Rs.2560.49 Lakhs).

Knitting Division

During the year under review, 5209.68 tonnes (7809.54 tonnes) of Knitted falbric were produced and
4777.35tonnes (7304.73 tonnes) were sold. The total sales of this division amounted to Rs. 10826.52 Lakhs
(Rs.18277.75lakhs) of which export sales amounted to Rs. 1627.60 Lakhs (Rs.7340.94 Iakhs).
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Processing Division

During the year under review, 2206.45 tonnes (3786.76 tonnes) of fabric were processed on job work
basis and 1001.12 tonnes (933.17 tonnes) of fabric were produced and 954.81 tonnes (806.52 tonnes) of
fabric were sold. The total fabric sales of this division amnounted to Rs. 3933.93 Lakhs (Rs.3426.89 lakhs).

Apparei Division

During the year under review, 10.62 Lakhs (2.88 lakhs) pieces of Garments were produced on job work
basis and 7.41 lakhs (7.55 lakhs) pieces of Garments on own production. The totalincome of this division
amountedto Rs.963.29 lakhs (Rs. 1509.29 Lakhs).

Wind Mill Division

The company has 4 windmills of 1250 KW each totaling 5 MW in Radhapuram Taluk, Tirunelveli District,
Tamilnadu, 23 Nos windmills, each of 800 KW capacity totaling 18.4 MW capacity in Dharapuram Taluk,
Tirupur District and Palani Taluk, Dindigul District, Tamilnadu and 1 windmill of 1650 KW capacity in
Udumalpet taluk, Tirupur district, Tamilnadu. The total installed capacity of Windmills is 25.05 MW and the
whole of the wind power generated is captively consumed by the Spinning Units and Weaving Unit.

The windmills produced 469.52 Lakh units of power as against 521.09 Lakh units produced in the last
year.

PROSPECTS FORTHE FINANCIAL YEAR2020-21

Pursuant to the lockdown announced by the Government on account of the Covid 19 pandemic, the
manufacturing operations of the Company were suspended at the close of 24™ March 2020. As the
Central and State Governments relaxed lock down restrictions, the Company’s manufacturing plants
commenced operations from 11" of May’ 2020 initially with 50% labour strength and from 1* June 2020
onwards the plants are operated with the available Iabour force by adhering to all the Standard
Operating procedures (SOPs) stipulated by the Government.

Though Production and Sales has been affected in the first 2 months of operation, the Company has
been able to scale up the Production in all the units since June’ 20 and it is expected that normal
capacity utilization and production will be achieved from the beginning of Q3 of FY 2020-21. The fall in
capacity utilization coupled with overall demand supply disruption caused by the pandemic is likely to
affect the performance of the Company during the FY 2020-21. However the Company is taking various
measures to reduce the adverse impact of the pandemic on the operations of the Company.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the Financial position of the Company,
subsequent to the end of the Financial Year.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company has no public deposits outstanding at the beginning of the year and, the Company has
not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 during the year under review.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE
There were no changes to the capital structure during the year under review.

The Board of Directors have proposed split of equity shares of the Company under Section 61(1)(d) of
the Companies Act, 2013. Consequently the Face value of issued, subscribed and fully paid-up Equity
Sharesshallbecome Rs.5 each (Presently Rs. 10 each).

The Directors have proposed to issue further shares to the extent of Rs.100 crores by way of rights
issue to the existing equity shareholders and Compulsorily Convertable Debentures to the extent of
Rs.115 crores on preferential offer basis.

Further the Directors have approved the increase of Authorised capital from the present Rs. 16.50 Crores
to Rs.50 Crores to facilitate the allotment of further shares during proposed Rights issue and issue of
Compulsorily Convertable Debentures.

Such splitin face value of shares, furtherissue of shares and increase of Authorised Capital are subject to
procedural approvals of shareholders and the regulators wherever applicable.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In line with requirements of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
your Company is committed to the principles of good Corporate Governance and continues to
adhere good corporate governance practices consistently.

A separate section is given on Corporate Governance, Management Discussion and Analysis
alongwith a certificate from a Practicing Company Secretary regarding compliance of conditions of
Corporate Governance as stipulated under Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 forms part of this Annual Report.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the sub-section (3) of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013, Annual Return for Financial
Yearended on 31"March, 2020, is posted on the website of the Company viz., www.bannarimills.com

DIRECTORS

Sri SV Arumugam, (DIN 00002458) will retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, he is
eligible forre-appointment and seeks re-appointment.

The term of Appointment of Smt S Sihamani, (DIN 06945399) as Independent Director expires on
28.9.2020. The Board of directors have re appointed her for a second term of 5 consecutive years from
28.9.2020t0 27.9.2025, as Independent Director. Such Appointment is subject to approval shareholders
andshallnot be liable to retire by rotation.

All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid
down under Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The company has obtained a Certificate from Sri R Dhanasekaran, Company Secretary in Practice
certifying that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified
from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate
Affairs or any such statutory authority.
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KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
The Company has appointed the following persons as Key Managerial Personnel:

Name of the persons Designation
Sri SV Arumugam Managing Director
Sri S Seshadri Chief Financial Officer
Sri N Krishnaragj Company Secretary

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee comprises of
1. SriKNVRamani

Chairman (Non- Executive Independent Director)

2. SriCSKPrabhu’ - Chairman (Non- Executive Independent Director)
3. SriSPalaniswami - Member(Non-Executive Independent Director) and
4. SriKSadhasivam® - Member (Non-Executive Independent Director)

*Retiredw.e.f 24.8.2019
* Appointedw.e.f24.8.2019

The Board hasimplemented the suggestions made by the Audit Committee from time to time.
EVALUATION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 (10) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Independent Directors at their meeting
without participation of non-Independent Directors and management considered and evaluated the
Boards’ performance, performance of the Chairrman and Managing Director.

The Board has carried out an annual evaluation of performance of Board and of individual Directors as
well as the Committees of Directors. The evaluation has been conducted internally in the manner
prescribed by Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

BOARD MEETINGS

During the year under review, Six Board Meetings were conducted. The details of the same have been
given in the Corporate Governance Report under Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, forming part of this Report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES ORINVESTMENTS

The Company has furnished Corporate Guarantee for the credit facilities extended by the following
banks to Young Brand Apparel Private Limited, a Subsidiary Company as detailed below :
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

Amount for Amount
S.No Name of the Bank which security . Nature of facility
. . outstanding
is provided
1 Punjab National Bank :
(Erstwhile Oriental 10015.00 5535.88 gg}g?g Cﬁ‘”;’;ork'”g
Bank of Commerce)
2 Axis Bank Ltd 2500.00 - Working capital facility
3 Punjab National
Bank (Erstwhile 520.00 - Term loan facility
Oriental Bank of
Commerce)

ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has established a vigil mechanism for Directors and employees to report concerns about
unethicallbehavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct or ethics.
The policy has been posted in the website of the Company: www.lbannarimills.com.

POLICY ON NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors have framed a policy setting out the framework for payment of Remuneration to
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel of the Company. The policy is
explained as part of the Corporate Governance Report. The Committee ensures that

a. The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and
motivate Directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully

b. Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks and

c. Remunerationto Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and senior management involves a balance
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Allthe related party fransactions that were entered into during the financial year in the ordinary course
of business and the prices were at arm’s length basis. Hence, the provisions of Section 188 (1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not attracted. Further no materially significant related party transactions
were ended by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other
designated persons which may have potential conflict with interest of the company at large. Hence
reporting in AOC-2 is not made. Approval of Audit Committee was obtained for transactions of
repetitive nature on annual basis. Allrelated party transactions are placed before the Audit Committee
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and Board of Directors for their review. The policy on Related Party Transactions is available in the
website www.bannarimills.com.

There were no transactions made with any person or entity belonging to promoter/promoter group
which holds 10% or more shareholding in the Company.

SIGNIFICANT/MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS/COURTS

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts that would impact the
going concernstatus and the Company’s operationin future.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
As stipulatedin Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 your Directors confirm that:

a) Your Directors have followed in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable
accounting standards with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) Your Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
Company for that period;

c) Your Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) YourDirectors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) Your Directors have laid down internal financial controls o be followed by the Company and that
suchinternal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

f)  Your Directors have devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

AUDITORS

The present Auditors of the Company M/s Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants,
Bangalore (Firm Registration No: 117366W/W-100018), were appointed for aterm of 5 years, pursuant to
the resolution passed by the members at the Annual General Meeting held on 25™ September, 2017,
Pursuant to Section 40 of the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, the proviso to Section 139 (1) relating
to ratification of appointment of Auditors every year has been omitted. Accordingly, the term of office
of present Auditors continues without requirement of ratification at the Annual General Meeting.

There is no audit qualification for the year under review.
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DETAILS OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS

There were no frauds reported by the Statutory Auditors under provisions of Section 143 (12) of the
Companies Act, 2013 andrules made thereunder.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed
Mr R Dhanasekaran, Practicing Company Secretary to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the
Company. The reportis annexed herewith as Annexure - I.

Further the company has obtained an Annual Compliance Report from Sri R Dhanasekaran, Practicing
Company Secretary in terms of SEBI circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dt: 8.2.2019.

No adverse qualifications/adverse remarks comments have been made in the said report by the
Practicing Company Secretary.

COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has complied with all applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India from time to time.

COSTAUDITOR

Pursuant to section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit)
Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time, the Board of Directors, on the recommendation of Audit
Committee, has appointed SriM Nagarajan, Cost Accountant, Coimbatore as Cost Auditor to conduct
Cost Audit of the Company for the financial year 2020 - 2021. The Company has maintained such
accounts and costrecords as required under Section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013.
JOINT VENTURE, ASSOCIATE AND SUBSIDIARIES
The Company has following five subsidiaries as on 31.3.2020:

i.  Abirami Amman Designs Private Limited (Formerly Abirami Amman Mills Private Limited)

i. AccelApparelsPrivate Limited

ii. YoungBrand Apparel Private Limited (also Joint Venture Company)

iv. Bannari Amman Retails Private Limited and

v. BannariAmman Trendz Private Limited.
In accordance with the Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the consolidated Financial
Statements of the Company has been prepared which forms part of the Annual Report. A separate

statement containing the salient features of the Financial Statements of Subsidiaries in Form AOC-1
(Part A)is furnished:
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Form AOC - 1

Statement pursuant o Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013
related to Subsidiary Companies

Part A subsidiaries

(Amount in Rs.)

1 Name of the subsidiary Abirami Accel Young Brand Bannari Bannari
Amman Apparels Apprel Private Amman Amman
Designs Private Limited Retails Trendz
Private Limited Private Private
Limited Limited Limited
(Unaudited) | (Unaudited)
2 | The date since when
subsidiary was acquired 23.6.2016 | 23.6.2016 7.7.2017 14.12.2018| 21.2.2019
3 | Share capital 10,00,000 1,00,000 65,16,06,060 1,00,000 1,00,000
4 | Reserves and surplus (65.805) | (2,20,339) 6,45,43,577 (52,82,405)|(64,08,841)
5 | Total assets 9.,79,195 73,239 195,59,96,022 1,18,21,836|7.64,52,551
6 | Total Liabilities 35,000 193,578 123,98,46,385 1,70,04,2418,27,61,392
7 | Investments — — — — —
8 | Turnover — == 224,42,82 909 35,06,029| 78,86,043
9 | Profit before taxation (5,087) (60,952) 11,24,49,749 (49,86,013)|(61,47,261)
10 | Provision for taxation — — 4,09,44,246 — —
11 | Profit ofter taxation (5.087) (60,952) 7,15,05,503 (49,86,013)| (61,47 261)
12 | Proposed Dividend — — — — —
13 | Extent of shareholding - = o o o
(in percentage) 100 % 100% 51.33% 100% 100%
Notes

1.

2.

Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations - Abirami Amman Designs Private
Limited (formerly Abirami Amman Mills Private Limited) and Accel Apparels Private Limited.

Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year- Nil
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of ifs
operations. The scope and authority of the Internal Audit function is defined in the Internal Audit
Manual. To maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal Audit function reports to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee and to the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company.

The Company has Independent Internal Auditor and an Internal Audit Department which monitors and
evaluates the efficiency and adequacy of internal control system in the Company, its compliance with
operating systems, accounting procedures and policies at all locations of the Company.

Based on the report of internal audit function, corrective actions are taken in the respective areas and
thereby strengthen the controls. Significant audit observations and recommendations along with
corrective actions thereon are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board.

STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Pursuant to section 134(3) (n) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Committee has developed a Risk
Management Policy and implemented the same. At present the Company has not identified any
element of risk which may be of threat to the existence of the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee which shall recommend to
the Board, the activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VII, recommend
the amount of expenditure to be incurred on such activities and monitor the CSR policy of the
Company. The company has partially spent the amount stipulated under the requirements of the Act.
The Company has consisted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee consisting of the following
Directors:

1. SriSV Arumugam - Managing Director
2. SriSPalaniswami = Independent Director
3. SriKSadhasivam - Independent Director

The CSR activities andits related particulars is enclosed as Annexure
STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

|.  Conservation of Energy and others- The particulars required to be included in terms of Section
134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
for the year ended 31" March, 2020, relating to Conservation of Energy, etc., is enclosed as
Annexurelll.

ll.  Remuneration of Directors and other details- The information required under Section 197(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
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Personnel) Rules, 2014 and forming part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended 319 March, 2020
is providedin Annexure IV.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

During the year under review the human relations continued to be very cordial. The Company wishes to
acknowledge the contribution of the employees at alllevels of the organisation.

The Company has an Anti Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of The Sexual
Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &Redressal) Act, 2013 and an Internall
Complaints Committee (ICC) has constituted to redress complaints of sexual harassment as provided
therein. Allemployees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.

a. No.of complaints filed during the financial year 2019-20 - Nil
b. No.of complaints disposed off during the financial year2019-20 - Nil
c. No.of complaints pending as on end of financial year 2019-20 - Nil
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors acknowledge with gratitude the timely assistance and help extended by the Bankers for
having provided the required bank facilities. Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation of
the contributions made by the employees at alllevels for the excellent performance of your company.

By Order of the Board

SV ARUMUGAM
Coimbatore Chairman & Managing Director
15" September, 2020 DIN 00002458
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ANNEXURE |
FORM NO. MR - 3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
(FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 319 MARCH, 2020)

(Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To

The Members

Bannari Amman Spinning Mills Limited
(CIN: L17111TZ1989PLC002476)

252, Mettupalayam Road,
Coimbatore - 641043.

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Bannari Amman Spinning Mills Limited (hereinafter called
the "Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis
forevaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my
opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 319 March,
2020, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by Bannari Amman Spinning Mills Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on
31" March 2020) (' Audit Period”) according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder and applicable provisions
ofthe Companies Act 1956;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 CSCRA’) and the Rules made thereunder;
ii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings;
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v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 (SEBI Act’) to the extent applicable to the Company;

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b. Securitiesand Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2014, (Notapplicable to the company during the Audit Period)

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations,2008; (Notapplicable to the company during the Audit Period)

—h

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not
applicable to the company during the Audit Period)

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); and

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

vi. The following otherlaws specifically applicable to the company:
a. Textile Committee Act, 1963
b. Textiles (Development and Regulation) order, 2001
c. Textiles (Consumer Protection) Regulation, 1985
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
i)  Secretarial Standardsissued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the BSE Limited, National Stock
Exchange of India Limited and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

I report that, during the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, Listing Agreements etc., mentioned above.

| further report that, based on the information provided by the Company, its officers and authorised
representatives during the conduct of the audit, and also on the review of periodical compliance
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reports by respective department heads / company secretary / CFO taken on record by the Board of
Directors of the Company, in my opinion, adequate systems and process and control mechanism exist
in the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable financial / general laws like, direct
andindirect tax laws, labour laws, and environmental laws.

| further report that, the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out
in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in
the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

I further report that, there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the
size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

| further report that, during the audit period:

The company has not taken any events / actions having a major bearing on the company’s affairs in
pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.

R Dhanasekaran

Coimbatore Company Secretary in Practice
15" September, 2020 FCS 7070/ CP 7745
ICSI UDIN : FO07070B0007 14986
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ANNEXURE I
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1.  ABriefoutline of the Company’s CSR policy including overview of projects or programs proposed to
be undertaken and areference to the welb-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs.

CSR Policy - Approved by the Board of Directors and applicable from 14.8.2014.

Present Activities:

The company is actively involved in promotion of education particularly in rural areas were the
facilities for students are inadequate. The company provides for construction of buildings and
equipment to deserving schools.

The company has contributed equipment to the disabled kids like hearing materials and also
contributes towards dispute children of Aids affected.

Futurefocus:

Education along with health and sanitation will be the prime concern areas to be addressed

Promote quality of services delivered by basic education, basic health, early childhood care
and education by supplementing the effort of Government and suitably identifying the critical
gaps and addressing it squarely

Actively participating in integrated rural community development

Focus on adopting villages with its holistic development
Weblink:www.bannarimills.com

2. Composition of CSR Committee
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee consists of three Directors of which two are
Independent Directors.
Name of the member Designation
Sri SV Arumugaom Chairman
Sri S Palaniswami Independent Director
Sri K Sadhasivam Independent Director
3. Average profit before tax of the Company for last 3 financial years :  Rs. 13,71,92,463/-
4. Prescribed CSR expenditure (2% of the amount as initem 3 above) : Rs. 27,43,849/-
5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year
a) Total amount spent for the financial year : Rs. 10,30,000/-
b) Amount unspent, if any . Rs. 17,113,849/
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¢) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below :

A;’L‘;I):;t Amount Cumulative As?:nl';rft
j dit - :
S. Projects/ sector P:gjerzt n/1 (budgeth) spent on exupptig t;\:re Direct or
No. Activities P g. project / |the project / . through
locations reporting . .
program program . implementing
- period
wise agency
1 Rishi Valley Education
Centre - for charitable | Private | Andhra 10,00,000 10,00,000 10,00,000 Thro Agency
works and for running Pradesh
free village schools
2 | Bright Future
Organisation - for Private | Mumbai 30,000 30,000 10,30,000 Thro Agency
providing foldable
canes for blind people

The Company has accumulated outstanding CSR obligation to the extent of Rs.1,46,47,275/- upto
the financial year 31.3.2020. The company has identified Dr SVK Educational Charities, Coimbatore for
completing CSR requirements entirely. Accordingly the Company has paid Rs.1,50,00,000/- as
advance to the said frust during the yearended 31.3.2020.

Responsibility Statement of the CSR Committee:

The CSR committee hereby confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR activities are in
compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the company.

By Order of the Board
SV ARUMUGAM

Coimbatore Chairman & Managing Director
15" September, 2020 DIN 00002458
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ANNEXURE 11l

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information under section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 8 (3) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for the year ended 31" March, 2020 is given here below, and forms
part of the Director’s Report.

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

D

i)

The steps taken orimpact on conversation of energy :

Various measures are under consideration for conservation of energy in the production units.
Energy Audits are also conducted to suggest measures to conserve energy.

The steps taken by the company for utilising alternate source of energy ;

During the year under review the company utilized wind power of 459.04 Lakh units by way of
captive consumption.

iii) The capitalinvestment on energy conversation equipments; - NIL

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

1.
2.

4,

The efforts made towards technology absorption; - Nil

The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or
import substitution; - Nil

In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year); - Nil

The expenditure incurred on Research and Development;-Nil

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

During the year under review foreign exchange earnings were Rs. 14,344.49 Lakhs (Rs.22,322.78
Lakhs). Foreign exchange outgo was Rs.8,832.06 Lakhs (Rs.894.87 Lakhs).

Coimbatore
15" September, 2020

By Order of the Board

SV ARUMUGAM

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN 00002458
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ANNEXURE IV

Disclosure in the Board’s Report
Particulars of Remuneration of Directors and Employees pursuant to Section 197(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

The Ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of
the company for the Financial year2019-20.

Director's Name Ratio

SriSV Arumugam, Managing Director 65.45: 1

The Percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief
Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager if any in the Financial year 2019-20 compared
t02018-19.

Director’s Name/CS/CFO :/;23:?;:;:
Sri SV Arumugam, Managing Director (22.66)
Sri N Krishnaraj, Company Secretary 411
Sri S Seshadri, Chief Financial Officer 11.46

In respect of other Directors, the Company is paying only sitting fees. Hence, not considered for
the above purposes.

Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the 1.02
Financial year2019-20

Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company 3459

Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of Employees other than Managerial
Personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in managerial
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances
forincrease in the managerial remuneration.

The average percentile increase granted to employees other than managerial personnel
is (3.68%).

The percentile increase granted to managerial personnel is Nil. The Board of Directors of the
Company aoffirm that the remuneration paid to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
employeesis as per the remuneration policy approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.
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Vi) Particulars of Employees as per Rule 5(2) and Rule 5(3) of Companies (Appointment and

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014:

Table 1: Particulars of Top Ten Employeesin terms of remuneration drawn as required under Rule 5(2) .

Date of
Gross Commencement .
Nome Designation Remuneration | Qualification | of employment Previous
(Age in years) paid (in Rs.)* (experience Employment
in years)
Sri. A. Senthil (43) Chief Executive 30.39.600 MBA 23.5.2011 (15) | Shiva Texyarn
Officer Limited
Sri. J. Annaraj (62) GM - Weaving 22,76,052 DTT 30.3.2005 (33) | Loyal Textile Mills
Limited
Sri. S. Shankarkumar (64) | GM Marketing 20,87.515 B.Tech., MBA | 1.11.2013 31) | Shiva Texyarn
Limited
Sri. S. Seshadri (69) Chief Financiall 20,89.815 B.Sc., ACA 1.4.2018 (29) | Shiva Texyarn
Officer Limited
Sri. N. Krishnaraj (65) Company Secretary 22,72,468 B.Com., ACS 3.8.2007 (32) | Bannari Amman
Sugars Limited
Sri. C.S. Teotia (67) Director - Cotton 17.83.063 B.Sc.. MA 4.9.2013 (41) | Cofton
PGDM Corporation of
India
Sri. S. Swaminathan (61) Admin Head 18,60,087 DTMFT 10.4.2017 (22) | Premier Spinning
& Weaving Mills
Private Limited
Sri. A. Ganapathy (56) GM Business 18.,45,594 B.Tech., MBA | 15.2.2017 (30) | Rohini Textile
Development Industry Private
Limited
Sri. K. Mugunth (43) Head - Business 19.44,266 B.B.A 09.03.2017(22) | Trident Limited
Development
Sri. K. Prabakaran (49) VP-Operations 20,54 919 Dip. (Tech) 1.10.2018 (29) | Shiva Texyarn
Limited

* From 1.4.2019 to 31.3.2020

20
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Table 2 : The statement of employee(s) specified under Rule 5(2) (i), (i) and (iii):

Name . SV Arumugam

Age 71

Designation . Managing Director

Nature of Duties . Managing the day to day affairs

of the Company

Remuneration (Rs. in Lakhs) . 60.40

Qualification & Experience (years) . B.Sc., ACA. More than 35 years in Textile Industry
Date of commencement of employment . 27.5.2005

Last employment . Shiva Texyarn Limited

Sri A Senthil, Chief Executive Officer, listed in the said Annexure is relative of Sri S V Arumugam, Managing
Director (DIN 00002458) of the Company. None of the employees hold (by himself or along with his

spouse and dependent children) more than two percent of the equity shares of the Company.

By Order of the Board

S V ARUMUGAM
Coimbatore Chairman & Managing Director
15" September, 2020 DIN 00002458

2]
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE

The Company’s philosophy on corporate governance envisages the aftainment of high levels of
fransparency, accountability, fairness and equity in all facets of its operations, procedures, reporting
system andin all the interactions with its stakeholders.

Bannari Amman Spinning Mills Limited has adopted a Code of Conduct which lays down standards of
values, ethics and business principles of management.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises of 6 Directors viz., 1 Executive Director and 5 Non-Executive Independent Directors
including a Woman Director.

Number of Board
I_\lumber ?f Committee
S. Name of the Category Directorships Membership held
No Director held in other | 4 other Companies**
) Companies* ;
Chairman| Member
1. ] SriSV Arumugam Executive 6 - 2
2. | SriK NV Ramani Non-Executive - Independent 6 4 5
3. | SriCSKPrabhu® Non-Executive - Independent S - -
4. | Sri S Palaniswami Non-Executive - Independent 1 - 1
5. | DrKRThillainathan | Non-Executive - Independent - - -
6. | Sri K Sadhasivam Non-Executive - Independent 5 - 1
7. | Smt S Sihamani Non-Executive - Independent - - -

* Excluding private companies which are not subsidiary of public limited companies.

** Only Commiftees formed under Regulation 26 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 are considered.

*Retiredw.e.f 24.8.2019

The non-Executive Independent Directors fulfil the conditions laid down for appointment/
re-appointment as Independent Directors as specified in Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
rules made thereunder and Regulation 25 (8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015. A formal letter of appointment/re-appointment has been issued and a copy of the
same is posted on the website of the Company viz., www.bannarimills.com.

22
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BOARD MEETINGS AND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

During the financial year, 6 Board Meetings were convened by giving advance notices to the Directors.
The meetings were held on 30.5.2019, 19.6.2019, 12.8.2019, 14.11.2019, 27.12.2019 and 14.2.2020. The
inferval between the two Meetings were well within the maximum period prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 (2) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

The Board is given all the material information which are incorporated in the Agenda papers for
facilitating meaningful and focused discussions at the meetings.

Details of attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings and at the last Annual General Meeting
(heldon 19.8.2019) are furnished here below:

NUMBER OF BOARD LAST AGM ATTENDED
NAME OF THE DIRECTOR MEETINGS ATTENDED YES / NO
1. SiiSV Arurnugam (DIN 00002458) 6 Yes

Sri KNV Ramani (DIN 00007931) Yes

Sri C S K Prabhu (DIN 00002913) °
Dr K R Thillainathan (DIN 00009400)

6
3 Yes
6

Sri S Palaniswami (DIN 00007901) 6 Yes
6
6

Yes

ISR

Sri K Sadhasivam (DIN 00610037)
7. Smt S Sihamani (DIN 06945399)

* Retired w.e.f 24.8.2019

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME

At the time of appointment of Directors a formal letter of appointment is issued, which sets out roles,
functions, duties and responsibilities expected from them. The Directors have also been explained the
relevant regulations. The appointments are also provided with necessary information to understand the
Company’soperations, products and eventsrelating to the Company.

CHART SETTING OUT THE SKILLS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Yes

Yes

. Date of e i
Board of Directors Age appointment Qualification Skills
Sri SV Arumugam 71 27.6.2005 B.Sc., ACA He has more than 35 years of

experience in Textile Industry

Sound knowledge on Company’s
business, policies, vision and
mission, strengths, weakness,
opportunities and threats of the
Company’s business operations.
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CHART SETTING OUT THE SKILLS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS — (Contd.)

Board of Directors

Age

Date of
appointment

Qualification

Skills

Sri K NV Ramani

88

25.7.2005

M.A., B.L

He has more than 61 years of
Specialization in Companies Act,
Taxation, Labour Law etc.,

Sound knowledge on Company’s
business, policies, vision and
mission, strengths, weakness,
opportunities and threats of the
Company’s business operations.

Corporate Governance/
complionce management/ legal
Advisory expertise/profession
skills/intellectual inputs in relation
to Company’s business.

Sri C S K Prabhu’

65

25.7.2005

B.Com., FCA

He has more than 41 years of
experience in Audit Profession

Dr K R Thilloinathan

66

26.5.2008

MBBS

He has more than 41 years of
Experience in Medical profession

General administration

Sri S Palaniswami

76

26.5.2008

B.E

Electrical Engineering He has more
than 41years experience in the
filed of Vertical Transportation
Elevators, Escalators and allied
products.

General administration

Sri K Sadhasivam

73

22.8.2006

B.Sc.,

He has more than 46 years of
Experience in Transport Business

General administration

Smt S Sihamani

66

28.9.2015

B.A.

Engaged in Social Welfare
activities for the past 15 years

General administration

* Retired w.e.f 24.8.2019
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CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company has adopted the code of conduct for all Board Members and Senior Management as
required under Regulation 17(5) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015. The code is posted on the company’s website at www.bannarimills.com. All
Board Members and Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code on an
annual basis and a declaration to this effect signed by the Chairmanis attached to thisreport.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee consists of following Directors:

SL.No. Name Position N°A3Ie“f,§i'c',"gs
1. Sri C S K Prabhu’ Chairman - Independent 3
2. Sri KNV Ramani* Chairman - Independent o)
3. Sri S Palaniswami Member - Independent 6
4, Sri K Sadhasivam”® Member - Independent 3

‘Retired w.e.f 24.8.2019
* Appointed as Chairman w.e.f 24.8.2019
* Appointed w.e.f 24.8.2019

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as set out in Regulation 18(3) read with Part C of
Schedule Il of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, which inter-
dliaincludesthe following:

a) Review of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information
to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

b) Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of Auditors of the
Company;

c) Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the Statutory Auditors;

d) Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and Auditor’s Report thereon
before submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:

) Mattersrequired to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the
Board’sreport interms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.

i) Changes, if any,in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.

il Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by
management.

iv) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings.
v) Compliance withlisting and otherlegal requirements relating to financial statements.
vi) Disclosure of any related party transactions

vii) Modified opinionsin the draft audit report
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Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the
board for approval;

Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an
issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes
other than those stated in the offer document/ prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the
monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making
appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up stepsin this matter;

Review and monitor the Auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit
process;

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;
Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, whereveritis necessary;

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and intfernal auditors, adequacy of
the internal control systems;

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal
audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure
coverage and frequency of internal audit;

Discussion with Internal Auditors of any significant findings and follow up thereon;

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the Internal Auditors into matters where
thereis suspected fraud orirregularity or afailure of internal control systems of a material nature and
reporting the matter to the board;

Discussion with Statutory Auditors before the audit commmences, about the nature and scope of
audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

Tolook into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

Toreview the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;

Approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any
other person heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the
qualifications, experience and background, etc., of the candidate;

Carrying out any other function asis mentionedin the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

During the financial year, the Audit Committee met 6 times on 28.5.2019, 19.6.2019, 12.8.2019,
14.11.2019,27.12.2019 and 14.2.2020. The Audit Committee Chairman was present at the last AGM.
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE :

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of 3 Directors, all of whom are independent:

SI.No. Name of the Director Position
1. Sri KNV Ramani Chairman
2. St C S K Prabhu’ Member
3. Sri S Palaniswami Member
4. Sri K Sadhasivam”® Member

*Retfired w.e.f 24.8.2019
* Appointed w.e.f 24.8.2019

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee Chairman was present at the last Annual General

Meeting.

The terms of reference specified by Board of Directors to the Nomination & Remuneration Committee

are asunder:

a) ldentifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior
Management in accordance with the criteria laid down and also recommmend to the Board a
Policy relating to the Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees.

b) Formulating the policy for determining qualification, positive attributes and independence of a
Director.

c) Toformulate criteriafor evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board.

d) Todevise apolicy on Board diversity.

Remuneration Policy

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has adopted a charter which, inter alia, deals with the
manner of selection of Board of Directors/Key Managerial Personnel/Senior Managerial Personnel. The
policy is accordingly derived from the said Charter. The policy on remuneration is available in the
following weblink: www.bannarimills.com

Evaluation criteria

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has formulated the methodology and criteria to
evaluate the performance of the Board and each Director. The evaluation of the performance of the
Board and its committees are evaluated through a questionnaire circulated to all directors and based
upon the response to the questionnaire, the directors do a self evaluation of their performance.
Accordingly Boardreviewed the performance of each of the directors and expressed their satisfaction.

The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Managing Director was carried out separately
by the Independent Directors. The Independent Directors expressed their satisfaction on the
performance of the Chairman and the Managing Director.

27



% BANNARI AMMAN SPINNING MILLS LTD

Remuneration paid to Managing Director is as follows :

. . Remuneration
Name Designation (in Rs)
SriSV Arumugam Managing Director 60,39,600/-

Remuneration paid to Director:

All the non-executive Directors are paid with sitting fee of Rs. 10,000/- as recommended by Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and approved at the Board Meeting held on 14.8.2018 for each Board
Meeting and Audit Committee Meeting attended by them.

Meeting of Independent Directors

During the yearunderreview the Independent Directors met on 14.2.2020 for the following purposes:
> Evaluation of performance of non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole

> Evaluation of performance of the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company

> Evaluation of quality and flow of information to the Board

Allthe Independent Directors were present at the meeting.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Company has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee which shall recommend to
the Board, the activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VI, of the
Companies Act, 2013 recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on such activities and
nmonitor the CSR policy of the Company. The company has fully spent the amount stipulated under the
requirements of the Act. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee consisting of the following Directors
with effectfrom21.5.2014.

1. SriSVArumugam - Managing Director

2. SriSPalaniswami - Independent Director

3. SriKSadhasivam - Independent Director
SUBSIDIARIES

The Company has one material subsidiary viz., Young Brand Apparel Private Limited within the meaning
of Regulation 16 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The
company has adopted a Policy for determining material subsidiary and is available on the
weblink:www.bannarimills.com

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The company has adopted policy on dealing with Related parties. The same is disclosed in the welbsite
of the company andis available in the following weblink:www.lbannarimills.com
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Requirement for constitution of Risk Management Committee pursuant to Regulation 21 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has adopted Policy on Foreign Exchange Risk Managementon 12.11.2015

Disclosures regarding commodity price risk and hedging activities pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read
with clause 9(n) of Part C of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 are as follows:

Exposure to commodity risks faced by the company throughout the year
Total exposure of the Company to commoditiesin INR : NIL

Exposure of the Company to various commodities : NIL

% of such exposure hedged

Exposure in Exposure in
P INR quar:!ﬁty terms through commodity derivatives
Commodity '°‘”°'Tds o *°‘”°'T°'s 0 Domestic Market International Market Total
name particular particular
commodity commodity orc Exchange | OTC | Exchange

WHISTLE BLOWER MECHANISM

The Company has established a whistle blower policy/vigil mechanism for Directors and Employees to
report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected incidents of fraud or violation of the
code of conduct or ethics policy. This mechanism provides adequate safeguards against victimization
of directors/employees who avail of the mechanissn and also provide for direct access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee. The whistle blower policy is posted onthe company’s website at the
link www.bannarimills.com.
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SHAREHOLDING OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AS ON 31.3.2020

Name of the Director No. of shares held
Sri KNV Ramani Nil
Sri C S K Prabhu’ Nil
Dr K R Thillainathan Nil
Sri S Palaniswami 172
Sri K Sadhasivam Nil
Smt S Sihamani Nil

* Retired w.e.f 24.8.2019

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee was formed to specifically look into shareholders/investors
complaints if any, on transfer of shares, non-receipt of Balance Sheet, non-receipt of declared
dividend, etc.,and also the action taken by the Company on those matters.

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee consists of

1. Sri C S K Prabhu® Chairman
2, Sri S Palaniswami Chairman
3. SriS V Arumugam Member
4, Sri K Sadhasivam*™ Member

*Retired w.e.f 24.8.2019
* Appointed w.e.f 24.8.2019
Sri N Krishnaraj, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer.

The company has not received any complaints from the Investors for redressal during the year and
there were no complaint was pending at the beginning of the year.

CEO & CFO CERTIFICATION

The Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer have furnished a certificate relating to financial
statements and intfernal controls and systems to the Board of Directors as prescribed under
Regulation17(8) read with Part B of Schedule Il of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and Board took the same onrecord.

INSIDERTRADING

In compliance with SEBI Regulations in prohibition of insider trading the company has framed a
comprehensive Code of Conduct. The Code lays down guidelines and procedures to be followed and
disclosures to be made by the management staff while dealing with the shares of the company.
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GENERALBODY MEETINGS

Last three Annual General Meetings were held at NaniKalaiArangam, Mani Higher Secondary School,
Pappanaickenpalayam, Coimbatore 641037 on the following dates and details of Special Resolutions

passed are as follows:

AGM | Date & Time Special Resolutions Passed Voting Pattern
27th 25.9.2017 Nil Not Applicable
9.15 AM.
28th 24.9.2018 ) Re-appointment and payment of Total Votes polled : 87,53,254
9.15 AM remuneration to Sri S V Arumugam, Votes polled for : 87,53,254
Managing Director (DIN 00002458) Votes against : Nil
Votes neutral : Nil
i)  Approval for continuation of present term of Total Votes polled : 85,85,237
Directorship of Sri KN V Ramani (DIN 0000793 1) Votes polled for : 85,85,217
who has attained the age of 75 years, in terms Votes against : Nil
of Regulation 17 (1A) of SEBI (Listing Obligations Votes neutral : Nil
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 Votes Invalid : 20
i)  Approval for Continuation of present term of Total Votes polled : 87,53,254
Directorship of Sri S Palaniswami (DIN 00007901) Votes polled for : 87,53,234
who attains the age of 75 years, during the Votes against : Nil
tenure of his present appointment, in terms of Votes neutral : Nil
Regulation 17 (1A) of SEBI (Listing Obligations Votes Invalid : 20
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
29th 19.8.2019 )  Re-appointment of Sri KN V Ramani (DIN 0000793 1) Total Votes polled : 87,64, 152
9.45 AM as an Independent Director, for second term of Votes polled for : 87,64,077
five consecutive years from 25.8.2019 to 24.8.2024 Votes against : 75
pursuant to Section 149,150,152 and other Votes neutral : Nil
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 Votes Invalid : 311
) Re-appointment of Dr K R Thillainathan (DIN 00009400)| Total Votes polled : 87,64,152
as an Independent Director, for second term of five Votes polled for : 87,64,077
consecutive years from 25.8.2019 to 24.8.2024 Votes against : 75
pursuant to Section 149, 150, 152 and other Votes neutral : Nil
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 Votes Invalid : 311
) Re-Appointment of Sri S Palaniswami, (DIN 00007901) Total Votes polled : 87,64, 152
as anlindependent Director, for second term five Votes polled for : 87,64,077
consecutive years, from 25.8.2019 to 24.8.2024, Votes against : 75
pursuant to Section 149, 150, 152 and other Votes neutral : Nil
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 Votes Invalid : 311
IV) Re-Appointment of Sri K Sadhasivam, (DIN 00610037) Total Votes polled : 87,64,152
as Non-Executive Independent Director, for second Votes polled for : 87,64,077
tferm of five consecutive years, from 25.8.2019 to Votes against : 75
24.8.2024, pursuant o Section 149, 150, 152 and other | Votes neutral : Nil
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 Votes Invalid : 311
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Sri R Dhanasekaran, Practicing Company Secretary, Coimbatore was appointed as Scrutinizer to
conductthe voting process.

There isno Special Resolution is being proposed for the approval of shareholders through postal ballot in
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

DISCLOSURES

v The Company has not entered into any transaction of a material nature with the related parties
having potential conflict with the interest of the Company.

4 There was no instance of non-compliance of any matter related to the capital markets during the
last 3 years.

v The company has a Whistle Blower Policy in place and No personnel has been denied access to
the Audit Committee and

4 The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of Regulation 34(3) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and in respect of Non-
mandatory requirements the company has complied the conditions except the suggestion
relating to appointment of separate persons to the post of Chairman and Managing
Director/CEO and circulation of half Yearly financial results to each household of the shareholder.

v The Company has not raised funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutions
placements, hence no reporting of utilisation of the same is made as specified under Regulation
32(7A).

v There were no instances of Board for non acceptance of any recommendation of any
Committee of the Board which is mandatorily required during the Financial Year.

v The company has obtained a Cerfificate from Sri R Dhanasekaran, Company Secretary in
Practice certifying that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred
or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the
Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. The said certificate is annexed
to this report as Annexure.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

) The quarterly/half-yearly/annual financial results of the Company are announced within the
stipulated period and are normally published in Business Standard (English) and MakkalKural
(Tamil) newspapers. The results and news items relating to the company are displayed in
company’s website : www.bannarimills.com

i) The Management Discussion and Analysis forms part of this Annual Report.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION

Annual General Meeting

Day and Date . Monday, 7" December, 2020
Time . 11.30 A M
Venue . "Video Conferencing (VC)”

*Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM)”

Financial Year

Results Announced »13.8.2020
Dividend payment Date . NA
Announcement of quarterly Results . i) During first/second week of August and

November 2020, February and May 2021 or

as stipulated by SEBI from time to time.

i) The financial results are displayed on the welbsite of

the Company www.lbannarimills.com
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Share Price Movement

The high and low quotations of the company’s shares on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited
and BSE Limited together with Nifty and SENSEX from April 2019 to March 2020 were:

SHARE PRICE
MONTH NSE (Rs. Ps.) BSE (Rs. Ps.) NSE - NIFTY BSE - SENSEX
High Low High Low High Low High Low
April 2019 198.00 | 180.00 | 195.00 | 177.05 | 11856.15| 11549.10| 39487.45| 38460.25
May 191.00 | 158.10 | 195.00 | 160.25 | 12041.15| 11108.30 | 40124.96| 36956.10
June 18455 | 144.05 | 18650 | 150.10 | 12103.05| 11625.10| 40312.07 | 38870.96
July 160.00 | 12005 | 159.90 | 119.75 | 11981.75| 10999.40 | 40032.41| 37128.26
August 148.80 | 105.15 | 149.40 | 109.00 | 11181.45| 10637.15| 37807.55| 36102.35
September 149.00 | 10695 | 148.80 | 114.00 | 11694.85| 10670.25| 39441.12| 35987.80
October 165.00 | 12250 | 17000 | 121.00 | 11945.00| 11090.15| 40392.22| 37415.83
November 169.40 | 11500 | 149.00 | 118.10 | 12158.80 | 11802.65| 41163.79| 40014.23
December 12400 | 10750 | 129.40 | 109.70 | 12293.90| 11832.30| 41809.96| 40135.37
January 2020 | 14850 | 112,05 | 147.25 | 11350 | 12430.50 | 11929.60 | 42273.87| 40476.55
February 14400 | 10000 | 131.75 | 106.80 | 12246.70| 11175.05| 41709.30| 38219.97
March 117.75 62.25 | 12480 |  65.05 | 11433.00| 7511.10| 39083.17 | 25638.90

Based on the closing quotation of Rs.69.40 as at 31.3.2020 at NSE Mumbai, the market capitalization
of the company was Rs.109.33Crore.

SHARE DETAILS
The Company’s Equity Shares are listed on the following Stock Exchanges .

Exchange Stock Code Exchange Stock Code
BSE Limited 532674 National Stock Exchange of India Limited BASML
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers "Exchange Plaza”

Dalal Street, Mumibai 400 001 Bandra-Kurla Complex

Bandra (E) Mumbai 400 051

The company has paid Annual Listing Fees for the year 2020 - 2021.
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Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments

The company has notissued GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments.

DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES

The shares of the company are in compulsory demat segment. The company’s shares are available for
tfrading in the depository systems of both the National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and the
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). Members have option to hold their shares in demat
form (i.e electronic mode) either through the NSDL or CDSL. ISIN allotfted to our company is
INE186H01014.

SHARE TRANSFER AGENT

Link Intime India Private Limited, Phone : (0422)2314792,2315792
Surya, 35, Mayflower Avenue, Behind Senthil Nagar Fax . (0422) 2314792
Sowripalayam Road, Coimbatore - 641 028 E-mail : coimbatore@linkintime.co.in

Share Transfer documents, Non Receipt of share certificates sent for tfransfer, nomination forms and

change of address may directly be sent to the above address.

SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM

The Share Transfers in physical form were discontinued w.e.f 1.4.2019 as per SEBI guidelines.
Transmission/Transposition requests, if any, which are in physical form are returned within 30 days from
the date of receipt if they are in order. The same are approved by the Share Transfer Committee who
usually meets, ifneeded.

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 31.3.2020

Category No. of Shares Held Percentage of Shareholding
Promoter’s Holding 87,561,250 55.55
Banks/Fls/Mutual Funds - -

Private Corporate Bodies 30,95.,409 19.65
Indian Public 38,19,396 24.24
NRI/OCBs 88.214 0.56
Total 1,57,54,269 100.00
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PLANT LOCATIONS:

Spinning Units

Nadukandanur Pirivu, Morepatty Post
Vadamadurai, Dindigul 624 802.
Tamilnadu

Velvarkottai, Dindigul Trichy National Highway
45, Vedasandur Taluk
Dindigul 624 803. Tamilnadu

Weaving Unit

Knitting Unit

Karanampet - Paruvai Road
Paruvai Post, Coimbatore - 641 658

Karanampet - Paruvai Road
Paruvai Post, Coimbatore - 641 658

Processing Unit

Factory H-11, E-12 & R-44
SIPCOT Industrial Growth Estate
Perundurai, Erode 638 052

Garment Unit Retail Unit

Pallodam Hitech Weaving Park
Sukkampalayam Village
K' N Puram (Po) Palladam- 641 662

252, Mettupalayam Road
Coimbatore - 641 043

Windmill Units

Irukandurai & Dhanakarkulam Villages
Radhapuram Taluk
Tirunelveli District, Tamilnadu

Chinnapudur Village
Dharapuram Taluk
Erode District, Tamilnadu

Melkaraipatti & Kottathurai Villages
Palani Taluk Dindigul District
Tamilnadu

Address for Correspondence

All investor related queries and complaints may be sent to the following address:

The Company Secretary,
Bannari Amman Spinning Mills Limited,
Regd. Office: 252, Mettupalayam Road, Coimbatore - 641 043
E-mail: shares@bannarimills.com
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CREDITRATINGS

BANNARI AMMAN SPINNING MILLS LTD

Credit ratings obtained by the Company and revisions thereto during the financial year 2019 - 20
for credit facilities availed by the Company from Banks are as follows :

Rating Agency

Communication No

Nature of facility

Rating

Rating action

CARE Ratings
Limited

CARE/CMBO/RL/
2019-20/1114
at: 3.2.2020

Long-term Bank

CARE BBB+; Negative

Revised from CARE

facilities (Triple B Plus; BBB+; Stable (Triple B
Outlook: Negative) plus; Outlook:
Stable)
Short term Bank CARE A3 + Reaffirmed
facilities (A Three Plus)
Long-term/Short term | CARE BBB+; Revised from CARE
Bank facilities Negative/ /CARE BBB+; Stable/CARE

A3+ (Triple B Plus;
Outlook: Negative /
A Three Plus)

A3+ (Triple B Plus;
Qutlook : Stable/A
Three Plus)

AUDITORS FEES ON CONSOLIDATED BASIS

The total fees for all services paid by the Company and its subsidiaries on consolidated basis to the
Statutory Auditors during the year2019-20is as follows :

(in Rupees)
Holding Company Subsidiary companies
Payment of . -
S. No. {ees towards Bannari Amman Young Br<_:|nd Bannc.m Ar:nmc:n Bannari Ar.nmcn
Spinning Mills Limited Apparel Private Retails Private Trendz Private
Limited Limited Limited
1. Statutory Audit & Limited
Review 22,50,000 8.,00,000 1,00,000 1,00,000
2. Taxation matters - = - -
3. Otherservices - - - -

Coimbatore
15" September, 2020

By Order of the Board

SV ARUMUGAM
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN 00002458
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

COMPANY’S BUSINESS

The Company’s principal line of business is manufacturing and marketing of Cotton Yarn, Woven and
Knitted fabrics, Home Textiles, Knitted Garments and Processing of fabrics. The Company has two
spinning units near Dindigul, Tamilnadu with an installed capacity of 145440 spindles, Weaving and
Home Textiles units at Karanampettai near Palladam with an installed capacity of 153 looms, Processing
unit at SIPCOT, Perundurai with an installed capacity to process 5400 tonnes of fabric per annum,
Knitting unit at Karanampettai near Pallodam with installed capacity to produce 10800 tonnes of
knitted fabric per annum, Garment units at Palladam Hi-tech weaving park and 28 Windmills with an
installed capacity of 25.05 MW green power which is entirely used for captive consumption.

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

India’s textiles sector is one of the oldest industries in the Indian economy, dating back to several
centuries.

The industry is extremely varied, with hand-spun and hand-woven textiles sectors at one end of the
spectrum, while the capital-intensive sophisticated mills sector on the other end. The decenftralised
power looms/ hosiery and knifting sector forms the largest component in the textiles sector. The close
linkage of textiles industry to agriculture (for raw materials such as cotton) and the ancient culture and
fraditions of the country in ferms of textiles makes it unique in comparison to other industries in the
country. India’s textiles industry has a capacity to produce wide variety of products suitable for different
market segments, both within India and across the world.

India’s textiles industry contributed seven percent of the industry output (in value terms) in FY19. It
contributed two percent to the GDP of India, employed more than 45 million people directly and 60
million people in dllied sector in FY19. The sector contributed about 13 percent to India’s export
earningsin FY19.

OPPORTUNITIES

Indiais the largest producer of cotton in the world, second largest synthetic fibre producer andsecond
largest producer of textile and apparel products accounting for USD 36 billion of exports. Inspite of
having a strong production base, India’s share in global textile and apparel trade is very low as
compared to China and other developing Countries. Hence there is fremendous scope for India to
increase its market share in the world textile market. However COVID 2019 pandemic has resulted in
significant disruptions on the Indian Textile value chain due to Global market contraction and a
subdued domestic market.

At the same time the pandemic has opened up new opportunities for essential product categories
such as masks, PPEs and other meditech products. This presents textile and apparel manufacturers an
opportunity to enterinto aready global market that is expected to grow over the next few quarters.
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OUTLOOK

As the fall out from COVID 19 pandemic worsens, the sections most vulnerable to consumer sentiment
and discretionary spending are likely to be severely affected.

During FY 2019-20, the overall exports of Textile and Apparel items from India was affected by US-China
Trade war, Britain’s exit from European Union, Preferential access by developed nations to competing
Countries like Vietnam, Cambodia, Bangladesh eftc. The COVID-19 pandemic has worsened the
situation further and has disturbed the demand-supply situation of the Indian textiles industry. The
demand for textiles will face headwinds in both the markets, domestic and international. The closure of
retail stores and malls on account of lockdown situation across the nation will affect the industry ‘s sales.

However, on the brighter side, a number of countries around the world, such as the USA & Japan, have
decidedto learn lessons from this calamity and look for alternate production sources other than China.
India can capitalize on this situation and present itself as a credible alternative to increase its textile and
apparel exports share. Apart from US & Europe, there is significant scope for exports to Japan, Russia,
Korea which can be capitalized upon.

Now the demand for Hygiene textile would be very high. Any product whether it is apparel wear or
home textiles, knitted or woven, adults or kids, formal or casual, will have to have inbuilt Hygiene init. This
frust-building up will be key with consumers to regain business af the earliest.

RISKS AND CONCERNS

Availability of Cotton, the main raw material for manufacture of Cotton Yarn, is subject to the vagaries
of nature and the prices also fluctuate wildly based on supply/demand in the World market and
Government policy on export of Cotton. India does not have Free Trade Agreements (FTA) with
developed nations which puts it at a disadvantage over neighbouring countries such as Bangladesh,
Vietnam, Cambodiato name afew.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has adequate internal control procedures and systems commensurate with its size and
nature of its business for purchase of raw materials, plant and machinery, components and other items
and sale of goods. The checks and controls are reviewed by the Audit Committee for improvement in
each of these areas on a periodical basis. The internal control systems are improved and modified
continuously to meet with changes in business conditions, statutory and accounting requirements.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

The financial performance of the Company has been discussed at length in Director’s Report to the
Members.
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SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS FORTHE FINANCIALYEAR 2018-19 AND 2019-20

S. No. Ratios 31.3.2020 31.3.2019
1 Debtors turnover 5.19 6.86
2 Inventory turnover 3.51 2.55
3 Interest coverage 1.00 1.31
4 Currentratio 0.86 0.88
5 Debt equity ratio 2.16 2.62
6 Operating profit margin 7.05% 8.14%
7 Net profit margin 0.08% 1.93%

DETAILS OF ANY CHANGE IN RETURN ON NETWORTH AS COMPARED TO IMMEDIATELY PREVIOUS
FINANCIALYEAR ALONG WITH A DETAILED EXPLANATION THEREOF

ReturnonNetworth  31.3.2019-6.23 (PAT/totalequity)

Return on Networth 31.3.2020-0.25

The RONW has reduced during FY 20 as the performance of the Company suffered due to variety of
reasons which hit the textile industry in general which included USA-China Trade war, poor demand in
export market, pricing pressure in domestic market etc.

MEDIUM TERM AND LONG TERM STRATERGIES

The Company currently manufactures Cotton yarn, Knitted fabric, Grey and bleached woven fabric,
made ups, Processed knit fabric and Apparel products for men, women and kids. The medium and long
term strategies that will be initiated by the Company are discussed below.

CottonYarn:

The Spinning units presently produce about 90 tonnes of cotton yarn per day out of which hosiery
(knitted) yarn forms a major portion. The Company apart from traditional markets is also exploring new
marketsin both domestic and export segments to improve sales.

Knitted fabric :

The Knitting unit presently produces about 20 to 25 tonnes of fabric per day. Production is against orders
and emphasis will be on producing value added fabric (Lycra).

Woven fabric :

Production of fabric is generally against orders. A portion of fabric produced is transferred to Home
Textile division for manufacture of value added products. Efforts are underway to identify new markets.
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Home Textiles:

The main products are bleached fabric and madeups like bed linen products meant mainly for exports.
Home textiles is one of the focus areas for the Company and efforts are taken to produce meditech
products particularly in view of Covid 19 pandimec.

Retail division:

The Retail division focuses on Inner wear & Active wear formen, women and kids. It has a wide range of
products manufactured using advanced precision technology from Organic cotton.

By Order of the Board

S V ARUMUGAM
Coimbatore Chairman & Managing Director
15" September, 2020 DIN 00002458
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DECLARATION ON CODE OF CONDUCT
To

The Members of
Bannari Amman Spinning Mills Limited

In compliance with the requirements of Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges, | declare that
the Board of Directors and members of senior management have affirmed the compliance with the
code of conduct during the financial yearended 31.3.2020.

By Order of the Board

. SV ARUMUGAM
Coimbatore Chairman and Managing Director
15" September, 2020 DIN 00002458

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To

The Members of
Bannari Amman Spinning Mills Limited
(CIN : L17111TZ1989PLC002476)

I have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by M/s Bannari Amman Spinning
Mills Limited (‘the company”), for the year ended on 31" March, 2020 as referred in Regulation 15(2) of the
Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements (LODR)
Regulations,2015.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. My
examination was limited to a review of the procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the
Company for ensuring the compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance as stipulatedin the
said Listing Regulations. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the
Company.

In My opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me and based
on the representations made by the Directors and the Management, | certify that the Company has
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Securities Exchange Board of
India (SEBI) Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

| further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

R. Dhanasekaran
Company Secretary in Practice
Coimbatore FCS 7070 / CP 7745
15" September, 2020 ICSI UDIN:FO07070B000715019
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members of

BANNARI AMMAN SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

CIN: L17111TZ1989PLC002476

Registered office : 252, Mettupalayam Road, Coimbatore - 641 043.

| have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the
Directors of Bannari Amman Spinning Mills Limited having CIN:L17111T21989PLC002476 and having
registered office at 252, Mettupalayam Road, Coimbatore - 641 043 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the
Company’), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in
accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and
explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, | hereby certify that none of the Directors on
the Board of the Company for the Financial Year ending on 31 March, 2020 have been debarred or
disqualified from being appointed or contfinuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / confinuity of every Director on the Board is the
responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these
based on my verification.

R. Dhanasekaran
Company Secretary in Practice
Coimbatore FCS 7070 / CP 7745
15" September, 2020 ICSI UDIN:FO07070B000715041
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To

The Members of BANNARI AMMAN SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Bannari Amman Spinning Mills
Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the Statement
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the (Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, and its profit, total
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Bassis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
In addition to the matter described in the material uncertainty related to Going Concern section of
our report, we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicatedin ourreport.
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Sr. No.

Key Audit Matter

Auditor’s Response

Determination of Net Realisable Value of
certain finished goods

The Company has inventory of certain
finished goods aggregating Rs.2,864.63
lakhs, which, as per the accounting
policy for valuation of inventory in
Note 2.4, are valued at lower of cost
and netrealizable value.

Determination of the net realisable
value by Management involves certain
element of judgment involving
consideration of voldatility in selling price
of garments stock (finished goods), past
tfrends of discounts applied for disposal
of old inventory, estimated fashion
frends and market conditions, efc.

Any change in the assumptions
considered by the Management would
result in an impact in the margins in the
year of disposal of the inventory or
change in assumption.

Principal audit procedures performed

We have performed the following procedures :

a.

Evaluated the design and implementation of
the relevant internal controls and the operating
effectiveness of such internal controls in
determining the net realisable value and
assessing if the same is higher than cost or
requiring adjustment to cost of such finished
goods.

Obtained an understanding of the significant
judgements applied by the management in
determination of the net realizable values of the
finished goods and the relevant workings and
for sample selected we performed the
following procedures:

e Conducted a refrospective fest of
comparing the net realisable value
determined by the management in the
previous year with the sale values of such
finished goods in the current year to
evaluate if the assumptions considered
were reasonable.

° Compared the net realisable value
determined at the year-end with any
instance of sale occurring for such
inventory after the year end / latest
realization to assess the reasonableness of
the assumptions considered by the
management.

° Compared the actual costs incurred to sell
affer the year end / based on the latest
sale fransaction to assess the
reasonableness of the cost to sell that was
estimated and considered by the
management,

° Compared the cost of the finished goods
with the estimated net realisable value
and checked if the finished goods were
recorded at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.
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Sr. No. Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response

2 Existence of Inventories balance Principal audit procedure performed

We have not been able fo aftend We have carried out following procedures with
physical verification of inventories as at respectto test of existence of Inventories:

the year-end date. Management’s
physical verification of Inventories was
not physically observed by us
subsequent to the year-end due to the

restrictions imposed on account of
COVID-19. e Participated and observed the physical

verification of inventory conducted by
management subsequent to year-end through
video calls.

e Evaluated the design and implementation of
the controls over physical verification of
inventories and tested the operating
effectiveness of these controls.

e \Verified the roll back procedures prepared by
the management from the date of count to
March 31,2020

° Circulated instruction to independent
chartered accountant firm to perform physical
verification of inventory and obtained the
verification reports directly from the
independent chartered accountant firm.

e FEvaluated the differences identified by the
independent firm during their physical
verification of inventories and it was noted that
there were no material differences.

Information Otherthan the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
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The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Director’s
Report including annexures to Director’s Report and Corporate Governance, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other informatfion and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
reportin thisregard.
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Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Actwith
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and otherirregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a tfrue and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either infends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no redlistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not @
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, infentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant o the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls systemin place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates andrelated disclosures made by the management.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw aftention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and eventsin a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and (i) fo evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
infernal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 1o bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulatfion precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
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The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31,2020 from being appointed as a directorin terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company’sinternal financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, asamended,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of ourinformation and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements;

i)  The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts;

i) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be fransferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.,

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Balaji M. N.

Partner

Bengaluru (Membership No. 202094)
September 15, 2020 (UDIN:20202094AAAADM1047)

49



% BANNARI AMMAN SPINNING MILLS LTD

ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph T(Hunder ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
ourreport of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Bannari Amman Spinning
Mills Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the yearended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adeqguate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
fimely preparation of reliable financial information, as required underthe Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the*Guidance Note™)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed
under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate infernal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
infernal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
infernal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion onthe Company’sinternal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
fransactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect
onthe financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial conftrols over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
orthat the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2020, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India.
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Balaiji M. N.

Partner

Bengaluru (Membership No. 202094)
September 15, 2020 (UDIN:20202094AAAADM1047)
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ANNEXURE "B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of
evendate)

)

i

iii)

iv)

V)

Vi)

Vii)
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a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of plant, property and equipment.

b) The Company has a program of verification of fixed assets to cover all the items in a phased manner
over a period of 3 years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, no fixed assets were physically verified by the
Management during the year.

c) Accordingto the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us and based
on the examination of the registered sale deed provided to us, we report that, the title deeds,
comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold, are held in the name
of the Company as at the balance sheet date. In respect of immovable properties of land that have
been taken on lease and disclosed as plant, property and equipment in the financial statements and
the buildings constructed on such leasehold land, whose lease deeds have been pledged as security
for credit facilities taken from banks, the lease agreements are in the name of the Company, where the
Company is the lessee in the agreement based on the confirmations directly received by us from
banks.

As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at
reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act,
2013.

The Company has not granted any loans hence provisions of Section 185 is not applicable. The Company
has complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of making investments
and providing guarantees.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposit
during the year hence the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 is
not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended and prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section
(1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed
accounts and cost records have been maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination
of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate orcomplete.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of Customs, Goods and Services Tax, Cess and
other material statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities.

b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income-tax, Duty of Customs, Goods and Services Tax, Cess and other material statutory duesin arrears
asatMarch 31,2020 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

c) Details of dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty and Value Added Tax
which have notbeen deposited as on March 31,2020 on account of disputes are given below:
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Name Nature Forum where Period to Amount
of of dispute is which the involved
Statute Dues pending amount relates (Rs. in Lakhs)

Central Claim for refund CESTAT Chennai Assessment Year
Excise of duty 2008-09, 2009-10
Act, 1944 2017-18 69.61

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of dues to banks. The Company has not has taken any loans from financial
institutions, Government orhas notissued any debentures.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments). The Company has obtained term loans during the year and the same have been applied for
the purposes for which they were obtained.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by
the Company and no fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported
during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid /
provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the CARO 2016 Order is not
applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to usthe Company isin compliance
with Sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all fransactions with the related
parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone Financial
Statements asrequired by the applicable accounting standards.

During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (xiv) of the CARO 2016 Order is not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has
not enfered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them and hence
provisions of Section 192 of Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-I1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Balaji M. N.
Partner

Bengaluru (Membership No. 202094)
September 15, 2020 (UDIN:20202094AAAADM1047)
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BANNARI AMMAN SPINNING MILLS LTD

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2020

(Rs. in Lakhs)

. Note As at As at
Particulars No. | March 31,2020 | March 31,2019
ASSETS
1 Non-current assets
a) Property, plant and equipment 3A 56,709.33 58,887.52
b) Capital work-in-progress 3A - 131.93
c) Right of use assets 31 1562.97 -
d) Financial assets 4
i) Investments 4.1 2,644.37 2,706.86
e) Other non-current assets 5 1,392.26 996.59
Total non-current assets 60,898.93 62,722.90
2 Current assets
a) Inventories 6 24,872.01 25,533.39
b) Financial assets 7
i) Trade receivables
A) Trade receivables - Unsecured 7.1 16,411.88 17,697.70
B) Trade receivables - Credit impaired 7.1 - -
i) Cash and cash equivalents 7.2 2,656.94 566.28
i)  Bank balances other than (i) above 7.2 167.11 264.75
iv) Loans 7.3 17.79 30.94
v) Ofther financial assets 7.4 1,742.09 1,474.83
c) Current tax assets 7.5 166.99 305.00
d) Other current assets 8 2,322.75 3,334.03
e) Assets classified as held for sale 3C 56.72 56.72
Total current assets 48,414.28 49,263.64
Total assets (1+2) 109,313.21 111,986.54
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
a) Equity share capital 9 1,675.43 1,675.43
b) Other equity 10 29,096.74 29,334.00
Total equity 30,672.17 30,909.43
Liabilities
2 Non-current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities 11
i) Borrowings 11.1 18,345.81 21,479.24
i) Lease liabilities 31 83.15 -
b) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 29B 2,699.91 2,670.34
c) Other non-current liabilities 12 904.30 1,083.25
Total non - current liabilities 22,033.17 25,232.83
3  Current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities 13
i) Borrowings 13.1 37.,995.46 40,196.33
i) Trade payables
a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 13.2 809.51 775.96
b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 13.2 10,482.05 8,145.90
il Lease liabilities 31 80.28 -
iv) Ofther financial liabilities 13.3 6,237.22 5,438.24
b) Provisions 14 135.33 552.97
c) Other current liabilities 15 868.02 734.88
Total current liabilities 56,607.87 55,844.28
Total equity and liabilities (1+2+3) 109,313.21 111,986.54
See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP S V ARUMUGAM K SADHASIVAM
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director Director
DIN 00002458 DIN 00610037
BALAJIM N N KRISHNARAJ S SESHADRI
Partner Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Bengaluru ACS No. 20472 Coimbatore
15" September, 2020 15" September, 2020
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BANNARI AMMAN SPINNING MILLS LTD

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(Rs. in Lakhs)

] Note For the For the
Particulars year ended year ended
No. March 31,2020 | March 31,2019
| Revenue from operations 16 92.,497.28 99.982.78
Il Other Income 17 1.847.31 880.38
Il Total revenue (I + 1) 94,344.59 100,863.16
IV Expenses
a) Cost of materials consumed 18A 65,750.09 69,287.92
b) Purchase of stock-in-frade 18B 217.47 110.75
c) Changes in stock of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock in trade 19 (1,009.50) (1,659.83)
d) Employee benefit expense 20 8,774.01 9,130.72
e) Finance costs 21 6,495.71 6,235.74
f) Depreciation and amortisation expenses 3A & 31 2,831.16 3,006.32
g) Ofher expenses 22 11.262.16 12,845.38
Total expenses 94,321.10 98,956.00
V  Profit before tax (il - IV) 23.49 1,907.16
VI Tax expense
1) Current tax
a) Current tax expense/(reversal) including earlier years 29A - 309.00
2) Deferred tax
a) Deferred tax 29A 3.59 (100.98)
b) MAT credit 29A - (309.00)
c) MAT credit lapsed written off 29A - 74.05
Total tax expense 3.59 (26.93)
VIl Profit for the year (V - V) 19.90 1,934.09
VIl Other comprehensive income/(loss) 57.30 (9.29)
A D) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit liabilities/(asset) 83.28 (11.19)
b) Gain/(loss) on equity instruments designated at FVTOCI - (1.01)
i) Income tax relafing to items that will not be reclassified to profit or losy (25.98) 291
IX  Total comprehensive income for the year (VII + VIII) 77.20 1,924.80
X Earnings per equity share: in Rs. 28
1) Basic 0.13 12.28
2) Diluted 0.13 12.28
See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP SV ARUMUGAM K SADHASIVAM
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director Director
DIN 00002458 DIN 00610037
BALAJIM N N KRISHNARAJ S SESHADRI
Partner Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Bengaluru ACS No. 20472 Coimbatore

15" September, 2020

15" September, 2020
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BANNARI AMMAN SPINNING MILLS LTD

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(Rs. in Lakhs)

a) Equity share capital Amount
Balance as at April 1,2018 1.575.43
Balance as at March 31, 2019 1,575.43
Balance as at April 1,2019 1,675.43
Balance as at March 31, 2020 1,575.43
b) Other equity (Rs. in Lakhs)
Items of Other
- Retained | Comprehensive Income
Particulars Secur.mes General earnings Remeu::,emems Equity Total other
premium reserve (refer of the defined instruments equity
account benefit through other
note 10) liabilities/ comprehensive
(asset) income
Balance as at April 1,2018 7,930.76 | 16,295.22 | 3,515.45 | (32.85) 4.50 27,713.08
Profit for the year - -1 1,934.09 - - 1,934.09
Cash dividends - - | (252.07) - - (252.07)
Tax on dividends - - (51.81) - - (51.81)
Other comprehensive income (net of taxes) - - - (8.28) (1.07) 9.29)
Balance as at March 31, 2019 7,930.76 | 16,295.22 | 5,145.66 | (41.13) 3.49 29,334.00
Balance as at April 1, 2019 7,930.76 | 16,295.22 | 5,145.66 | (41.13) 3.49 29,334.00
Profit for the year - - 19.90 - - 19.90
Impact on account of initial application of Ind AS 116
(Refer Note 31) - - (10.26) - - (10.26)
Cash dividends (Refer Note 9(iii)) = - (252.07) - - (252.07)
Tax on dividends (Refer Note 9(iii) - - (52.13) - - (52.13)
Other comprehensive income (net of taxes) = - - 57.30 - 57.30
Balance as at March 31, 2020 7,930.76 | 16,295.22 | 4,851.10 16.17 3.49 29,096.74
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP S V ARUMUGAM K SADHASIVAM
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director Director
DIN 00002458 DIN 00610037
BALAJIM N N KRISHNARAJ S SESHADRI
Partner Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
ACS No. 20472
Bengaluru Coimbatore

15" September, 2020
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BANNARI AMMAN SPINNING MILLS LTD

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ,
(Rs. in Lakhs)

. For the year ended For the year ended
Parficulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 23.49 1,907.16
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expenses 2,831.16 3,005.32
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (1,709.18) (62.06)
Profit / (loss) on sale of investments 3.83 (7.32)
Finance costs 6,495.71 6,235.74
Interest income (138.13) (137.13)
Allowance for doubtful frade receivables and
bad debts written off 1569.57 53.27
Net unrealised exchange (gain) (278.01) (473.97)
] 736495 ] 8,613.85
Operating profit before working capital changes 7.388.44 10,521.01
Changes in working capital:
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating assets:
Financial assets
Trade receivables 1,160.75 (6.259.27)
Loans 13.15 (8.65)
Ofther financial assets 220.53 92.15
Non-financial assets
Inventories 661.38 2,066.69
Other non-financial assets 698.89 558.46
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 2,369.70 (1,037.06)
Ofther financial liabilities 17.81) (72.02)
Non-financial liabilities
Provisions (108.64) 122.07
Other non-financial liabilities 114.15 125.68
5,112.10 (4,411.95)
12,500.54 6,109.06
Net income tax paid (170.99) (382.37)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 12,329.55 5,726.69
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure on property plant and equipment,
including capital advances (1.752.77) (2,469.48)
Margin money deposits 98.00 (262.00)
Investments made in subsidiary - (2.00)
Sales of other investments 58.66 32.79
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 3,043.04 316.25
Interest received 124.43 134.37
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B) ] 1,571.36] | (2,250.07)
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BANNARI AMMAN SPINNING MILLS LTD

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Contd...)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

. For the year ended For the year ended
Parficulars March 31,2020 March 31,2019
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from non-current borrowings 2,200.00 1,060.00
Repayment of non-current borrowings (4,663.85) (3,243.57)
Increase / (decrease) in working capital borrowings (2,200.87) 4,989.65
Payment of dividend including fax thereon (304.20) (303.89)
Repayment of operating lease liabilities (101.55) -
Inferest paid on lease liabilities (22.08) -
Finance costs paid 6,717.70) (6,313.10)
Net cash flow used in financing activities (C) (11,810.25) 3,810.91)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents (A+B+C) 2,090.66 (334.29)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 566.28 900.57
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year * 2,656.94 566.28 |
Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents with the ] ‘
Balance Sheet:
Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet (Refer Note 7.2) 2,824.05 831.03
Less: Bank balances not considered as cash and cash
equivalents, as defined in Ind AS 7 Cash Flow Statements:
i) In earmarked accounts
- Margin money deposits (164.00) (262.00)
- Unpaid dividends account @11 (2.75)
Cash and cash equivalents as per Cash Flow Statement 2,656.94 566.28
* Comprises:
a) Cash on hand 6.17 7.96
b) Cheques/drafts on hand 3.50 161.00
¢) Balances with banks:
i) Incurrent accounts 617.27 397.32
i) In deposit accounts 2,030.00 -
Total | 2,656.94 566.28
See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP SV ARUMUGAM K SADHASIVAM
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director Director
DIN 00002458 DIN 00610037
BALAJIM N N KRISHNARAJ S SESHADRI
Partner Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Bengaluru ACS No. 20472 Coimbatore

15" September, 2020
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BANNARI AMMAN SPINNING MILLS LTD

Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note Particulars
No.
1. Corporate Information
Bannari Amman Spinning Mills Limited (the “"Company™) is a infegrated textile company engaged in the
manufacture of cotton yarn, knitted & woven fabrics, pocessing of fabrics, finished garments, home textiles
and wind power generation. It also has retail division under the brand name "BITZ". The company was
incorporatedin the year 1989 andissued shares to the public in the year 2006.
The standalone financial statements were approved forissue by the Board of Directors on August 13,2020.
2. Significant Accounting Policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
2.1 Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements
i Compliance withInd AS
'The standalone financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) (Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015) and other relevant provisions of the Act as amended from time to
fime.
The Company has consistently applied accounting policies to all periods.
ii)  Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
a) Certain property, plant and equipment, financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
value
b) Definedbenefit plans—plan assets measured at fair value
c) Assetsheldforsale —measured af fair value less cost to sell
2.2 Segmentreporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The board of directors of the Company assesses the financial performance and
position of the Company, and makes strategic decisions. The board of directors, which has been identified as
being the chief operating decision maker.
23 Use of estimates

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, the directors of the Company are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or
inthe period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period that may have a risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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BANNARI AMMAN SPINNING MILLS LTD

Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note
No.

Particulars

24

25

a) Impairment of investments in subsidiaries

The Company reviews its carrying value of investmentsin subsidiaries at cost, annually, or more frequently
when there is an indication forimpairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment lossis accounted for.

b) Usefullives of property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting
period. This assessment may resultin change in the depreciation expense in future periods.

c) Deferredtax assets

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that itis no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
assettoberecovered.

d) Employee benefits

The cost of defined benefit plans are determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation
involves making assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of return on assets, future salary
increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the long-term nature of these plans, such
estimates are subject to significant uncertainty.

e) Impactof Covid-19

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and the resulting lockdown enforced from March 23, 2020 has
affected the Company’s regular operations. The Company has considered the possible effects that
may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of Property, plant and
equipment, Inventories, Receivables and Other assets. In developing the assumptions relating to the
possible future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the
Company, as at the date of approval of these financial results has used internal and external sources on
the expected future performance of the Company. The Company has evaluated its liquidity position,
recoverability and based on current estimates expects the carrying amount of these assets will be
recovered. The impact of COVID-19 onthe Company’s financial results may differ from that estimated as
atthe date of approval of these financial results.

Inventories

Inventories are valued af lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of raw materials, Packing materials,
Stores and Spares and consumables are valued at cost on First-In-First-Out (FIFO) basis. Value of finished goods
and work-in-progress are determined on First-In-First-Out (FIFO) basis and include appropriate share of
overheads.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits with banks other than deposits
pledged with government authorities and margin money deposits.

Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank
borrowings are generally considered to be financing activities. However, where bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand form an integral part of an entity’s cash management, bank overdrafts are included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents. A characteristic of such banking arrangements is that the
bank balance offen fluctuates from being positive to overdrawn.
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BANNARI AMMAN SPINNING MILLS LTD

Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note
No.

Particulars

2.6

2.7

2.8

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is
adjusted for the effects of fransactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated based on the available information.

Taxesonincome

a)

b)

)

a)

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from *profit before
tax” as reported in the standalone statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Company’s current fax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted and are applicable as af
the end of the reporting period. In the absence of adequate taxable profits, the Company is required to
pay Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) on the book profits, as adjusted for certain provisions.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the tfemporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a fransaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

MAT paid in accordance with the tax laws, if any, which gives future economic benefits in the form of
adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the
Company will pay normal tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as a deferred tax asset in the Balance
sheet whenitis highly probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow fo the Company.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
ofthe asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is seftled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax forthe year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to
items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and
rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax
authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use,
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BANNARI AMMAN SPINNING MILLS LTD

Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note
No.

Particulars

2.9

2.10

including relevant borrowing costs for qualifying assets and any expected costs of decommissioning.
Expenditure incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put info operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the periodin which the costs
are incurred. Major shut-down and overhaul expenditure is capitalised as the activities undertaken
improves the economic benefits expected to arise from the asset.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the contfinued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset andis recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Property, plant and equipment except freehold land held for use in the production, supply or
administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulatedimpairmentlosses, if any.

Freehold land and leasehold land where the lease is convertible to freehold land under lease
agreements at future dates at no additional cost, are not depreciated.

b) Capital work-in-progress

Projects under which assets are not ready for their inftended use and other capital work-in-progress are
carried at cost, comprising direct cost andrelated incidental expenses.

Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their infended use. Depreciable amount for
assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value.
Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties
under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using straight-line method as per the
useful life prescribedin Schedule Il to the Companies Act,2013.

The Company reviews the residual value, useful lives and depreciation method annually and, if
expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting
estimate on a prospective basis.

Leases

Ind AS 116 - Leases, has become applicable effective annual reporting period beginning April 1, 2019. The
Company has adopted the standard beginning April 1, 2019, using the modified retrospective approach for
transition. Accordingly, the Company has not restated the comparative information, instead the cumulative
effect of initially applying the standard has been recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings as on April 1,2019.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The
estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and
equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and
adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, company’sincremental borrowing rate. Generally, the company uses its incremental borrowing
rate asthe discount rate.

Revenue recognition

Effective from 1st April 2018 the Company has adopted Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers.
The company has adopted full retrospective adoption in which standard is applicable to all the periods
presented, including comparative period. The revenue isrecognised as follows :
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BANNARI AMMAN SPINNING MILLS LTD

Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note
No.

Particulars

2.11

Revenue is recognised when control of the goods and services are transferred to the customer at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, taking info account contractually defined terms of payment. The
Company is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue
arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks. However, Goods and
Services tax (GST) are not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value
addedto the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded fromrevenue.

i)  Saleofgoods:

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when conftrol of the goods is transferred to the Customers.
Revenue from the sale of goodsis measured at the fair value of the considerationreceived orreceivable,
net of returns and allowances, frade discounts and volume rebates.

ii) Time and material:

Revenue from time and material contracts are recognised as and when services are rendered o the
customer. These are based on the efforts spent and rates agreed with the customer. Revenue from the
end of the lastinvoicing to the reporting date isrecognised as unbilled revenue.

iii) Dividend andinterestincome:

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right o receive payment has
been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
the amount of income can be measured reliably).Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can
be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount oninitialrecognition.

iv) Otheroperatingrevenue:

Income incidental to exports such as duty drawback, Merchandise Exports from India Scheme (MEIS),
income from import entittement and premium on sale of such entitlement are recognised when thereis a
reasonability of collection.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits include provident fund, employee state insurance, gratuity fund and compensated
absences.

a. Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to defined contribution Retirement Benefit Plans are recognised as an expense when
employeeshave rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit Retirement Benefit Plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the
projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annuall
reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to
the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected in the
balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which
they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in
retained earnings andis not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit orlossin the
period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of
the periodto the net defined benefit liability or asset.
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2.12

b. Definedbenefit costs are categorised as follows

- service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and seftlements);

- netinterest expense orincome; and
- remeasurement

For defined benefit plan, in the form of gratuity fund, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the
Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each Balance Sheet date.
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they occur.
The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the present value of the defined
benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost, as reduced by the fair value of scheme
assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the present value of available
refunds and reductions in future conftributions to the scheme. The gratuity fund is maintained with Life
Insurance Corporation of India.

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item
‘Employee benefits expenses’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

The refirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplusin the
Company’s defined benefit plan. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of
any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to
the plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the
offer of the termination benefit and when the entity recognises any related restructuring costs.

c. Shori-term and otherlong term employee benefits

Aliability isrecognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expectedto be paidin exchange forthat service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paidin exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long term employee benefits are measured at the present value
of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in respect of services
provided by employees up to the reporting date.

Foreign currency transactions and translations
i Functional and presentation currency

[tfems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The
financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

ii) Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currency are franslated intfo the respective functional currencies using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the respective fransactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such fransactions and from the franslation at the exchange rates
prevailing at reporting date of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss and reported within foreign exchange gains/ (losses). Also
refernote 2.1(1).
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2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currencies are not
retranslated. Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis. This includes changes in the
fair value of foreign exchange derivative instruments, which are accounted at fair value through profit or
loss.

Borrowings and borrowing cost

Borrowings are recognised initially af fair value, net of fransaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest rate method. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for atleast 12 months after the reporting date.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily fake a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their infended use or
sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in statement of profit and lossin the period in which they are incurred.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) affer tax by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit /
(loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income relating to the
dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving
basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued
onthe conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required o settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable
estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are not discounted to their present value
and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date.
These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.
Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the Notes.

Financial instruments

All financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset (other than financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss) are
included in the fair value of the financial assets. Purchase or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way frade) are
recognised on frade date. While, financial liabilities like loans and borrowings and payables are recognised
net of directly attributable fransaction costs.

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial instruments of the Company are classified in the
following categories: non-derivative financial assets comprising amortised cost, equity instruments at FVTOCI
or fair value through profit andloss account (FVTPL) and financial liabilities at amortised cost or FVTPL.

The classification of financial instruments depends on the objective of the business model for which it is held.
Management determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition.
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a)

Non-derivative financial assets

)

i)

iiii)

Financial assets at amortised cost
A financial asset shallbe measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

a) thefinancial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in
orderto collect contfractual cash flows and

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal andinterest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months after the
reporting date which are presented as non-current assets. Financial assets are measured
initially at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently carried at amortized cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or
where appropriate, ashorter period, to the gross carrying amount oninitial recognition.

Financial assets at amortised cost are represented by trade receivables, security deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, employee and other advances and eligible current and non-
current assets.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those
financial assets classified as at FVIPL. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is
includedinthe "Otherlncome” line item.

Equity instruments at FVTOCI

All equity instruments are measured at fair value. Equity instruments held for trading is classified as
FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value in OCI. The Company makes such election on an instrument-
by-instrument basis.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on
the instrument, excluding dividend are recognised in OCI which is not subsequently recycled to
statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

FVTPLIis aresidual category for financial assets. Any financial asset which does not meet the criteria
for categorization as at amortised cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as FVTPL

In addition, the Company may elect to designate the financial asset, which otherwise meets
amortised cost or FVOCI criteria, as FVIPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised
in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in
the ‘Other income’ line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVIPL is recognised when the
Company’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits
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b)

iv)

associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of
part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measuredreliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company
recognises ifs retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceedsreceived.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss
on disposal of that financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an
option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing
involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part
that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been
recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to
be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of
those parts.

Non-derivative financial liabilities

)

i)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost represented by borrowings, frade and other payables are
initially recognized at fair value, and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate method.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘Finance costs’ line
item. The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss.

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised
cost at the end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined
based on the amortised cost of the instruments and are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss. The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
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2.17

foreign currency and tfranslated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial
liabilities that are measured as at FVIPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair
value gains orlosses and is recognised in profit or loss.

i) Derecognition of non-derivative financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt
instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification
of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not atftributable to the financial difficulty of
the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment

a)

Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss. The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of
impairment loss allowance on trade receivable. The application of simplified approach does not require
the Company to frack changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at eachreporting date, right from its initial recognition.

Lifetime ECLs are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default
eventsthat are possible within 12-months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all shortfalls), discounted at
the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider :

)} All contfractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension etc.) over the
expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the
financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining
contractualterm of the financialinstrument.

i) Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractualterms.

As practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss on
portfolio of its trade receivable. The provision matrix is based onits historically observed default rates
over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At
every reporting date, the historically observed default rates are updated and changes in forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the year is recognised as
income/expense in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various
financialinstrumentsis described below:

Financial assets measured at amortised cost, confractual revenue receivable: ECL is presented as
an allowance, i.e. as an infegral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The
allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write off criteria, the Company
does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.
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2.18

2.19

b) Non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a non
financial asset or a group of non financial assets is impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company
estimates the amount of impairment loss.

Animpairmentloss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and recoverable
amount. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account. When the
Company considers that there are no redlistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts
are written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, then the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit orloss.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater of its value
in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets
are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use
that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating
unit”).

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that:(i) the Company will
comply with the conditions attached to them; and (ii) the grant willbe received.

Government grants related to revenue are recognised on a systematic basis in the statement of profit and loss
over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs which they are intended to compensate.
Such grants are deducted in reporting the related expense. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized
asincome over the expected useful life of the asset.

Where the Company receives non-monetary grants, the asset is accounted for on the basis of its acquisition
cost. In case a non-monetary asset is given free of cost it is recognised at a fair value. When loan or similar
assistance are provided by government or related institutions, with an interest rate below the current
applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is recognized as government rate. The loan or
assistance s initially recognized and measured at fair value and the government grant is measured as the
difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received.

Operating cycle

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of
assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as
12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.
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Non - current assets

4
4.1

Financial assets
Investments

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

Quoted investments (fully paid)

Investments in equity instruments - others

i) 250 (As af March 31, 2019 - 250) equity shares of Rs.10/- each in
Bannari Amman Sugars Limited 3.82 3.82
i) 34 (As at March 31, 2019 - 34) equity shares of Rs.10/- each
in Moil Limited 0.03 0.03
Total quoted investments 3.85 3.85
Il. Unquoted investments (fully paid)
. Investments in equity instruments - subsidiaries
i) 3.34,49,112 (As at March 31, 2019 - 3,34,49,112) equity shares of
Rs.10/- each in Young Brand Apparel Private Limited 2,606.00 2,606.00
i) 10,000 (As af March 31,2019 - 10,000) equity shares of Rs.10/- each
in Accel Apparels Private Limited (Wholly owned subsidiary) 1.00 1.00
i) 1,00,000 (As at March 31, 2019 - 1,00,000) equity shares of
Rs. 10/- each in Abirami Amman Designs Private Limited (Formerly
Abirami Amman Mills Private Limited) (Wholly owned subsidiary) 10.00 10.00
iv) 10,000 (As at March 31, 2019 - 10,000) equity shares of Rs.10/- each
in Bannari Amman Retails Private Limited (Wholly owned subsidiary) 1.00 1.00
V) 10,000 (As at March 31, 2019 - 10,000) equity shares of Rs.10/- each
in Bannari Amman Trendz Private Limited (Wholly owned subsidiary) 1.00 1.00
Il. Investments - others
i) Nil (As at March 31, 2019 - 54,740) Preference shares of
Anamallais Agencies Private Limited of Rs.100 each - 58.57
i) 6,443 (As at March 31, 2019 - 6,443) Preference Shares of Shiva
Automobile Private Limited of Rs. 100 each 5.10 5.10
i) 15,000 (As at March 31, 2019 - 15,000) Equity shares of Rs.10/- each in
OPG Metal Power Private Limited 1.50 1.50
iv) 1,32,700 (As at March 31, 2019 - 1,66,900) Equity shares of Rs.10/- each
in OPG Power Generation Private Limited 14.89 18.81
lll. Investments in Government securities
Kisan Vikas Patra 0.03 0.03
Total unquoted investments 2,640.52 2,703.01
Total Investments 2,644.37 2,706.86
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Mqrc: 3 ?,tzozo Mqrc: 3 10,‘2019
Aggregate amount of quoted investments 3.85 3.85
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 3.85 3.85
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 2,640.52 2,703.01
Aggregate market value of unquoted investments 2,640.52 2,703.01
5] Other non-current assets
Particulars As ot As o
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Security deposits paid 936.05 404.60
Capital advances 1.23 134.17
Other advances 206.02 248.89
Advance tax and tax deducted at Source (Net) 248.96 208.93
Total - Other non-current assets 1,392.26 996.59
Current Assets
6 Inventories
(At lower of cost and net realisable value)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Raw materials 12,163.71 13.690.83
Work-in-progress 1,645.35 1.442.74
Finished goods 10,467.95 9.661.06
Stores and spares 595.00 738.76
Total - Inventories 24,872.01 25,533.39
7 Financial assets
7.1  Trade receivables
Particulars As ot As ot
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
A) Trade receivable considered good - Unsecured 16,411.88 17.697.70
B) Trade receivable - Credit impaired 814.52 657.17
17,226.40 18,354.87
Less: Allowance for doubtful frade receivables (814.52) (657.17)
Total - Trade receivables 16,411.88 17,697.70
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7.2

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss on portfolio of its frade receivable. The provision
matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for
forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in
forward-looking estimates are analysed. The Company estimates the following matrix at the reporting date.

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Ageing
1-90 days 91-180 days > 180 days
Exports customers
Default rate - - 27.12%
PY - - 20.73%
Domestic customers
Default rate 2.71% 9.55% 15.00%
PY 1.09% 8.30% 17.73%
Movement in expected credit loss allowance
Particulars For the For the
year ended year ended

March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Balance af the beginning of the year 657.17 605.04
Movement in expected credit loss on tfrade receivables calculated at lifetime
expected credit losses 157.35 52.13
Balance at the end of the year 814.52 657.17

Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars As ot As o

March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
a) Cash on hand 6.17 7.96
b) Cheques/drafts on hand 3.50 161.00
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7.2 Cash and cash equivalents (Contd...)
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particul As at As at
arficulars March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
c) Balances with banks :
)] In current accounts 617.27 397.32
i) In deposit accounts 2,030.00 -
i) Inearmarked accounts
- Margin money deposits 164.00 262.00
- Unpaid dividend accounts 3.11 2.75
Total - Cash and cash equivalents 2,824.05 831.03
Of the above, balances that meet the definition of cash and cash equivalents
as per Ind AS 7 Cash Flow Statements 2,656.94 566.28
7.3 Loans
(Unsecured and considered good, unless stated otherwise)
Particul As at As at
arears March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Employee advance 17.79 30.94
Total - Loans 17.79 30.94
7.4  Other financial assets
(Unsecured and considered good, unless stated otherwise)
Particul As at As at
articulars March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
Accruals :
- Interest accrued on fixed deposits with banks 16.46 2.76
- TUF subsidy receivable 462.52 231.95
- Incentive/grant receivable 531.00 531.00
- Unbilled revenue (Refer Note (i) below) 488.60 422.09
Insurance claim receivable - 46.01
Derivative financial instruments 243.51 241.02
Total - Other financial assets 1,742.09 1,474.83
Note (i) Movement in unbilled revenue
Particul As at As at
arficuiars March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
Opening Balance 422.09 547.89
Add: Revenue recognised during the year 66.51 422.09
Less: Invoiced during the year - 458.93
Less: Reversal / adjustments during the year - 88.96
Closing Balance 488.60 422.09
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7.5

Current tax assets

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As ot As of
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Current tax assets (Advance tax & TDS for the year) 166.99 305.00
Total - Current tax assets 166.99 305.00
Other current assets
(Unsecured and considered good, unless stated otherwise)
Particulars As at As ot
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Prepaid expenses 466.56 44101
Balances with government authorities:
- Duty drawback receivable 247.73 225.91
- GSTreceivable 713.56 1,102.43
- ESlliquidated damage 7.58 7.58
Gratuity 131.98 17.22
Advance to suppliers 755.34 1,639.88
Total - Other current assets 2,322.75 3,334.03

Equity Share Capital

Particulars

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

Number Amount Number Amount
of shares in Lakhs of shares in Lakhs
a) Authorised :
i) Equity share capital
Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 1,60,00,000 1,600.00 1,60,00,000 1,600.00
ii) Preference share capital
Cumulative preference shares of Rs.100/- each 50,000 50.00 50,000 50.00
Total 1,60,50,000 1,650.00 1,60,50,000 1,650.00
b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up :
i) Equity share capital
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,57.,54,269 1,575.43 1,57,54,269 1,575.43
Total - Equity share capital 1,57,54,269 1,575.43 1,57,54,269 1,575.43
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)

Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period :

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Particulars Number Amount Number Amount
of shares in Lakhs of shares in Lakhs
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each
At the beginning of the year 1,57,54,269 1,5675.43 1,57,54,269 1,5675.43
Add: Issued during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,57,54,269 1,5675.43 1,567,54,269 1,5675.43

i)

iii)

Terms / rights attached to the equity shares:

The Company hasissued only one class of equity share having a face value of Rs. 10/- pershare. The holder of each
equity share is entitled fo one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity
shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution to all preferential creditors and
other creditors, in the order of priority. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by
shareholders. The company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by Board of
Directorsis subject to the approval of Shareholdersin the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Distributions made and proposed:

Dividendrecognized as distributions fo equity shareholders for the yearended March 31,2019 was Rs 1.60 per share.
The Board of Directors at its meeting held on May 30, 2019 had recommended a dividend of 16% (Rs.1.60 per equity
share of parvalue Rs 10 each). The proposal was approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on
August 19,2019, this has resulted in a cash outflow of Rs 303.88 lakhs, inclusive of corporate dividend tax of Rs 52.13
lakhs. Further, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on August 13,2020 have not proposed dividend.

iv) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the share capital:
Equity Shares
As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Name of the Shareholder Number of % of Number of % of
shares held holding shares held holding
Murugan Enterprise Private Limited 7.803,733 49.53% 7,803,733 49.53%
Gagandeep Credit Capital Private Limited 987,475 6.27% 987,475 6.27%
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10 Other Equity

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

1.  Securities premium account
Amounts received on issue of shares in excess of the par value has been
classified as securities premium.

Opening balance 7,930.76 7,930.76
Closing balance 7,930.76 7,930.76
2. General reserve
This represents appropriation of profit by the Company.
Opening balance 16,295.22 16,295.22
Closing balance 16,295.22 16,295.22
3. Retained earnings
Retained earnings comprise of the Company’s prior years undistributed
earnings after taxes.
Opening balance 5,145.66 3.515.45
Add : Profit for the current year 19.90 1,934.09
Less : Cash dividends (252.07) (252.07)
Less : Tax on dividends (62.13) (51.81)
Impact on account of initial application of Ind AS 116 (Refer Note 31) (10.26) -
Closing balance 4,851.10 5,145.66
4. Other comprehensive income
Other items of other comprehensive income consist of fair value
changes on FVTOCI financial assets and financial liabilities and
remeasurement of net defined benefit liability
Opening balance (37.64) (28.35)
Add : Movement during the year 57.30 9.29)
Closing balance 19.66 (37.64)
Total - Other equity (1 +2 +3 +4) 29,096.74 29,334.00
Non current liabilities :
11 Financial Liabilities
11.1  Borrowings
As at As at
Particulars g g

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

a) Termloans - Secured (Refer Notes (i) to (ix) below)

- From banks 14,626.31 20,143.32

- From others 1.519.50 1.335.92

b) Borrowings from others - Unsecured (Refer Note (x) below) 2,200.00 -
Total - Borrowings 18,345.81 21,479.24
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Notes :

Details of terms of repayment and security provided in respect of secured term loans :

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particul As at As at
arficulars March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
i) ICICI Bank Limited- Rupee fterm loan 2 1,054.85 1,697.52
|ICICI Bank Limited- Rupee term loan 3 1,9156.00 2,883.34
Less : Current maturities of long-term debt (1,590.41) (1,691.60)

Total 1,379.44 2,889.26

Security :

TermLoan 2 First Pari passu charge on the entire property, plant and equipment of Spinning Unit | located at
Vadamadurai, Dindigul alongwith other banks and exclusive charge on the specific plant & machinery
of weaving unit.

Termloan 3 First charge on the entire property, plant and equipment of Spinning Mill Unit | situated at Dindigul on
pari passu basis alongwith other banks and exclusive charge on the windmills (Land, Building, Plant &
Machinery) of the Company with an aggregate installed capacity of 16.2 MW located at
Chinnaputhur village, Tirupur District and Irukkandurai Village, Tirunelveli District.

Repayment:

TermLoan?2 16 quarterly instalments starting from July 2017.

TermLoan 3 16 quarterly instalments starting from June 2018.

Rate of Interest :

Termloan 2 4.43%.
Termloan 3 10%.
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2020\ March 31, 2019
i) Indian Bank - Rupee Term Loan 971.35 1,344.92
Less: Current maturities of long term debt (250.00) (376.00)
Total 721.35 968.92

Pari-passu first charge by way of equitable mortgage over factory land and building at SIPCOT Perundurai and exclusive

charge on fixed assets purchased out of the loan.
Repayment :32 Quarterly instalments starting from February 2014.
Rate of Interest : 12.80%
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As of As of
March 31, 2020| March 31, 2019
i) Indian Bank - Rupee term loan 5,922.93 7,411.00
Less: Current maturities of long ferm debt (1,125.00) (1,500.00)
Total 4,797.93 5,911.00

Pari-passu first charge by way of equitable mortgage of factory land and building of Spinning, Weaving, Knitting,

Processing and Garment divisions of the company along with other banks.
Repayment: 32 Quarterly instalments starting from June 2016.
Rate of Interest: 12.80%

Particulars As at As ot
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
iv) Indian Bank - Rupee term loan 4,161.02 4,331.99
Less: Current maturities of long term debt (239.40) (228.00)
Total 3,921.62 4,103.99

Pari-passu first charge by way of equitable mortgage of factory land and building of spinning, weaving, knitting,

processing and garment divisions of the Company along with other banks.
Repayment :32 Quarterly instalments starfing from June 2018.
Rate of Interest : 12.80%

Particulars As at As ot
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
v) DCB Bank Limited - Term loan 1,726.19 2,444.91
Less: Current maturities of long tferm debt 416.67) (718.72)
Total 1,309.52 1,726.19

Exclusive charge over windmills of 7.20 MW capacity located at Melkaraipatti & Kottathurai Village, Palani Taluk,

Dindigul Dist.
Repayment : 42 Monthly instalments starting from March 2019.
Rate of Interest : 9.30%

Particulars As of As of
March 31, 2020| March 31, 2019
Vi) Axis Bank - Term loan 2,012.50 2,192.12
Less: Current maturities of long term debt (2,012.50) (237.12)
Total - 1,955.00

Exclusive charge on windmill unit IV & V assets of 6.65 MW capacity situated at Chinnapudur Village, Dharapuram Taluk,

Tamilnadu and Kongalnagaram, Udumalpet Taluk, Tirupur District, Tamilnadu.

Repayment : 24 Quarterly instalments starting from December2018.
Rate of Interest : 10.45%.
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As of As of
March 31, 2020| March 31, 2019
Vi) Indian overseas Bank - Term loan 2,681.46 2,963.31
Less: Current maturities of long term debt (185.00) (374.35)
Total 2,496.46 2,588.96

Paripassu first charge on property, plant and equipment of Spinning Mill Unit | located at Nadukandanur Pirivu,
Vadamadurai, Dindigul and Paripassu first charge on fixed assets of Spinning Mill Unit Il located at Velvarkottai, Trichy

Highway 45, Vedasandur TK, Dindigul - 624803 alongwith other banks.

Repayment: 32 Quarterly instalments starting from August 2019.
Rate of Interest: 10.95%

Particulars As of As of
March 31, 2020| March 31, 2019
viii) Palladam Hi-Tech Weaving Park 47.84 47.84
Less: Current maturities of long term debt - (23.61)
Total 47.84 24.23

First charge on fixed assets acquired out of loan of Garment Unit located at Palladam Hi-Tech Weaving Park,

Sukkampalayam Village, K.N.Puram (Po), Palladam.
Repayment: 120 Monthly instalments starting from April 2010.
Rate of Interest: 0.75% .

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2020| March 31, 2019
ix) SIPCOT Soft Loan 2,554.90 2,554.90
Less: Current maturities of long term debt - -
Less: Government grant (Refer note (i) below) (1,083.25) (1,243.21)
Total 1,471.65 1,311.69
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i) First charge by way of equitable mortgage over factory land and building and hypothecation of other movable
assets financed by SIPCOT for the expansion project ranking paripassu with other banks and property plant and
equipment of the expansion scheme of spinning units located at Velvarkottai Village, Dindigul, Weaving unit and

Knitting unit at Karanampet, Coimbatore.

i The Government of Tamil Nadu in its order : G.O. Ms. No. 126, dated October 20, 2009, has granted an amount
equivalent to net output VAT + CST paid through expansion project to Government as Investment Promotion Soft
Loan for a period of 10 years, subject to terms and conditions mentioned in the Eligibility Certificate
ID/SPA/BSML/2010 dated 30 April 2013. The soft loan will carry a nominal rate of 0.1% per annum. The soft loan
sanctioned is repayable on the 10th year from the date of sanction. This is considered as Government grant and
accordingly the loan amount is carried at amortised cost considering an effective interest rate of 12.16%. The
Government grantincome isrecognised proportionately in relation to the interest expense.
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12.

Unsecured loan

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Current liabilities

13
13.1

Particul As at As at
arficulars March 31,2020 March 31,2019
X) Murugan Enterprise Private Limited 2,200.00 -

Total 2,200.00 -
Particul As at As at
arficulars March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Non-Current borrowings - Total 18,345.81 21,479.24
Current maturities of long term borrowings - Total 5,818.98 5,149.40
Total 24,164.79 26,628.64
Other non - current liabilities
Particul As at As at
SRS March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Government grant - SIPCOT soft loan (Refer note 11.1) 904.30 1,083.25
Total - Other non-current liabilities 904.30 1,083.25
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Particul As at As at
arficulars March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
a) Working capital loan from banks (Secured)
(Refer Note 1 below) 35,031.43 37.643.06
b) Working capital loan from banks (Un-secured/Residual)
(Refer Note 2 below) 2,939.87 2,653.27
c) Liability for bills discounted - other than banks 24.16 -
Total - Borrowings 37,995.46 40,196.33
Note : 1 - Secured loans
i) The Karur Vysya Bank Limited 1,356.87 1,101.77

Working Capital Limit: Rs.1,250 Lakhs

Security : Pari passu first charge on the entire current asset of Spinnng Unit | situated at Nadukandanur pirivu, Morepatty
Post, Vadamadurai, Dindigul alongwith other banks. Pari passu second charge on the entire property, plant and

equipment of Spinning Unit 1.

i) Corporation Bank

5,164.98

5011.44

Working Capital Limit: Rs. 5,250 Lakhs

Security:  Paripassu first charge on the entire current asset of Spinning Unit |, Il and Weaving Unit alongwith other banks.
Paripassu second charge on the entire property, plant and equipment of Spinning Unit |, Il and Weaving unifs.
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particul As at As at
ariculars March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
iii) ICICI Bank Limited 2,315.27 2,199.54

Working Capital Limit: Rs. 2,500 Lakhs

Secuirity : First Charge by way of Hypothecation of Raw materials, semi-finished and finished goods, consumable stores
and spares and other movable properties both present and future of Spinning unit | for limit upto Rs. 2,500 Lakhs on
paripassu basis with other banks.

iv) Oriental Bank of Commerce 5,581.24 6,583.90

Working Capital Limit: Fundbased limit : Rs. 6,000 Lakhs Non-fund based limit : Rs. 2,500 Lakhs

Security : Paripassu first charge on the entire current assets of Spinning Unit Il, Garment and Processing Units alongwith
otherbanks. Paripassu second charge on the entire fixed assets of Spinning Unit I, Garment and Processing Units.

V) Indian Oversease Bank 10,219.03 12,408.97

Working Capital Limit: Fund based limit : Rs. 10,000 Lakhs Non-fund based limit : Rs. 2,500 Lakhs

Security : Paripassu first charge on the entire current assets of Spinning Unit Il and Knitting Unit along with other banks.
Paripassu second charge on the entire property, plant and equipment of Spinning Unit Il and Knitting Unit.

vi) Bank of Maharashtra 735.99 980.45

Working Capital Limit: Fund based limit : Rs. 1,000 Lakhs

Security : Paripassu first charge on the entire current assets of Processing Unit. Paripassu second charge on the entire
property, plant and equipment of Processsing Unit.

vii) Allahabad Bank 3,755.73 3,352.61

Working Capital Limit : Rs.3,700 Lakhs

Security : Paripassu first charge on the entire current assets of Spinning Unit Il & Garment Unit along with other banks.
Paripassu second charge on the entire property, plant and equipment of Spinning Unit [l & Garment Unit.

viii) Bank of Bahrain & Kuwait B.S.C. 1.925.59 1,982.23

Working Capital Limit: Rs. 2,000 Lakhs

Security : Paripassu first charge on the entire current assets of Spinning Unit | alongwith other banks. Paripassu second
charge on the entire fixed assets of Spinning Unit |.

ix) Indian Bank 1,5610.03 1,546.40

Working Capital Limit: Rs. 3,000 Lakhs

Security : First Charge by way of Hypothecation of Raw materials, Stock-in-frade, Finished goods of the Garment
Division. Second charge on the property, plant and equipment of the Garment Division.

x) DCB Bank Limited 2,466.70 2,475.75
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Working Capital Limit: Rs. 2,500 Lakhs

Security : Extension of charge on windmills of 7.20 MW capacity offered as prime security for Term Loan.
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(Rs. in Lakhs)
Note : 2 - Unsecured / Residual loans

Particul As at As at
ariculars March 31, 2020| March 31, 2019
ICICI Bank Limited 2.939.87 2,553.27

Working Capital Limit: Rs. 3,500 Lakhs

13.2 Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (Refer Note 24)
- For raw materials 788.05 735.51
- For others 21.46 40.45
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises
- For raw materials 7.960.29 4,864.94
- For others 2,621.76 3,280.96
Total - Trade payables 11,291.56 8,921.86

13.3 Other financial liabilities

Current maturities of long-term debt 5,818.98 5,149.40
Interest accrued on borrowings 309.93 163.45
Unpaid dividend 3.11 2.75
Security deposits received 79.79 90.86
Contractually reimbursible expenses 0.54 7.28
Payables on purchase of property, plant and equipment 24.87 24.50

Total - Other financial liabilities 6,237.22 5,438.24

14 Provisions

a) Provision for employee benefits

- Provision for compensated absences - 24.65

- Provision for bonus 1356.33 219.32

) Provision forincome tax (Net) - 309.00
Total - Provisions 135.33 552.97

15 Other current liabilities

Statutory remittances 91.88 118.55
Advances from customers 502.89 362.07
Advance received towards sale of property, plant and equipment 94.30 94.30
Government grant - SIPCOT soft loan (Refer note 11.1) 178.95 159.96

Total - Other current liabilities 868.02 734.88
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16

17

Revenue from operations
1. Disaggregated Revenue Information

The Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, fiming and uncertainty of
revenues and cash flows are affected. Accordingly, the disaggregation by type of goods / services and by

geographicallocation of customers is provided in the table below:

A. Revenue by products/services (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars For the For the
year ended year ended
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
a) Sale of goods/services
a.  Manufactured goods
Yarn 54,058.82 54,416.80
Fabrics 28,225.70 33.,798.62
Waste cotton 5,466.79 5,692.72
Garments 804.81 1.451.91
b. Traded goods
Yarn 282.61 41.03
Cotton 234.54 139.88
c. Income from services provided - Sizing charges, CMT charges,
Knitting & Processing charges 2,662.80 2,.940.72
b) Other operating revenues 761.21 1,501.10
Total - Revenue from operations 92,497.28 99,982.78

The Company disaggregate the revenue based on geographic locations and it is disclosed under note 26 “Segment

reporting”.

Other Income

Particul For the For the
armcuiars year ended year ended
March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019

a) Interestincome 138.13 137.13
(Refer Note 1 below)

b) Net gain on foreign currency fransactions and translation - 611.27

c)  Ofther non-operating income 1,709.18 131.98
(Refer Note 2 below)

Total - Other income 1,847.31 880.38
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18B

Note
For the For the
Particulars year ended year ended
March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019

1) Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost comprises:
Interest on overdue trade receivables 72.49 102.75
Interest on security deposits 64.55 22.52
Interest from others 1.09 11.86
Total - Interest income 138.13 137.13

2)  Other non-operating income comprises:
Profit on sale of investment (Net) - 7.32
Profit on sale of property plant and equipment (Net) 1,709.18 62.06
Miscellaneous income - 62.60
Total - Other non-operating income 1,709.18 131.98
18 A Cost of materials consumed
Opening stock 13.690.83 17.461.06
Add : Purchases 64,222.97 65,517.69
77.913.80 82,978.75
Less : Closing stock (12,163.71) (13,690.83)
Total - Cost of materials consumed 65,750.09 69,287.92
Purchase of stock-in-trade

Purchase of stock-in-trade 217.47 110.75
Total - Purchase of stock-in-trade 217.47 110.75

(Rs. in Lakhs)
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20

21

22

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particul For the For the
articulars year ended year ended
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Inventories at the end of the year :
Finished goods 10,467.95 9.,661.06
Work-in-progress 1,645.35 1,442.74
Stock-in-frade - -
Total 12,113.30 11,103.80
Inventories at the beginning of the year :
Finished goods 9,661.06 6,075.79
Work-in-progress 1,442.74 3,368.18
Stock-in-frade - -
Total 11,103.80 9,443.97
Net (increase) / decrease (1,009.50) (1,659.83)
Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 7,550.58 7,757.13
Contributions to provident and other funds 384.72 277.51
Staff welfare expenses 838.71 1,096.08
Total - Employee benefits expense 8,774.01 9,130.72
Finance Costs
a) Interest expense on financial liabilities at amortised cost :
- Borrowings (Refer note 30) 6,106.24 5,884.73
- Operating lease liabilities 22.08 -
b) Other borrowing costs 367.39 351.01
Total - Finance costs 6,495.71 6,235.74
Other Expenses
Consumption of stores and spare parts 41.13 33.90
Manufacturing expenses 128.93 103.31
Consumption of packing materials 823.77 899.82
Power, fuel and water charges 4,943.26 5,563.04
Rent including lease rentals 35.47 119.97
Repairs and maintenance - Building 81.43 116.05
Repairs and maintenance - Machinery 1,671.62 2,305.13
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22

Other Expenses (Contd...)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars For the For the
year ended year ended
March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
Repairs and maintenance - Others 255.31 255.29
Insurance 437.12 347.17
Rates and taxes 340.90 418.43
Communication expenses 63.15 59.97
Travelling and conveyance 181.80 280.94
Printing and stationery 45.22 55.61
Freight and forwarding charges 779.32 939.73
Sales commission 763.00 821.77
Quality claim 71.82 66.14
Hank yarn obligation 6.25 20.78
Business promotion expenses 21.49 60.99
Donation 5.07 0.80
Legal and professional charges 209.96 218.92
Payments to auditors (Refer note 1 below) 22.50 22.50
Corporate social responsibility expenditure 10.30 522
Provision for bad and doubtful debts 157.35 52.13
Bad debts written off 2.22 1.14
Loss on sale of investment 3.83 -
Net Loss on foreign currency transactions and translation 118.84 -
Miscellaneous expenses 41.10 76.63
Total - Other expenses 11,262.16 12,845.38
Note 1 - Payments to auditors :
Payments to auditors comprises

- Statutory audit fees 16.50 16.50
- Limited review fees 6.00 6.00
Total - Payments to auditors 22.50 22.50
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Additional information to the financial statement

Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particul As at As at
arficulars March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
i Contingent liabilities :
a) Cenftral Excise demands, pending in appeal 69.61 112.58
b) TANGEDCO demands, pending in appeal 1,166.91 1,046.30
c) Corporate guarantee (on behalf of Young Brand Apparel Private Limited) 13,035.00 12,515.00
i) Commitments :
a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on
capital account and not provided for:
Tangible assets - 1,5600.00
24 Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
D} Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the 809.51 775.96

i

iii)

iv)

V)

Vi)

accountingyear

Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the
accounting year

The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made
to the supplier beyond the appointed day

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during
the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the
accountingyear

The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding
year, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to
the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under section 23

Dues to micro and small enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the

basis of information collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.
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Employee benefits plans

25.1.a

25.1b

Defined contribution plans - provident fund and employee state insurance

The Company makes Provident Fund and Employee state insurance scheme contributions to defined
conftribution plans for qualifying employees. Under the Schemes, the Company is required to contribute a
specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Company recognised the following

contributionsin the Statement of profit andloss : (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particul For the For the
articulars year ended year ended

March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019

Provident fund 273.54 220.29
Employee state insurance 87.81 85.71

Defined benefit plan - gratuity

In accordance with applicable Indian laws, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement
plan (Gratuity plan). The Gratuity plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees, atf retirement or
termination of employment, an amount based on the respective employee’s last drawn eligible salary and
the years of employment with the Company. The Company provides the gratuity benefit through annual
contributions to a fund managed by the Insurer included as part of ‘Contribution to provident and other
funds’ in Note 20 Employee benefits expense. Under this plan, the settlement obligation remains with the
Company.

Description of Risk Exposures

Valuations are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions and other regulatory
framework which may vary over time. Thus, the Company is exposed to various risks in providing the above
gratuity benefit which are as follows:

a) Interest Rate Risk : The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates
will result in an increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above benefit and will thus result in an
increase in the value of the liability (as shown in financial statements).

b) Investment Risk :The probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses relative to the expected return on
any particularinvestment.

¢c) Salary Escalation Risk : The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of
salary increase rate of plan participants in future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for
plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will
have abearing onthe plan’sliabilty.

d) Demographic Risk : The Company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the
liability. The Company is exposed to the risk of actual experience turning out to be worse compared to
the assumption.

e) Liquidity Risk: Thisis the risk that the Company is not able to meet the short-term gratuity payouts. This may
arise due to non-availabilty of enough cash/cashequivalent fo meet the liabilities or holding of illiquid
assetfs not being soldintime.

In respect of the plan in India, the most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of
the defined benefit obligation were carried out as at March 31, 2020 by Ms. Priyanka Shah, Fellow of the
Institute of Actuaries of India. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current
service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.
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Disclosures under Accounting Standards (Contd...)

The following table sets out the funded status of the gratuity scheme:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

For the For the
Particulars year ended year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Components of employer expense
Current service cost 115.08 45.59
Past service cost - 21.76
Interest cost 31.33 29.04
Expected return on plan assets (35.23) (39.17)
Recognised in statement of profit and loss 111.18 57.22
Re-measurement - actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in OCI (83.28) 11.19
Total expense recognised in the Statement of total comprehensive income 27.90 68.41
Other Comprehensive Income ( OCI )
Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO experience (111.74) 28.46
Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO assumption changes 29.95 1.57
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising during period (81.79) 30.03
Actual return on plan assets (greater)/less interest on plan assets (1.49) (18.84)
Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognized in OCI (83.28) 11.19
Defined Benefit Cost
Service cost 115.08 67.35
Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) (3.90) (10.13)
Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognized in OCI (83.28) 11.19
Defined benefit cost 27.90 68.41
Change in defined benefit obligation (DBO) during the year
Present value of DBO at beginning of the year 460.74 377.14
Current service cost 115.08 45.59
Past service cost - 21.76
Interest cost 31.33 29.04
Actuarial (gains) / losses (81.79) 30.03
Benefits paid (32.74) (42.82)
Present value of DBO at the end of the year 492.62 460.74
Actual contribution and benefit payments for year
Actual benefit payments 32.74 42.82
Actual contributions 142.66 87.23
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Disclosures under Accounting Standards (Contd...)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

i For the For the
Particulars year ended year ended
March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
Change in fair value of assets during the year
Plan assets at beginning of the year 477.96 375.54
Expected return on plan assets 35.23 39.17
Actual company contributions 142.66 87.23
Actuarial gain / (loss) 1.49 18.84
Benefits paid (32.74) (42.82)
Plan assets at the end of the year 624.60 477.96
Actual return on plan assets 36.72 58.01
Current and Non-Current Asset / Liability portion
Current (Asset) / Liability 131.98 17.22
Net asset / (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet :
Present value of defined benefit obligation 492.62 460.74
Fair value of plan assets 624.60 477.96
Funded status (Surplus / (Deficit)) 131.98 17.22
Net asset / (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet 131.98 17.22
Composition of the plan assets is as follows :
Government securities - -
Debentures and bonds - -
Fixed deposits - -
Insurer managed funds* 100% 100%
Total 624.60 477.96

* Funds are managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India and composition of the fund as at the balance sheet

date was not provided by the insurer.

Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate

Expected return on plan assets
Attrition rate

Salary escalation

6.80%
6.80%
3% to 1%
5.00%

7.70%
7.70%
3% to 1%
5.00%
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Disclosures under Accounting Standards (Contd...)

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the Balance Sheet
date for the estimated term of the obligations.

Sensitivity Analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other
assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below :

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Gratuity Plan Morc: 3 ?,12020 Mqrcr? ?s?,tzow
Estimate value of obligation if discount rate is taken 1% higher 415.46 412.67
Estimate value of obligation if discount rate is taken 1% lower 520.52 518.61
Estimate value of obligation if salary growth rate is taken 1% higher 521.01 519.63
Estimate value of obligation if salary growth rate is taken 1% lower 414.30 411.12
Estimate value of obligation if attrition rate is taken 1% higher 468.16 468.68
Estimate value of obligation if attrition rate is taken 1% lower 457.22 452.17

These sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit obligation in isolation and assuming
there are no other changesin market conditions at the accounting date. There have been no changes from the previous
periodsin the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis.

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:

Maturity profile, if it ensues ot As ot
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
1 68.28 50.75
2 13.92 16.02
3 20.19 20.26
4 16.91 33.06
5 29.22 156.15
Above 5 119.64 132.57
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Asset Liability Matching Strategies

The Company has purchased insurance policy, which is basically a year-on-year cash accumulation plan in which the
interest rate is declared on yearly basis and is guaranteed for a period of one year. The insurance Company, as part of
the policy rules, makes payment of all gratuity liability occurring during the year (subject to sufficiency of funds under
the policy). The policy, thus, mitigates the liquidity risk. However, being a cash accumulation plan, the duration of assets
is shorter compared to the duration of liabilities. Thus, the Company is exposed to movement in interest rate (in
particular, the significant fall in interest rates, which should result in aincrease in liability without corresponding increase
inthe asset).
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27

Segment Reporting

a) Primary business segment information

The Company’s operations relate to only one business segment, viz., Textiles. Accordingly, this is the only reportable

business segment.
b) Secondary geographic segmentinformation (Rs. in Lakhs)
Geographic Segment Revenue Segment assets | Capifal expenditure
incurred

Outside India March 31, 2020 14,344.47 927.82 -
March 31,2019 23,195.40 3,015.06 -

India March 31, 2020 78,152.81 107.969.44 1.885.12
March 31,2019 76,787.38 108,457.55 2,357.12

Unallocated March 31, 2020 - 415.95 -
March 31,2019 - 513.93 -

Total March 31, 2020 92,497.28 109,313.21 1,885.12
March 31, 2019 99,982.78 111,986.54 2,357.12

Note: Segment Assets represent Assets in respective segments. Tax related assets cannot be allocated to a segment on

reasonable basis have been disclosed as “Unallocable”.

Related party transactions

a) Details of Related parties :

Description of relationship

Name of related parties

Subsidiaries

Enferprises in which the
Key management Personnel or
relatives have significant influence

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Relative of KMP

Accel Apparels Private Limited

Abirami Amman Designs Private Limited (Formerly Abirami Ammman Mills
Private Limited)

Young Brand Apparel Private Limited

Bannari Amman Retails Private Limited

Bannari Amman Trendz Private Limited

Anamallais Automobiles Private Limited
Shiva Automobiles Private Limited
Vedanayagam Oil Company

Sakthi Murugan Transports Private Limited
Murugan Enterprise Private Limited
Jahnvi Motor Private Limited

Anamallais Motors Private Limited

Sri SV Arumugam, Managing Director
Sri N Krishnaraj, Company Secretary
Sri S Seshadri, Chief Financial Officer

Smt A Umadevi
Sri A Senthil - Chief Executive Officer
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b) Details of transactions during the year and balance outstanding as at balance sheet date:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

Related Party

For the
year ended
March 31, 2020

For the
year ended
March 31, 2019

Transactions during the year:

Purchase of yarn

Sale of yarn

Sale of fabric

Sale of garments

Conversion/Job work charges
received

Lease rent received
Interest received

Lease rent paid for building
and machinery

Vehicle maintenance paid

Processing charges received

Processing charges paid

Purchase of fuel

Rent paid

Inter corporate deposits recd

Inter corporate deposits repaid

Interest paid

Remuneration of KMP

Salary to Relative of KMP

Shiva Texyarn Limited

Shiva Texyarn Limited
Young Brand Apparel Private Limited
Shiva Mills Limited

Shiva Texyarn Limited
Young Brand Apparel Private Limited

Bannari Amman Trendz Private Limited
Bannari Amman Retails Private Limited
Young Brand Apparel Private Limited

Shiva Texyarn Limited
Young Brand Apparel Private Limited

Shiva Texyarn Limited
Young Brand Apparel Private Limited

Shiva Texyarn Limited

Shiva Automobiles Private Limited
Jahnvi Motor Private Limited

Young Brand Apparel Private Limited
Shiva Mills Limited
Vedanayagam Oil Company

Anamallais Automobiles Private Limited
Sakthi Murugan Transports Private Limited
Smt A Umadevi

Murugan Enterprise Private Ltd
Anamallais Motors Private Limited

Anamallais Motors Private Limited

Murugan Enterprise Private Ltd
Anamallais Motors Private Limited

Sri SV Arumugam, Managing Director
Sri N Krishnaraj, Company Secretary
Sri S Seshadri, Chief Financial Officer

Sri A Senthil, Chief Executive Officer

5.75
4.59

326.12
3.68

17.85
3.51
12.00

2,200.00
200.00

200.00

23.88
1.79

60.00
20.21
20.90

30.00

125.41

0.85
503.61
151.36

343.62
321.68

591.02

16.87
0.53

70.00
102.75

35.00

7.00
1.13

274.77
3.99
3.18

6.90
1.06
4,00

77.58
19.59
15.75

30.00
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

Related Party

Receivables

(Payables)

Balances outstanding as at year end :

Shiva Mills Limited

Shiva Texyarn Limited

Young Brand Apparel Private Limited
Bannari Amman Retails Private Limited
Bannari Amman Trendz Private Limited
Accel Apparels Private Limited
Anamallais Automobiles Private Limited

Shiva Mills Limited

Shiva Texyarn Limited

Vedanayagam Oil Company

Sakthi Murugan Transports Private Limited
Shiva Automobiles Private Limited

Young Brand Apparel Private Limited
Anamallais Automobiles Private Limited
Murugan Enterprise Private Limited

Smt A Umadevi

Amount outstanding as at the year end

As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019

- 44,10
- 553.44
1,476.93 1,604.99
122.21 7.08
752.00 632.97
1.58 1.05
4,32 -
- (19.18)
- (244.27)
0.23) -
(0.64) (0.09)
(0.60) (0.09
(4.62) (0.54)
(1.72) (0.60)
(2,221.49) -
(0.90) (0.90)
126.83 2,578.02

Note :

expense hasbeenrecognised inrespect of impaired receivables due from related parties.

il Related party relationship is as identified by the Company on the basis of information available with the
Company andrelied upon by the Auditors.

il No amount is/has been written off or written back during the year in respect of debts due from or to related

i) There is no allowance account for impaired receivables in relation to any outstanding balances, and no

party.
28 Earnings per equity share
For the For the
Particulars year ended year ended
March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
Profit attributable to equity shareholders (Rs. In Lakhs) 19.90 1,934.09
Weighted average number of equity shares (Nos.) 1,67.,64,269 1,567.,564,269
Par value per equity share (Rs.) 10.00 10.00
Earning per share - Basic & Diluted (Rs.) 0.13 12.28
29A Income tax recognised :

For the year ended March 31, 2020 For the year ended March 31, 2019,
Particulars Statement of Other Statement of Other
profit and loss | comprehensive | profit and loss | comprehensive
income income
Current tax :
In respect of current year - - 309.00 -
Deferred tax :
In respect of current year 3.59 25.98 (335.93) @.9n
Income tax expense 3.59 25.98 (26.93) .91
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29 B Movement in deferred tax balances : (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Opening | Recognised| Recognised | Recognised| Closing
balance in profit in other directly balance
and loss | comprehensive| in equity
income

For the year ended March 31, 2020
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax asset

Provision for doubtful debts 205.04 49.10 - - 254.14
Provision for compensated absences and gratuity 89.07 (30.68) (25.98) - 32.41
Brought forward losses - 96.56 - - 96.56
Minimum alternate tax (net) 5,301.45 37.42 - - 5,338.87
Others 41.92 39.85 - - 81.77
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax asset 5,637.48 192.25 (25.98) - 5,803.75

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax (liability)
On difference between book balance and tax

balance of fixed assets (8,307.82) (195.84) - - | (8,503.66)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax (liability) (8,307.82) (195.84) - - | (8,503.66)
Net Deferred tax asset/(liability) (2,670.34) (3.59) (25.98) (2,699.91)

For the year ended March 31, 2019
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax asset

Provision for doubtful debts 177.29 27.75 - - 205.04
Provision for compensated absences, gratuity and others 14.32 72.94 1.81 - 89.07
Minimum alternate tax (net) 5,066.50 234.95 - - 5,301.45
Others 117.08 (76.26) 1.10 - 41.92
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax asset 5,375.19 259.38 291 - 5,637.48

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax (liability)

On difference between book base and tax base of

property, plant and equipment (8,384.37) 76.55 - - | (8,307.82)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax (liability) (8,384.37) 76.55 - - | (8,307.82)
Net Deferred tax asset/(liability) (3,009.18) 335.93 291 - | (2,670.34)
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29 C Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company’s domestic tax rate:

30

31

(Rs. in Lakhs)

For the For the
Particulars year ended year ended
March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
Profit before tax 23.49 1,907.16
Enacted income tax rate in India 31.20% 30.90%
Computed expected tax expense 7.33 595.03
Tax incentives and concessions - (167.85)
Mat credit entitlement - (309.00)
On account of enacted tax rates - (219.16)
Write off/(back) of minimum alternate tax - 74.05
Others 3.74) -
Income tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss 3.59 (26.93)

During the year the Company capitalised an amount of Rs. Nil of borrowing cost under property, plant and equipment
(Forthe yearended March 31,2019 Rs. 106.11 Lakhs).

Leases

On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs had notified Ind AS 116, Leases, replacing the existing leases
standard, Ind AS 17, Leases, and related interpretations. The new lease standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract i.e., the lessee and the
lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for
all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Currently, operating lease
expenses are charged to the statement of profit and loss. The Standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements
forlessees. Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirementsinInd AS 17.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

Full retrospective : Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors.

Modified retrospective : Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard recognized at the
date of initial application.

The Company has entered into leasing arrangements in respect of residential/office premise. The leasing arrangements,
which are generally cancellable, have lease periods ranging between 11 and 60 months. They are generally renewable
by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms. The operating leases are cancellable by lessor/lessee with notice
period up to three months.

97



BANNARI AMMAN SPINNING MILLS LTD

Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

98

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected by the Company on the initial application:

Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases. Accordingly, Ind AS 116
is applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases under Ind AS 17.

In respect of those leases classified as finance leases applying Ind AS 17, at the date of initial application, the Company
has elected to recognise the right-of-use asset and the lease liability at the carrying amount of the lease asset and lease
liability immediately before that date measured applying Ind AS 17.

Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with a similar end
date.

Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term
onthe date of initial application.

Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.

The Company’s weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities recognised in the balance
sheet at the date of initial applicationi.e 1 April2019is 12% per annum.

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Amount

Operating lease commitments as at 31-Mar-2019 677.52

Less: Recognition of exemption for short ferm leases -

Net operating lease commitments as per Ind AS 17 as at 31-Mar-2019 677.52
Discounted using the incremental borrowing as at 01-Apr-2019 260.68
OLL recognised in the balance sheet upon transition to Ind AS 116 as at 01-Apr-2019 260.68
Difference -

Movement in right-of-use assets and lease liabilities during the year:

Right-of-use assets

Particulars Machinery Building
As at the date of transition, i.e., 01 April 2019 16.66 233.76
Additions - 4.31
Depreciation (16.66) (85.10)
Deletions - -
Closing balance - 152.97
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Lease liabilities

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Machinery Building
As at the date of fransition, i.e., 01 April 2019 21.96 238.72
Additions - 4.31
Interest 0.54 21.54
Lease payments (22.50) (101.14)
Closing balance - 163.43
Current - 80.28
Non-current - 83.15
Maturity analysis of OLL
Particulars Machinery Building
1 year - 96.44
1 to 5 years - 86.83
More than 5 years - -
Lease rent expense on short-term and low value lease debited to Statement of Profit and Loss
Particulars Machinery Building
Lease rent - 35.47
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Financial instruments

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 are as

follows: (Rs. in Lakhs)
Carrying value Fair value
Particulars As at As at As at As at
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2020 2019 2020 2019
Financial assets
Amortised cost
Loans 17.79 30.94 17.79 30.94
Trade receivable 16,411.88 | 17.,697.70 16,411.88 17,697.70
Cash and cash equivalents 2,656.94 566.28 2,656.94 566.28
Bank balances 167.11 264.75 167.11 264.75
Ofther financial assets 1.742.09 1.474.83 1.742.09 1.474.83
Investment in Government securities 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03
FVTOCI
Investment in equity instruments 3.85 3.85 3.85 3.85
FVTPL
Investment in equity instruments (unquoted) 2,640.49 2,702.98 2,640.49 2,702.98
Total assets 23,640.18 | 22,741.36 23,640.18 22,741.36
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost
Borrowings 62,160.25 | 66,824.97 62,160.25 66,824.97
Lease liabilities 163.43 - 163.43 -
Trade payables 11.291.56 8.921.86 11.291.56 8.921.86
Other financial liabilities 418.24 288.84 418.24 288.84
Total liabilities 74,033.47 | 76,035.67 74,033.47 76,035.67

100

The management assessed that fair value of cash and short-term deposits, frade receivables, frade payables and
other current financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term

maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchangedin a current fransaction between willing parties, other than in aforced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

)} Long-term fixed-rate receivables/borrowings are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as
interest rates, specific country risk factors, individual creditworthiness of the customer and the risk
characteristics of the financed project. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken into account for the

expectedlosses of these receivables.
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i) Fair values of the Company’s interest-bearing borrowings and loans are determined by using DCF method
using discount rate that reflects the issuer’s borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own non-
performancerisk as at March 31,2020 was assessed fo be insignificant.

iy The fair values of the unquoted equity shares have been estimated using a discounted cash flow model. The
valuation requires management to make certain assumptions about the model inputs, including forecast
cash flows, discount rate, credit risk and volatility, the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
can be reasonably assessed and are used in management’s estimate of fair value for these unquoted equity
investments.

Fair value hierarchy
Level 1- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets foridentical assets or liabilities.

Level2- Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. asprices) orindirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level3- Inputsforthe assets orliabilities that are notbased on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
The following table presents the fair value measurement hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

onrecurring basis asat March 31,2020 and March 31,2019

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Fair value measurement using
Particulars Total
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets measured at fair value :
FVTOCI financial assets designated at fair value: Date of

valuation March 31, 2020

Investment in equity As at March 31, 2020 3.85 3.85 - -

instruments (quoted) As at March 31, 2019 3.85 3.85 - -

Derivative financial As at March 31, 2020 243.51 243.51 - -

instruments As at March 31, 2019 241.02 241.02 - -
FVTPL financial assets designated at fair value: Date of

valuation March 31, 2020

Investment in equity As at March 31, 2020 2,640.49 - - 2,640.49

instruments (unquoted) As at March 31, 2019 2,702.98 - - 2,702.98

There have been no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year.
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Financial risk management

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise loans and borrowings, frade and other payables. The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is o finance the company’s operations and to provide guarantees to support its
operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, tfrade and other receivables, and cash and short-
term deposits that derive directly fromits operations.

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and interest
rate risk. The Company’s primary focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek o minimize
potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The primary market risk to the company is foreign exchange risk.
The Company uses foreign currency borrowings to mitigate foreign exchange related risk exposures.

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

D

2)

3)

4)
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Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to
meet ifs confractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers and
investment securities. Credit risk arises from cash held with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposure to
clients, including outstanding accounts receivable. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value
of the financial assets. The objective of managing counterparty credit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets. The
Company assesses the credit quality of the counterparties, taking info account their financial position, past
experience and other factors.

Trade and otherreceivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The
demographics of the customer, including the default risk of the industry and country in which the customer operates,
also has aninfluence on credit risk assessment.

The following table gives details in respect of percentage of revenues generated from top customer and top 5

customers:
(Rs. in Lakhs)

For the For the
Particulars year ended year ended
March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
Revenue from top customer 2,876.58 2,100.31
Revenue from top 5 customers 10,133.85 8,116.95

Five customers accounted for more than 10% of the revenue for the year ended March 31,2020, however two of the
customers accounted for more than 10% of the receivables as at March 31, 2020. Seven customers accounted for
more than 10% of the revenue for the yearended March 31,2019, however two of the customers accounted for more
than 10% of the receivables as at March 31,2019.

Investments

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by generally investing in liquid securities and only with counterparties
that have a good credit rating. The company does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counter-
parties, and does not have any significant concentration of exposures to specific industry sectors.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The
Company managesits liquidity risk through credit limits with banks.

The Company’s corporate treasury department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as seftlement
management. Inaddition, processes and policies related to suchrisks are overseen by senior management.
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Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

The working capital position of the Company is given below : (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As ot As at
March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
Cash and cash equivalents 2,656.94 566.28
Bank balances 167.11 264.75
Total 2,824.05 831.03

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at March 31,
2020 andMarch 31,2019.

. Less than 2years
1-2

Particulars As at 1 year years and above
Borrowings March 31, 2020 43,814.44 5,073.54 13,272.27
March 31, 2019 45,345.73 5,558.75 15,920.49

Trade payables March 31, 2020 11,291.56 - -
March 31, 2019 8,921.86 - -

Lease liabilities March 31, 2020 163.43 - -
March 31, 2019 - - -

Other financial liabilities March 31, 2020 418.24 - -
March 31, 2019 288.84 - -

5) Foreign Currency risk

The Company’s exchange risk arises from its foreign operations, foreign currency revenues and expenses, (primarily in
U.S. dollars, British pound sterling and Euros) and foreign currency borrowings (primarily in U.S. dollars, British pound
sterling and Euros). A significant porfion of the Company’s revenues are in these foreign currencies, while a significant
portion of its costs are in Indian rupees. As aresult, if the value of the Indian rupee appreciates relative to these foreign
currencies, the Company’s revenues measured in rupees may decrease. The exchange rate between the Indian
rupee and these foreign currencies has changed substantially in recent periods and may continue to fluctuate
substantially in the future. The Company’s management meets on a periodic basis to formulate the strategy for
foreign currency risk management.

Consequently, the management of the Company believes that the borrowings in foreign currency and its assets in
foreign currency shall mitigate the foreign currency risk mutually to some extent.

The following table presents foreign currency risk from non-derivative financial instruments as of March 31, 2020 and
March31,2019:

Particulars As at us$ Euro Poun_d / Total
Sterling
Assets
Trade receivables March 31, 2020 775.63 107.21 44,98 927.82
March 31, 2019 2,026.90 895.08 44,98 2,966.96
Liabilities
Trade payable March 31, 2020 532.95 - - 532.95
March 31, 2019 - - - -
Borrowings March 31, 2020 2,848.79 - - 2,848.79
March 31, 2019 5,187.85 - - 5,187.85
Net assets/(liabilities) March 31, 2020 (2,606.11) 107.21 44.98 (2,453.92)
March 31, 2019 (3,160.95) 895.08 44.98 (2,220.89)
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Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Company is mainly exposed to the currency USD on account of significant outstanding trade receivables,
borrwoings and trade payablesin USD.

The following table details the Company’s sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in INR against the USD. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period
end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A positive number below indicates anincrease in profit or equity where
the INR strengthens 5% against the relevant currency. For a 5% weakening of the INR against the relevant currency,
there would be a comparable impact on the profit or equity, and the balances below would be negative.

(Rs. in Lakhs)

For the For the
Particulars year ended year ended
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019

Impact on profit for the year 130.31 158.05

For a 5% weakening of the INR against the relevant currency, there would be equivalent amount of impact on the
profit as mentionedin the above table.

6) Interestraterisk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily fo the Company’s debt obligations with floating interest rates and investments.
Interest rate sensitivity analysis
If interest rates had been 1% higher and all other variables were held constant, the company’s profit for the year
ended would have impactedin the following manner:
(Rs. in Lakhs)
For the For the
Particulars year ended year ended
March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
Increase / (decrease) in the Profit for the year (650.05) (620.73)
If interest rates were 1% lower, the company’s profit would have increased by the equivalent amount as shown in
the above table.
7) Capital management
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The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Company monitors the return on capital. The
Company’s objective when managing capital is to maintain an optimal structure so as to maximize shareholder
value.
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Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

The capital structure is as follows :

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Total equity attributable to the equity share holders
of the company 30,672.17 30,909.43
As percentage of total capital 33% 32%
Current borrowings 37,995.46 40,196.33
Non-current borrowings 24,164.79 26,628.64
Total borrowings 62,160.25 66,824.97
As a percentage of total capital 67% 68%
Total capital (borrowings and equity) 92,832.42 97,734.40
The Company is predominantly debt financed which is evident from the capital structure table.
35 Corporate Social responsibility
For the For the
Particulars year ended year ended
March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year 34.08 32.43
Amount spent during the year on
i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - -
i) On purposes other than (i) above. 10.30 522

36 Prior year comparatives

Prior year figures have been reclassified wherever necessary to confirm current year’s classification.

The following reclassifications have been done in the previous year figures to confirm current year classification :

Particulars March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019

For the year — Current assets

Current tax assets 166.99 305.00

In the respective previous year — Non current assets

Advance tax and tax deducted at source (Net) 166.99 305.00

For the year — Current assets

Bank balances 167.11 264.75

In the respective previous year — Current assets

Cash and Cash equivalents 167.11 264.75
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP SV ARUMUGAM K SADHASIVAM
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director Director

DIN 00002458 DIN 00610037
BALAJIM N N KRISHNARAJ S SESHADRI
Partner Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
ACS No. 20472

Bengaluru Coimbatore

15" September, 2020

15" September, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To

The Members of Bannari Amman Spinning Mills Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Bannari Amman Spinning Mills
Limited (“the Parent”) and its subsidiaries, (the Parent and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the
Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),the Consolidated Cash Flow

Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based
on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries
referred to in the Other Matters section below, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended ('Ind AS’), and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at
March 31, 2020, and their consolidated profit, their consolidated total comprehensive income, their
consolidated cash flows and their consolidated changes in equity forthe yearended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143 (10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group,in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) fogether with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’'s Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the sub-paragraphs (a) and (b) of the Other Matters section
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial
statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the
key audit matters to be communicatedin our report.

107



BANNARI AMMAN SPINNING MILLS LTD

Sr. No.

Key Audit Matter

Auditor’s Response

Determination of Net Realisable Value of
certain finished goods::

The Parent has inventory of certain
finished goods aggregating Rs.2,864.63
lakhs, which, as per the accounting
policy for valuation of inventory in Note
2.4, are valued at lower of cost and net
realizable value.

Determinatfion of the net readlisable
value by Management involves certain
element of judgment involving
consideration of volatility in selling price
of garments stock (finished goods), past
trends of discounts applied for disposal
of old inventory, estimated fashion
tfrends and market conditions, efc.

Any change in the assumptions
considered by the Management would
result in an impact in the margins in the
year of disposal of the inventory or
change in assumption.

Principal audit procedure performed

We have performed the following procedures :

a.

Evaluated the design and implementation of
the relevant internal controls and the operating
effectiveness of such internal controls in
determining the net readlisable value and
assessing if the same is higher than cost or
requiring adjustment to cost of such finished
Qoo0ds.

Obtained an understanding of the significant
judgements applied by the management in
determination of the netrealizable values of the
finished goods and the relevant workings and
for sample selected we performed the
following procedures:

° Conducted a retrospective test of
comparing the net realisable value
determined by the management in the
previous year with the sale values of such
finished goods in the current year to
evaluate if the assumptions considered
were reasonable.

° Compared the net realisable value
determined at the year-end with any
instance of sale occurring for such
inventory affer the year end / latest
realization to assess the reasonableness of
the assumptions considered by the
management.

° Compared the actual costs incurred to sell
after the year end / based on the latest
sale fransaction to assess the
reasonableness of the cost to sell that was
estimated and considered by the
management.

° Compared the cost of the finished goods
with the estimated net realisable value
and checked if the finished goods were
recorded at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.
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Sr. No. Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response

2 Existence of Inventories balance - Principal audit procedure performed

We have not been able to attend We have carried out following procedures with
physical verification of inventories as respectto test of existence of Inventories:

at the year-end date. Management’s | o  Eyaluated the design and implementation of

physical verification of Inventories was not the controls over physical verification of
physically observed by us subsequent to inventories and tested the operating
the year-end due to the restrictions effectiveness of these controls.

imposed onaccount of COVID-19. ° Participated and observed the physical

verification of inventory conducted by
management subsequent to year-end
through video calls.

e \Verifiedthe rollback procedures prepared by
the management from the date of count to
March 31,2020.

e Circulated insfruction to independent
chartered accountant firm to perform
physical verification of inventory and
obtained the verification reports directly from
the independent chartered accountant firm.

° Evaluated the differences identified by the
independent firm during their physical
verification of inventories and it was noted
that there were no material differences.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Director’s Report including
annexures to Director’s Report and Corporate Governance, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is fo read the
other information, compare with the financial statements of the subsidiaries, audited by the other
auditors, to the extent it relates to these entities and, in doing so, place reliance on the work of the other
auditors and consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. Other information so far as it relates to the subsidiaries, is fraced from their
financial statements audited by the other auditors.
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° If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
otherinformation, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in thisregard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive
income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the
Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements
by the Directors of the Parent, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the respective entities fo continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either infends to liquidate their respective
entities or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companiesincludedin the Group are also responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatemnent when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users faken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
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material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order o design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Parent has adequate internal financial controls
systemin place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates andrelated disclosures made by the management.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern,

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
tfransactions and eventsin a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements
of entities or business activities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors. For the other entities or business activities included in the consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually orin
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factorsin (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) fo evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent and such other entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficienciesininternal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
maftters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidatedfinancial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter orwhen, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

a)  We did not audit the financial statements of two subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total
assets of Rs.10.56 lakhs as at 317 March, 2020, total revenues of Rs. NIL and net cash outflows amounting
to Rs.0.56 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements. These financial statements are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, the reports of the other auditor is
based solely on.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work
done andthe reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of
the other auditors on the separate financial statements of the subsidiaries referred to in the Other
Matters section above we report, to the extent applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

b) Inouropinion, properbooks of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books, returns and the reports of the other auditors.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books
of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
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d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parentas on March
31,2020 taken onrecord by the Board of Directors of the Company and the reports of the statutory
auditors of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group
companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a
directorinterms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”which
is based on the auditors’ reports of the Parent, subsidiary companies incorporated in India. Our
report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal
financial controls over financial reporting of those companies.

o) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, asamended,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations givento us, the
remuneration paid by the Parent to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) Withrespecttothe othermattersto be includedin the Auditor’s Reportin accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
ourinformation and according to the explanations given to us:

) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group,

i) Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under
the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on
long-term contracts including derivative contfracts;

i There has been no delay in fransferring amounts, required to be fransferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Parent and its subsidiary
companies incorporated in India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Balaji M. N.

Partner

Bengaluru (Membership No. 202094)
September 15, 2020 (UDIN:20202094AAAADM1148)
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ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph (fHunder ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’section of our report of
evendate)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
ofthe Companies Act,2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind ASfinancial statements of the Company as of and for the year
ended March 31,2020, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Bannari Amman
Spinning Mills Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Parent”) and its subsidiary companies, which includes internal
financial controls over financial reporting of the subsidiaries, which are companies incorporatedin India, as of that
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated
in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based onthe internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the respective Companies considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financialinformnation, as required under the Companies Act,2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Ourresponsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Parent and
its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our
auditin accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing,
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the infernal financial
conftrols system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of infernal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors of
the subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, in terms of their reports referred to in the
Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
infernal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Parent and its subsidiary companies, which are
companiesincorporatedin India.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

Inour opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of the reports of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, the Parent and
its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate
infernal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the criteria for internal financial control over
financial reporting established by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)() of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to two subsidiary companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, is based solely on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies
incorporatedin India.

Our opinionis not modified inrespect of the above matters.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Balaji M. N.

Partner

Bengaluru (Membership No. 202094)
September 15, 2020 (UDIN:20202094AAAADM1148)
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020

BANNARI AMMAN SPINNING MILLS LTD

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particul Note As at As at
ariiculars No. | March 31,2020 | March 31,2019
ASSETS
1 Non-current assets
a) Property, plant and equipment 3A 63,706.37 65,890.40
b) Capital work-in-progress 3A 439.02 131.93
c) Right of use assets 31 239.90 -
d) Otherintangible assets 3B 9.37 13.39
e) Financial assets 4
i) Investments 4.1 25.38 87.87
f)  Deferred tax asset 298 0.80 58.30
@ Other non-current assets 5 1,477.36 1,060.89
Total non-current assets 65,898.20 67,242.78
2 Current assets
a) Inventories ) 32,655.76 31,799.11
b) Financial assets 7
i) Trade receivables
A) Trade receivables - Unsecured 7.1 16,657.65 18,958.93
B) Trade receivables - Credit impaired 7.1 - -
i) Cash and cash equivalents 7.2 3,424.40 1,060.15
i) Bank balances other than (ii) above 7.2 167.11 264.75
iv) Loans 7.3 37.97 47.94
v)  Other financial assets 7.4 1.820.38 1,512.81
c) Current tax assets 7.5 166.99 305.00
d) Other current assetfs 8 3.,825.20 4,756.42
e) Assets classified as held for sale 3D 56.72 56.72
Total current assets 58,812.18 58,761.83
Total assets (1+2) 1,24,710.38 1,26,004.61
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
a) Equity share capital 9 1,575.43 1,575.43
b) Other equity 10 29,6568.21 29,657.97
Equity attributable to the owners of the Holding Company 31,233.64 31,233.40
Non-controlling interest 3.485.30 3,122.38
Total equity 34,718.94 34,355.78
Liabilities
2 Non-current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities 1
) Borrowings 11.1 19.616.95 22,561.27
i Lease liabilities 31 176.13 -
b) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 29B 3.274.52 2,893.81
c) Provisions 12.1 231.21 126.27
d) Other non-current liabilities 12.2 988.47 1.177.94
Total non - current liabilities 24,287.28 26,759.29
3 Current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities 13
i)  Borrowings 13.1 42,010.52 44,377.78
i) Trade payables
A) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 13.2 809.51 775.95
B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 13.2 13.922.97 10,454.85
il Lease liabilities 31 80.28 -
iv) Other financial liabilities 13.3 6,520.04 5,866.34
b) Provisions 14 306.71 800.56
c) Ofther current liabilities 15 2,054.13 2,614.06
Total current liabilities 65,704.16 64,889.54
Total equity and liabilities (1+2+3) 1,24,710.38 1,26,004.61
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
In ferms of our report attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP SV ARUMUGAM K SADHASIVAM
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director Director
DIN 00002458 DIN 00610037
BALAJI M N N KRISHNARAJ S SESHADRI
Partner Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
ACS No. 20472
Bengaluru Coimbatore
15" September, 2020 15" September, 2020
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BANNARI AMMAN SPINNING MILLS LTD

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020

(Rs. in Lakhs)

For the For the
. Note
Particulars N year ended year ended
0. March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
| Revenue from operations 16 1,13,387.67 1,17.448.94
I Other Income 17 1,849.73 885.22
] Total revenue (I + II) 1,15,237.40 1,18,334.16
v Expenses
a) Cost of materials consumed 18A 77,365.84 80.,350.76
b) Purchase of stock-in-frade 18B 230.08 110.75
c) Changes in stock of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock in frade 19 (1.479.14) (2,995.21)
d) Employee benefit expense 20 14,263.96 13.,699.08
e) Finance costs 21 7.203.15 6,715.11
f)  Depreciation and amortisation expenses 3A & 31 3.262.83 3.,396.82
g) Other expenses 22 13,387.16 14,5636.92
Total expenses 1,14,233.88 1,15,814.23
\% Profit before tax (lll - IV) 1,003.52 2,519.93
Vi Tax Expense
1) Current tax
a) Current tax 20A - 428.49
b) Income tax relating to earlier years 29A - -
2) Deferred tax
a) Deferred tax 29A 413.03 79.47
b)  MAT credit 29A - (428.54)
c)  MAT credit lapsed written off 29A - 74.05
Total tax expense 413.03 153.47
VIl  Profit for the year (V - VI) 590.49 2,366.46
VIl Other comprehensive income/(loss) 87.96 (68.41)
A D Itfems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit liabilities/(asset) 113.94 (70.31)
b) Gain/(loss) on equity instruments designated at FVTOCI - (1.01)
i Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (25.98) 2.91
B D lfems that may be reclassified to profit or loss - -
i Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
IX Total comprehensive income for the year (VII + VIiI) 678.45 2,298.05
Profits attributable to
Non-conftrolling interest 348.01 275.40
Owners of the Company 242.48 2,091.06
Other comprehensive income attributable to
Non-controlling interest 14.92 (28.77)
Owners of the Company 73.04 (39.64)
Total comprehensive income attributable to
Non-conftrolling interest 362.93 246.63
Owners of the Company 315.52 2,051.42
678.45 2,298.05
X Earnings per equity share: in Rs. 28
1) Basic 3.75 15.02
2) Diluted 3.75 15.02
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
In ferms of our report attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP SV ARUMUGAM K SADHASIVAM
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director Director
DIN 00002458 DIN 00610037
BALAJI M N N KRISHNARAJ S SESHADRI
Partner Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
ACS No. 20472 .
Bengaluru Coimbatore

15" September, 2020

15" September, 2020
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BANNARI AMMAN SPINNING MILLS LTD
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BANNARI AMMAN SPINNING MILLS LTD

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Rs. in Lakhs)
. For the year ended For the year ended
Parficulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 1,003.52 2,519.93
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expenses 3.262.83 3,396.82
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (1,709.18) (62.06)
Profit / (loss) on sale of investments 3.83 (7.32)
Finance costs 7.203.15 6,7156.11
Interest income ©7.17) (62.98)
Allowance for doubtful frade receivables and bad debts written off 159.57 53.27
Net unrealised exchange (gain) (243.51) (473.97)
] 857952 — | 9,558.87

Operating profit before working capital changes 9.,683.04 12,078.80

Changes in working capital:
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating assets:
Financial Assets

Trade receivables 2,141.71 (6,557.02)
Loans 9.97 14.01
Other financial assets 220.48 961.14
Non-financial assets

Inventories (856.65) 210.17
Other non-financial assets 628.69 (364.49)

Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Financial liabilities

Trade payables 3,501.68 (304.94)
Other financial liabilities (445.91) (72.02)
Non-financial liabilities
Provisions (79.91) 161.00
Other non-financial liabilities (689.44) 1,132.73
4,530.62 (4,819.42)
14,113.66 7,259.38
Net income tax paid (171.79) (512.31)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 13,941.87 6,747.07

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure on property plant and equipment

including capital advances (2,591.98) (2,786.72)
Margin money deposits 98.00 (2.49)
Investments made in subsidiary - 35.26
Sale of other investments 58.66 (244.47)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 3,043.04 345.29
Interest received 83.47 60.22
Net cash flow generated / (used in) investing activities (B) 691.19 (2,592.91)
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BANNARI AMMAN SPINNING MILLS LTD

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement Contd.. (Rs. in Lakhs)
. For the year ended For the year ended
Parficulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from non-current borrowings 2,200.00 1,060.00
Repayment of non-current borrowings (4,225.04) (3.601.73)
Increase / (decrease) in working capital borrowings (2,367.26) 4,886.22
Payment of dividend including tax thereon (304.20) (303.88)
Repayment of operating lease liabilities (117.91) -
Interest paid on lease liabilities (32.62) -
Finance costs paid (7,421.78) (6,796.91)
Net cash flow (used in) financing activities (C) T | 226881 | (4,756.30)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 2,364.25 (602.14)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,060.15 1,662.29
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year * 3,424.40 1,060.15

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents with the Balance Sheet:
Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet (Refer Note 7.2) 3,591.51 1,324.90
Less: Bank balances not considered as cash and cash
equivalents, as defined in Ind AS 7 Cash Flow Statements:
i) Inearmarked accounts
- Margin money deposits (164.00) (262.00)
- Unpaid dividends account @3.11) (2.75)

Cash and cash equivalents as per Cash Flow Statement 3,424.40 1,060.15

* Comprises:
a) Cash on hand 8.16 10.05

b) Cheques/drafts on hand 3.50 161.00

¢) Balances with banks:

i) In current accounts 818.00 453.39

ii) In deposit accounts 2,594.74 435.71

Total — 342440 | 1,060.15

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

In tferms of our report attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP S V ARUMUGAM K SADHASIVAM
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director Director
DIN 00002458 DIN 00610037
BALAJIM N N KRISHNARAJ S SESHADRI
Partner Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
ACS No. 20472 .
Bengaluru Coimbatore
15" September, 2020 15" September, 2020
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BANNARI AMMAN SPINNING MILLS LTD

Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note
No.

Particulars

1.

2.1

Corporate Information

annari Amman Spinning Mills Limited (the "Company" / "Holding Company") is a integrated ftextile company
engaged in the manufacture of cotton yarn, knitted & woven fabrics, pocessing of fabrics, finished garments,
home textiles and wind power generation. It also has retail division under the brand name "BITZ". The company
was incorporated in the year 1989 and issued shares to the public in the year 2006. In addition the company
hasinvestment in subsidiaries which have been collectively referred to as "Group”.

Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to allthe years presented, unless otherwise stated.

a) Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements

i Compliance with Ind AS
The consolidated financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) (Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Except forthe changes below, the group has consistently applied accounting policies to all periods.

The group has adopted Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ with the date of initial
application being April 1, 2018. Ind AS 115 establishes a comprehensive framework on revenue
recognition. Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 ‘Revenue’ and Ind AS 11 ‘Construction Contracts’. The
application of Ind AS 115 did not have material impact on the financial statements. As a result, the
comparative information has not been restated.

AppendixBto Ind AS 21 ‘The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates’: On March 28, 2018, Ministry
of Corporate Affairs (""MCA") has nofified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance
consideration which clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange
rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense orincome, when an entity has received or
paid advance consideration in a foreign currency. The amendment is effective from April 1, 2018. The
group has evaluated the effect of this amendment on the financial statements and concluded that the
impactisnot material.

i) Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

a) Certain property plant and equipment, financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
value and

b) definedbenefit plans-plan assets measured af fair value
c) assetsheldforsale—measured at fair value less cost to sell
b) Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
D) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the group has control. The group controls
an entity when the group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is tfransferred to the group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the group.

121




BANNARI AMMAN SPINNING MILLS LTD

Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note Particulars
No.
The group combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like
items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Infer company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on fransactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the fransaction provides evidence of an impairment of the fransferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
group.
Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit andloss, consolidated statement of changes in equity and balance sheet respectively.
The carrying amount of equity accounted investments are tested forimpairment.
The consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Group include subsidiaries/joint ventures which are
incorporatedinIndiainthe table below:
. As at As at
Name of the entity March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Young Brand Apparel Private Limited 51.33% 51.33%
Accel Apparels Private Limited 100.00% 100.00%
Abirami Amman Designs Private Limited
(Formerly Abirami Amman Mills Private Limited) 100.00% 100.00%
Bannari Amman Trendz Private Limited 100.00% 100.00%
Bannari Amman Retails Private Limited 100.00% 100.00%
22 Segmentreporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker.
The board of directors of the Holding Company assesses the financial performance and position of the
Company, and makes strategic decisions. The board of directors, has been identified as being the chief
operating decision maker.
23 Use of estimates

In the application of the group’s accounting policies, the directors of the Holding Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or
inthe period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

a) Usefullives of property, plant and equipment
Useful lives of property, plant and equipmentThe group reviews the useful life of property, plant and
equipment at the end of each reporting period. This assessment may resultin change in the depreciation
expense in future periods.

b) Deferredtax assets
Deferred tax assetsThe carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
allor part of the asset o be recovered.
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BANNARI AMMAN SPINNING MILLS LTD

Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note
No.

Particulars

24

25

2.6

2.7

¢c) Employee benefits

The cost of defined benefit plans are determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation
involves making assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of return on assets, future salary
increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the long-term nature of these plans, such
estimates are subject to significant uncertainty.

d) ImpactofCovid-19

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and the resulting lockdown enforced from March 23, 2020 has
affected the Group’s regular operations. The Group has considered the possible effects that may result
from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of Property, plant and equipment,
Inventories, Receivables and Other assets. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future
uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Group, as at the date of
approval of these financial results has used internal and external sources on the expected future
performance of the Group. The Group has evaluated its liquidity position, recoverability and based on
current estimates expects the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered. The impact of COVID-
19 on the Group’s financial results may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these
financial results.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of raw materials, Packing materials,
Stores and Spares and consumables are valued at Cost on First-In-First-Out (FIFO) basis or weighted average
basis. Value of finished goods and work-in-progress are determined on FIFO or weighted average cost basis
andinclude appropriate share of overheads.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits with banks other than deposits
pledged with government authorities and margin money deposits.

Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank
borrowings are generally considered to be financing activities. However, where bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand form an integral part of an entity’s cash management, bank overdrafts are included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents. A characteristic of such banking arrangements is that the
bank balance offen fluctuates from being positive to overdrawn.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is
adjusted for the effects of fransactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the group are
segregated based on the available information.

Taxes on Income

a) Currenttax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from *profit before
tax” as reported in the standalone statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
current taxis calculated using tax rates that have been enacted and are applicable as at the end of the
reporting period. In the absence of adequate taxable profits, the group is required to pay Minimum
Alternate Tax (MAT) on the book profits, as adjusted for certain provisions.

b) Deferredtax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
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BANNARI AMMAN SPINNING MILLS LTD

Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note
No.

Particulars

2.8

c

a)

liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the tfemporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a tfransaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

MAT paid in accordance with the tax laws, if any, which gives future economic benefits in the form of
adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the
group will pay normal tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as a deferred tax asset in the Balance sheet
whenitis highly probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the group.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
ofthe asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax forthe year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to
items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price net of any frade discounts and
rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax
authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for ifs intended use,
including relevant borrowing costs for qualifying assets and any expected costs of decommissioning.
Expenditure incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the costs
are incurred. Major shut-down and overhaul expenditure is capitalised as the activities undertaken
improves the economic benefits expected to arise from the asset.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset andis recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Property, plant and equipment except freehold land held for use in the production, supply or
administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulatedimpairmentlosses, if any.

Freehold land and leasehold land where the lease is convertible to freehold land under lease
agreements at future dates at no additional cost, are not depreciated.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as
owned assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the
end of the lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.
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BANNARI AMMAN SPINNING MILLS LTD

Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note
No.

Particulars

29

2.10

b) Capitalwork-in-progress

Projects under which assets are not ready for their intfended use and other capital work-in-progress are
carried at cost, comprising direct cost and related incidental expenses.

Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their infended use. Depreciable amount for
assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value.
Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties
under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using straight-line method as per the
useful life prescribedin Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

The group reviews the residual value, useful lives and depreciation method annually and, if expectations
differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate on a
prospective basis.

Leases

Ind AS 116 - Leases, has become applicable effective annual reporting period beginning April 1, 2019. The
Company has adopted the standard beginning April 1, 2019, using the modified retrospective approach for
fransition. Accordingly, the Company has not restated the comparative information, instead the cumulative
effect of initially applying the standard has been recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings ason April 1,2019.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The
estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and
equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and
adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, company’sincremental borrowing rate. Generally, the company uses its incremental borrowing
rate asthe discountrate.

Revenue recognition

Effective from 1st April 2018 the group has adopted Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The
group has adopted full retrospective adoption in which standard is applicable to all the periods presented,
including comparative period. The revenue isrecognised as follows :

Revenue is recognised when control of the goods services are transferred to the customer at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment. The group is the
principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it
has pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks. However, Goods and Services tax (GST)
are notreceived by the group onits own account. Rather, itis tax collected on value added to the commodity
by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, itis excluded fromrevenue.

)} Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when control of the goods is fransferred to the Customers.
Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received orreceivable,
net of refurns and allowances, frade discounts and volume rebates.

ii)  Time and material:
Revenue from time and material contracts are recognised as and when services are rendered o the

customer. These are based on the efforts spent and rates agreed with the customer. Revenue from the
end of the last invoicing to the reporting date isrecognised as unbilled revenue.
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Note
No.

Particulars

i)

iv)

Dividend andinterestincome

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right o receive payment has
been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably). Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cashreceipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Other operating revenue

Income incidental to exports such as duty drawback, Merchandise Exports from India Scheme (MEIS),
income from import entitlement and premium on sale of such entitlement are recognised when thereis a
reasonability of collection.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits include provident fund, employee state insurance, gratuity fund and compensated
absences.

a

b)

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to defined contribution Retirement Benefit Plans are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit Retirement Benefit Plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the
projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual
reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to
the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected in the
balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which
they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in
retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit orloss. Past service cost is recognised in profit orlossin the
period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of
the periodto the net defined benefit liability or asset.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

- service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments
andsettlements);

- netinferest expense orincome; and

- remeasurement

For defined benefit plan, in the form of gratuity fund, the cost of providing benefits is determined using
the Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each Balance Sheet
date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which
they occur. The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the present
value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost, asreduced by
the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus
the present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the scheme. The gratuity
fundis maintained with Life Insurance Corporation of India.

The group presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item
‘Employee benefits expenses’. Curtailment gains andlosses are accounted for as past service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus
in the group’s defined benefit plan. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present
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No.

Particulars

2.12

2.13

2.14

value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future
conftributionsto the plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw
the offer of the termination benefit and when the entity recognises any related restructuring costs.

c) Short-term and otherlong term employee benefits

Alliability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expectedto be paidin exchange forthat service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paidin exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long term employee benefits are measured at the present value
of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the group in respect of services provided
by employees up to the reporting date.

Foreign currency transactions and translations
i) Functional and presentation currency

[fems included in the financial statements of the group are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the group operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial
statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the group’s functional and presentation
currency.

ii) Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currency are translated into the respective functional currencies using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the respective fransactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at the exchange rates
prevailing at reporting date of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss and reported within foreign exchange gains/ (losses). Also
refernote 2.1(1).

Non-monetary assets and liabilities are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currencies are not
retfranslated. Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis. This includes changes in the
fair value of foreign exchange derivative instruments, which are accounted at fair value through profit or
loss.

Borrowings and borrowing cost

Borrowings are recognised inifially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest rate method. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group has an unconditional right
to defersettlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily fake a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for theirintended use or
sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in statement of profit andlossin the period in which they are incurred.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax by the weighted average number
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No.

Particulars

2.15

2.16

of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit /
(loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges fo expense or income relating to the
dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving
basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued
onthe conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognised when the group has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can
be made. Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are not discounted to their present value and are
determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. These are
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities
are disclosedin the Noftes.

Financial instruments

All financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are attributable to the

acquisition of the financial asset (other than financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss) are

included in the fair value of the financial assets. Purchase or sales of financial assets that require delivery of

assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way frade) are

recognised on frade date. While, financial liabilities like loans and borrowings and payables are recognised

net of directly attributable fransaction costs.

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial instruments of the group are classified in the following

categories: non-derivative financial assets comprising amortised cost, equity instruments at FVTOCI or fair

value through profit andloss account (FVTPL) and financial liabilities at amortised cost or FVTPL.

The classification of financial instrumnents depends on the objective of the business model for which it is held.

Management determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition.

a) Non-derivative financial assets

i)  Financial assets at amortised cost

Afinancial asset shallbe measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months after the reporting
date which are presented as non-current assets. Financial assets are measured inifially at fair value plus
fransaction costs and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, fransaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying
amount oninitial recognition.

Financial assets at amortised cost are represented by trade receivables, security deposits, cash and
cash equivalents, employee and other advances and eligible current and non-current assets.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as af FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the “Other Income”
lineitem.
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No.

Particulars

i)

iii)

iv)

Equity instruments at FVTOCI

All equity instruments are measured at fair value. Equity instruments held for frading is classified as FVTPL.
For all other equity instruments, the group may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changesin the fair value in OCI. The group makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

If the group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividend are recognised in OCl which is not subsequently recycled to statement of
profit andloss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial asset which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortised cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as FVTPL.

In addition the group may elect to designate the financial asset, which otherwise meets amortised cost
or FVOCI criteria, as FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and isincluded in the *Otherincome’
line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the
dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the
amount of dividend can be measuredreliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

The group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, orwhen it fransfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another party. If the group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the group recognises ifs retained interest in the
asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a fransferred financial asset, the group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss if such gain orloss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial
asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the group retains an option to
repurchase part of atransferred asset), the group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial
asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference
between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it
thathad been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss
would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part
that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts.
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2.17

b)

i)

iii)

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost represented by borrowings, frade and other payables are initially
recognized at fair value, and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit orloss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on
the financial liability and is included in the ‘Finance costs’ line item. The group derecognises financial
liabilities when, and only when, the group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable isrecognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at
the end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the
amortised cost of the instruments and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The fair value of
financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and
tfranslated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured as
at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is recognised in
profit orloss.

Derecognition of non-derivative financial liabilities

The group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with
substantially different ferms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing
financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as
an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable isrecognised in profit or loss.

Impairment

a

in

Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement
and recognifion of impairment loss. The group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of
impairment loss allowance on tfrade receivable. The application of simplified approach does not require
the group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right fromiitsinitial recognition.

Lifetime ECLs are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default
eventsthat are possible within 12-months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all shortfalls), discounted at the
original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity isrequired to consider:

All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension etc.) over the
expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial
instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity isrequired to use the remaining contractual term
of the financialinstrument.

Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
confractualterms.
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2.18

2.19

As practical expedient, the group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss on portfolio of its
tfrade receivable. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the
expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting
date, the historically observed default rates are updated and changes in forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the year is recognised as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
instrumentsis described below:

Financial assets measured at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivable: ECL is presented as an
allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The
allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Unftil the asset meets write off criteria, the group does not
reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

b) Non-financial assets

The group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a non financial
asset or a group of non financial assets is impaired. If any such indication exists, the group estimates the
amount ofimpairment loss.

Animpairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and recoverable
amount. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account. When the group
considers that there are no redlistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written
off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, then the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater of its value
in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets
are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use
that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating
unit”).
Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that: i) the group will comply
with the conditions attachedto them; and i) the grant will be received.

Government grants related to revenue are recognised on a systematic basis in the statement of profit and loss
over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs which they are intended to compensate.
Such grants are deductedinreporting the related expense. When the grantrelates to an asset, it is recognized
asincome over the expected useful life of the asset.

Where the group receives non-monetary grants, the asset is accounted for on the basis of its acquisition cost.
In case a non-monetary asset is given free of cost it is recognised at a fair value. When loan or similar assistance
are provided by government or related institutions, with an interest rate below the current applicable market
rate, the effect of this favourable interest is recognized as government rate. The loan or assistance is initially
recognized and measured at fair value and the government grant is measured as the difference between the
initial carrying value of the loan and the proceedsreceived.

Operating cycle
Based on the nature of products / activities of the group and the normal fime between acquisition of assets

andtheirrealisation in cash or cash equivalents, the group has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for
the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.
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3B Intangible assets

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Description of assets

Computer software

l. Gross
Balance as at April 1, 2018 22.28
Additions -
Disposals -
Balance as at March 31, 2019 22.28
Additions _
Disposals -
Balance as at March 31, 2020 22.28
Il. Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at April 1, 2018 4.70
Depreciation / amortisation expenses for the year 4.19
Disposals -
Balance as at March 31, 2019 8.89
Depreciation / amortisation expenses for the year 4,02
Disposals -
Balance as at March 31, 2020 12.91
Net (I-II)
Balance as at March 31, 2019 13.39
Balance as at March 31, 2020 9.37
3C Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Particul Year ended Year ended

arficulars March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019

Tangible assets 3,135.47 3.,392.64

Intangible assets 4.02 4,19

Depreciation on Right-of-use assets 123.34 -

Total 3,262.83 3,396.83

3D The Holding Company entered into an agreement to sell dated March 30, 2011 with Shiva Tex Yarn Limited for the
sale of part of land situated at Velvarkottai, Dindigul and Kodangipalayam, Karanampet, Coimbatore, valued at

Rs.56,72,085/-. Accordingly the said amount is disclosed as assets held for sale.
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Non - current Assets

4
4.1

5

Financial Assets

Investments

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

|. Quoted investments (fully paid)
Investments in equity instruments - Others
[) 250 (As at March 31, 2019 - 250) equity shares of Rs.10/- each in

Bannari Amman Sugars Limited 3.83 3.83
i) 34 (As at March 31, 2019 - 34) equity shares of Rs.10/- each in Moil Limited 0.03 0.03
Total Quoted Investments 3.86 3.86
Il. Unquoted Investments (fully paid)
I, Investments - Others
i) Nil (As at March 31, 2019 - 54,740) Preference shares of Anamaillais
Agencies Private Limited of Rs.100/- each - 58.57
i) 6,443 (As at March 31, 2019 - 6,443) Preference shares of
Shiva Automobile Private Limited of Rs. 100 each 5.10 5.10
ii) 15,000 (As at March 31, 2019 - 15,000) Equity shares of Rs.10/- each
in OPG Metal Power Private Limited 1.50 1.50
vi) 1,32,700 (As af March 31, 2019 - 1,66,900) Equity shares of Rs.10/- each in
OPG Power Generation Private Limited 14.89 18.81
lll.  Investments in Government securities
Kisan Vikas Patra 0.03 0.03
Total Unquoted Investments 21.52 84.01
Total Investments 25.38 87.87
Aggregate amount of quoted investments 3.86 3.86
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 3.86 3.86
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 21.52 84.01
Aggregate market value of unquoted investments 21.52 84.01
Other non-current assets
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Security deposits paid 997.93 446.86
Capital advances 1.23 134.17
Other advances 206.02 248.89
Advance tax and tax deducted at source (Net) 272.18 230.97
Total - Other non-current assets 1,477.36 1,060.89
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Current assets

6

Inventories
(At lower of cost and net realisable value)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Raw materials 16,370.84 16,875.59
Work-in-progress 1,900.67 1.841.73
Finished goods 13,183.42 11,693.80
Stock-in-trade 521.39 590.82
Stores and spares 679.44 797.17
Total - Inventories 32,655.76 31,799.11
Financial assets
Trade receivables
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
A) Trade receivable considered good - Unsecured 16,657.65 18.,958.93
B) Trade receivable - Credit impaired 814.52 657.17
17,472.17 19.616.10
Less: Allowance for doubftful frade receivables (814.52) (657.17)
Total - Trade receivables 16,657.65 18,958.93

The Group uses a provision matrix fo determine impairment loss on portfolio of its frade receivable. The provision matrix is
based onits historically observed default rates over the expected life of the tfrade receivable and is adjusted for forward-
looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in forward-
looking estimates are analysed. The Company estimates the following matrix at the reporting date.

Ageing
1-90 days 91-180 days > 180 days
Domestic customers
Defaulf rate 2.71% 9.55% 15.00%
PY 1.09% 8.30% 17.73%
Movement in expected credit loss allowance
Particul For the For the
arficulars year ended year ended

March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Balance at the beginning of the year 657.17 605.04
Movement in expected credit loss on frade receivables calculated at lifetime
expected credit losses 157.35 52.13
Balance at the end of the year 814.52 657.17
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7.2

7.3

7.4

Cash and cash equivalents

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particul As at As at
arficulars March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
a) Cash on hand 8.16 10.05
b) Cheques/drafts on hand 3.50 161.00
c) Balances with banks : -
i) In current accounts 818.00 453.39
i) In deposit accounts 2,694.74 435.71
i) In earmarked accounts
- Margin money deposits 164.00 262.00
- Unpaid dividend accounts 3.11 2.75
Total - Cash and cash equivalents 3,591.51 1,324.90
Of the above, balances that meet the definition of cash and cash
equivalents as per Ind AS 7 Cash Flow Statements is 3.,424.40 1,060.15
Loans
(Unsecured and considered good, unless stated otherwise)
Particul As at As at
PICULES March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Employee advance 37.97 47.94
Total - Loans 37.97 47.94
Other financial assets
(Unsecured and considered good, unless stated otherwise)
Particul As at As at
arficuiars March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
Accruals:
- Interest accrued on fixed deposits with banks 16.46 2.76
- TUF subsidy receivable 540.81 269.93
- Incentive/grant receivable 531.00 531.00
- Unbilled revenue (Refer Note (i) below) 488.60 422.09
Insurance claim receivable - 46.01
Derivative financial instruments 243.51 241.02
Total - Other financial assets 1,820.38 1,512.81
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7.5

Note (i) Movement in unbilled revenue

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As of As of
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Opening Balance 422.09 547.90
Add: Revenue recognised during the year 66.51 422.08
Less: Invoiced during the year - 458.93
Less: Reversal / adjustments during the year - 88.96
Closing Balance 488.60 422.09
Current tax assets
Particulars As of As of
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Current tax assets (Advance tax & TDS for the year) 166.99 305.00
Total - Current tax assets 166.99 305.00
Other current assets
(Unsecured and considered good, unless stated otherwise)
Particulars As of As at
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Prepaid expenses 511.38 477.84
Balances with government authorities:
- Duty drawback/Export incentive receivable 988.06 977.43
- GST receivable 1.208.67 1,627.03
- ESI liquidated damages 7.58 7.58
Gratuity 131.98 17.25
Advance to suppliers 977.53 1,649.29
Total - Other current assets 3,825.20 4,756.42
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9

Equity Share Capital
As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Particulars Number Amount Number Amount
of shares in Lakhs of shares in Lakhs
a) Authorised:
i) Equity share capital
Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 1,60,00,000 1,600.00 | 1,60,00,000 1,600.00
ii) Preference share capital
Cumulative preference shares of Rs.100/- each 50,000 50.00 50,000 50.00
Total 1,60,50,000 1,650.00 | 1,60,50,000 1,650.00
b) lIssued, subscribed and fully paid-up:
i) Equity share capital
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,57.,54,269 1,675.43 | 1,57,54,269 1,5675.43
Total - Equity share capital 1,57,54,269 1,575.43 | 1,57,54,269 1,575.43

i) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting

period

Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each

Afthe beginning of the year 1,57.54,269 1,5675.43 | 1,57,54,269 1.575.43
Add: Issued during the year = - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,57,54,269 1,5675.43 | 1,57,54,269 1,575.43

ii)  Terms / rights attached to the Equity Shares

i)

The Company has issued only one class of equity share having a face value of Rs. 10/- per share. The holder of each
equity share is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares
will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution to all preferential creditors and other
creditors, in the order of priority. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by
shareholders. The company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by Board of
Directorsis subject to the approval of Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Distributions made and proposed

Dividend recognized as distributions to equity shareholders for the year ended March 31,2019 was Rs 1.60 per share.
The Board of Directors at its meeting held on May 30, 2019 had recommended a dividend of 16% (Rs.1.60 per equity
share of par value Rs 10 each). The proposal was approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on
August 19, 2019, this has resulted in a cash outflow of Rs 303.88 lakhs, inclusive of corporate dividend tax of Rs 52.13
lakhs. Further, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on August 13, 2020 have not proposed dividend.

iv) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the share capital
Equity Shares
As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Name of the Shareholder Number o of Number o of
of shares . of shares -

held holding held holding
Murugan Enterprise Private Limited 7,803,733 49.53% 7,803,733 49.53%
Gagandeep Credit Capital Private Limited 987.475 6.27% 987.475 6.27%
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10

11
11.1

Other Equity (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particul As at As at
arficulars March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019

1. Securities premium account
Amounts received on issue of shares in excess of the par value has been
classified as securities premium.

Opening balance 7,930.76 7,930.76
Closing balance 7,930.76 7,930.76

2. General reserve
This represents appropriation of profit by the group.

Opening balance 16,295.22 16,295.22
Closing balance 16,295.22 16,295.22

3. Retained earnings
Retained earnings comprise of the group’s current and prior years
undistributed earnings after taxes or accumulated losses.

Opening balance 5,009.32 3,222.14
Add : Profit for the current year 242.48 2,091.06
Less : Cash dividends (252.07) (252.07)
Less : Tax on dividends 52.13) (51.81)
Impact on account of initial application of Ind AS 116 (Refer Note 31) (11.08) -
Closing balance 4,936.52 5,009.32

4. Other items of other comprehensive income
Other items of other comprehensive income consist of fair value changes
on FVTOCI financial assets and financial liabilities and remeasurement of
net defined benefit liability/asset.

Opening balance 422.67 466.97
Add : Movement during the year 73.04 (44.30)
Closing balance 495.71 422.67
Total - Other equity (1 +2 +3 +4) 29,658.21 29,657.97
Non-current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings

a) Term Loans - Secured (Refer Note (i) to (xii) below)

- From banks 15,897.45 21,225.35

- From others 1,519.50 1,335.92

b) Borrowings from others - Unsecured (Refer Note (xiii) below) 2,200.00 -
Total - Borrowings 19,616.95 22,561.27

Notes - Details of terms of repayment and security provided in respect of secured term loans:

i) ICICI Bank Limited- Rupee term loan 2 1,054.85 1,697.52
ICICI Bank Limited- Rupee term loan 3 1,915.00 2,883.34
Less: Current maturities of long term debt (1,590.41) (1,691.60)

Total 1,379.44 2,889.26
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TermlLoan?2:

Termloan 3:

Repayment:

Rate of Interest :
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First Pari passu charge on the entire property, plant and equipment of Spinning Unit | located at
Vadamadurai, Dindigul alongwith other banks and exclusive charge on the specific plant & machinery
of weaving unit.

First charge on the entire property, plant and equipment of Spinning Mill Unit | situated at Dindigul on
pari passu basis alongwith other banks and exclusive charge on the windmills (Land, Building, Plant &
Machinery) of the Company with an aggregate installed capacity of 16.2 MW located at
Chinnaputhur village, Tirupur District and Irukkandurai Village, Tirunelveli District.

Term Loan 2: 16 quarterly instalments starting from July 2017.
Term Loan 3: 16 quarterly instalments starting from June 2018.
TermLoan2:4.43%

Termloan 3: 10%.

(Rs. in Lakhs)

. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
i) Indian Bank - Rupee Term Loan 971.35 1.344.92
Less: Current maturities of long term debt (250.00) (376.00)
Total 721.35 968.92

Pari-passu first charge by way of equitable mortgage over factory land and building at SIPCOT Perundurai and exclusive
charge on fixed assets purchased out of the loan.

Repayment :32 Quarterly instalments starting from February 2014.
Rate of Interest : 12.80%

i) Indian Bank - Rupee Term Loan 5,922.93 7,411.00
Less: Current maturities of long term debt (1,125.00) (1,500.00)
Total 4,797.93 5,911.00

Pari-passu first charge by way of equitable mortgage of factory land and building of Spinning, Weaving, Knitting,
Processing and Garment divisions of the company alongwith other banks.

Repayment : 32 Quarterly instalments starting from June 2016.
Rate of Interest: 12.80%

iv) Indian Bank - Rupee Term Loan 4,161.02 4,331.99
Less: Current maturities of long term debt (239.40) (228.00)
Total 3,921.62 4,103.99

Pari-passu first charge by way of equitable mortgage of factory land and building of Spinning, Weaving, Knitting,
Processing and Garment divisions of the company alongwith other banks.

Repayment : 32 Quarterly instalments starting from June 2018.
Rate of Interest : 12.80%
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particul As at As at
arficuiars March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
v) DCB Bank Limited - Term Loan 1,726.19 2,444.91
Less: Current maturities of long tferm debt (416.67) (718.72)
Total 1,309.52 1,726.19

Exclusive charge over windmills of 7.20 MW capacity located at Melkaraipatti & Kottathurai Village, Palani Taluk, Dindigul

District.
Repayment : 42 Monthly instalments starting fromn March 2019,
Rate of Interest : 9.30%

Vi) Axis Bank - Term Loan 2,012.50 2,192.12
Less: Current maturities of long term debt (2,012.50) (237.12)
Total - 1,955.00

Exclusive charge on windmill unit IV & V assets of 6.556 MW capacity situated at Chinnapudur Village, Dharapuram Taluk,

Tamilnadu and Kongalnagaram, Udumalpet Taluk, Tirupur District, Tamilnadu.

Repayment : 24 Quarterly instalments starting from December 2018. Rate of Interest : 10.45%.

vii) Indian overseas Bank - Term loan 2,681.46 2,963.31
Less: Current maturities of long tferm debt (185.00) (374.35)
Total 2,496.46 2,588.96

Paripassu first charge on property, plant and equipment of Spinning Mill Unit | located at Nadukandanur Pirivu,
Vadamadurai, Dindigul and Paripassu first charge on fixed assets of Spinning Mill Unit Il located at Velvarkottai, Trichy

Highway 45, Vedasandur TK, Dindigul - 624803 alongwith other banks.

Repayment : 32 Quarterly instalments starting from August 2019. Rate of Interest: 10.95%

viii) Oriental Bank of Commerce - Rupee Term Loan 967.45 1,176.70
Less: Current maturities of long term debt (133.00) (228.00)
Total 834.45 948.70

First charge on Property, plant and equipment of Young Brand Apparel Private Limited, including equitable mortgage
over factory land and building and hypothecation of other property plant and equipment acquired out the loan.

After the initial holiday period of 24 months, repayable in 84 equal quarterly installments commencing from June 2017,

lastinstallment due in March 2024. Rate of interest: 13.5%.

ix) Oriental Bank of Commerce - Corporate Rupee Term Loan 150.00 333.33
Less: Current maturities of long term debt (116.70) (200.00)
Total 33.30 133.33

First charge on Property plant and equipment of the Company, including equitable mortgage over factory land and
building.

After the initial holiday period of 12 months, repayable in 60 equal monthly instalments commmencing from december
2015, last instalment due in December 2020. Rate of interestis 13.5% as at the yearend.
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particul As at As at
articulars March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
x) Oriental Bank of Commerce - Rupee Term Loan 403.40 -
Less: Current maturities of long term debt - -
Total 403.40 -

Security : First charge on Property plant and equipment of the Company, including equitable mortgage over factory
land and building and hypothecation of other property plant and equipment acquired out the loan. After the initial
holiday period of 24 months, repayable in 84 equal monthly instalments commencing from July 2021. Rate of interest is

12.75% as at the yearend.

xi) Palladam Hi-Tech Weaving Park 47.84 47.84
Less: Current maturities of long term debt - (23.61)
Total 47.84 24.23

First charge on fixed assets acquired out of loan of Garment Unit located at Palladom Hi-Tech Weaving Park,

Sukkampalayam Village, K.N.Puram (Po), Palladam.
Rate of Interest : 0.75% .

Repayment :

120 Monthly instalments starting from April 2010.

xii) SIPCOT Soft Loan 2,654.90 2,654.90
Less: Current maturities of long term debt - -
Less: Government grant (Refer note (i) below) (1,083.25) (1,243.21)

Total 1,471.65 1,311.69

i) First charge by way of equitable mortgage over factory land and building and hypothecation of other movable
assets financed by SIPCOT for the expansion project ranking paripassu with other banks and property plant and
equipment of the expansion scheme of spinning units located at Velvarkottai Village, Dindigul, Weaving unit and

Knitting unit at Karanampet, Coimbatore.

i) The Government of Tamil Nadu in its order : G.O. Ms. No. 126, dated October 20, 2009, has granted an amount
equivalent to net output VAT + CST paid through expansion project to Government as Investment Promotion Soft
Loan for a period of 10 years, subject to terms and conditions mentioned in the Eligibility Certificate
ID/SPA/BSML/2010 dated 30 April 2013. The soft loan will carry a nominal rate of 0.1% per annum. The soft loan
sanctioned is repayable on the 10th year from the date of sanction. This is considered as Government grant and
accordingly the loan amount is carried at amortised cost considering an effective interest rate of 12.16%. The
Government grantincome isrecognised proportionately in relation to the interest expense.

Unsecured loan :

xiii) Murugan Enterprise Private Limited 2,200.00 -
Total 2,200.00 -
Non-Current borrowings - Total 19.616.95 22,561.27
Current maturities of long term borrowings - Total 6,068.68 5,677.40
Total 25,685.63 28,138.67
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12.1

12.2

Current liabilities

13
13.1

Provisions (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particul As at As at
arficulars March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
Provision for employee benefits :
Provision for gratuity (Refer No.25.1.b) 231.21 126.27
Total - Provisions 231.21 126.27
Other non-current liabilities
Government grant - SIPCOT soft loan (Refer note 11.1) 904.30 1,083.25
Grant from Technology Upgradation Fund scheme 84.17 94.69
Total - Other non-current liabilities 988.47 1,177.94
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Particul As at As at
el (Sl March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
a) Working capital loan from banks (Secured) (Refer Note 1 below) 39.046.49 41,824.51
b) Working capital loan from banks (Un-secured/Residual) (Refer Note 2 below) 2,939.87 2,5563.27
c) Liability for bills discounted - other than banks 24,16 -
Total - Borrowings 42,010.52 44,377.78
Note - 1 Secured loans :
The Karur Vysya Bank Limited 1,356.87 1,101.77

Working Capital Limit: Rs. 1,250 Lakhs

Security : Pari passu first charge on entire current asset of Spinnng Unit | situated at Nadukandanur pirivu, Morepatty Post,
Vadamadurai, Dindigul alongwith other banks. Pari passu second charge on entire property, plant and equipment of

Spinning Unit 1.

Corporation Bank

5,164.98

5011.44

Working Capital Limit: Rs. 5,250 Lakhs

Security : Paripassu first charge on the entire current asset of Spinning Unit I, I and Weaving Unit alongwith other banks.
Paripassu second charge on the entire property, plant and equipment of Spinning Unit |, Il and Weaving units.

|ICICI Bank Limited

2,315.27

2,199.54

Working Capital limit: Rs. 2,500 Lakhs

Security : First Charge by way of Hypothecation of Raw materials, semi-finished and finished goods, consumable
stores and spares and other movable properties both present and future of Spinning unit | for limit upto Rs. 2,500 Lakhs

on paripassu basis with other banks.

Oriental Bank of Commerce

5,581.24

6,583.90

Working Capital Limit: Fund based limit : Rs. 6,000 Lakhs Non-fund based limit : Rs. 2,500 Lakhs
Security : Paripassu first charge on the entire current assets of Spinning Unit Il, Garment and Processing Units alongwith
otherbanks. Paripassu second charge on the entire fixed assets of Spinning Unit I, Garment and Processing Units.
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

Indian Overseas Bank

10.219.03

12,408.97

Working Capital Limit: Fund based limit : Rs. 10,000 Lakhs Non-fund based limit : Rs.2,500 Lakhs
Security : Paripassu first charge on the entire current assets of Spinning Unit Il and Knitting Unit alongwith other banks.

Paripassu second charge on the entire property, plant and equipment of Spinning Unit Il and Knitting Unit.

Bank of Maharashtra

735.99

980.45

Working Capital Limit: Fund based limit : Rs. 1,000 Lakhs

Security : Paripassu first charge on the entire current assets of Processing Unit. Paripassu second charge on the entire

property, plant and equipment of Processsing Unit.

Allohabad Bank

3,755.73

3.352.61

Working Capital Limit: Rs. 3,700 Lakhs

Security :Paripassu first charge on the entire current assets of Spinning Unit Il & Garment Unit alongwith other banks.

Paripassu second charge on the entire property, plant and equipmentof Spinning Unit Il & Garment Unit.

Bank of Bahrain & Kuwait B.S.C.

1,925.59

1,082.23

Working Capital Limit: Rs. 2,000 Lakhs

Security : Paripassu first charge on the entire current assets of Spinning Unit | alongwith other banks. Paripassu second

charge on the entire fixed assets of Spinning Unit 1.

Indian Bank

1,510.03

1,546.40

Working Capital Limit: Rs. 3,000 Lakhs

Security : First Charge by way of Hypothecation of Raw materials, Stock-in-trade, Finished goods of the Garment Division.

Second charge onthe property, plant and equipment of the Garment Division.

DCB Bank Limited 2,466.70 2,475.75
Working Capital Limit: Rs. 2,500 Lakhs
Security: Extension of charge on windmills of 7.20 MW capacity offered as prime security for Term Loan.

Oriental Bank of commerce 4,015.06 4,181.45

Working Capital limit : Rs. 7,700 Lakhs.

Security : First Charge by way of Hypothecation of Raw materials, Stock in-process, Finished goods, stores ands spares
and receivables of Young Brand Apparel Private Limited. Second charge on the assets secured on term loans. Rate of

Interest: LIBOR plus 3.5% p.a Short Term Loan: 12.90% (Fixed)
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13.2

13.3

14

Note - 2 Unsecured / Residual loans :

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particul As at As at
articulars March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
ICICI Bank Limited 2,939.87 2,653.27
Working Capital limit : Rs. 3,500 Lakhs
Trade Payables
Total outstanding dues to Micros and small enterprises (Refer Note 24)
- For Raw materials 788.05 735.51
- For Others 21.46 40.44
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro and small enterprises
- For Raw materials 10,008.31 7,173.88
- For Others 3.914.66 3,280.97
Total - Trade payables 14,732.48 11,230.80
Other financial liabilities
Current maturities of long-term debt 6,068.68 5,5677.40
Interest accrued on borrowings 343.05 163.45
Unpaid dividend 3.11 2.75
Security deposits received 79.79 90.96
Contractually reimbursible expenses 0.54 7.28
Payables on purchase of property, plant and equipment 24.87 24.50
Total - Other financial liabilities 6,520.04 5,866.34
Provisions
a) Provision for employee benefits:
- Provision for compensated absence 120.66 135.08
- Provision for Gratuity (Refer No.25.1.b) 50.72 137.16
- Provision for bonus 135.33 219.32
b) Provision for income tax (Net) - 309.00
Total - Provisions 306.71 800.56
Other current liabilities
Statutory remittances 130.09 272.72
Other advances 455,07 -
Advances from customers 596.69 2,087.08
Advance received towards sale of property, plant and equipment 693.33 94.30
Government grant - SIPCOT soft loan (Refer note 11.1) 178.95 159.96
Total - Other current liabilities 2,054.13 2,614.06
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16 Revenue from operations

1. Disaggregated Revenue Information

(Rs. in Lakhs)

The Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of
revenues and cash flows are affected. Accordingly, the disaggregation by type of goods / services and by

geographicallocation of customersis provided in the table below:

Particulars

For the
year ended
March 31, 2020

For the
year ended
March 31, 2019

a) Sale of goods
a. Manufactured goods
Yarn
Fabrics
Waste Cotton
Garments
Less: Discount
b. Traded goods
Yarn
Cotton
c. Income from services provided
Sizing charges, CMT charges, Knitting & Processing Charges
b) Other operating revenues
Total - Revenue from operations

53,394.62 53,316.29
28,070.84 33,889.35
5,537.59 5,722.92
22,371.20 19.214.71
(144.47) -
282.61 41.03
234.54 139.88
2,193.86 2,940.72
1,446.82 2,184.04
113,387.67 117,448.94

The Company disaggregate the revenue based on geographic locations and it is disclosed under note 26 "Segment

reporting”.
17 Other income
a) Interestincome (Refer Note 1 below) 97.17 62.98
b) Net gain on foreign currency transactions and franslation - 638.66
c) Other non-operating income (Refer Note 2 below) 1,752.56 183.58
Total - Other income 1,849.73 885.22
Note
1. Interest income comprises:
Interest from financial assets at amortised cost 32.62 39.93
Interest on security deposit 64.55 23.05
Total - Interest income 97.17 62.98
2. Other non-operating income comprises:
Profit on sale of property plant and equipment (Net) 1,709.18 62.06
TUF Capital subsidy received - 10.52
Revenue grant and incentives 10.52 -
Profit on sale of Investment (Net) - 7.32
Miscellaneous income 32.86 103.68
Total - Other non-operating income 1,752.56 183.58
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18 A

18B

20

21

Cost of materials consumed

(Rs. in Lakhs)

For the For the
Particulars year ended year ended
March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
Opening stock 16,875.59 20,099.75
Add: Purchases 76,861.09 77,126.60
93,736.68 97.226.35
Less: Closing stock (16,370.84) (16,875.59)
Total - Cost of materials consumed 77,365.84 80,350.76
Purchase of stock-in-trade
Purchase of stock-in-trade 230.08 110.75
Total - Purcahse of stock-in-trade 230.08 110.75
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock in trade
Inventories at the end of the year:
Finished goods 13,183.42 11,826.97
Work-in-progress 1,900.67 1.841.73
Stock in trade 521.40 457.65
Total 15,605.49 14,126.35
Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Finished goods 11.826.97 7,345.97
Work-in-progress 1.841.73 3,785.17
Stock in trade 457.65 -
Total 14,126.35 11,131.14
Net (increase) / decrease (1,479.14) (2,995.21)
Employee benefits expenses
Salaries, wages and bonus 12,122.92 11,679.53
Contributions to provident and other funds (Refer Note 25.1.a & 25.1.b) 631.04 495,11
Staff welfare expenses 1,510.00 1,624.44
Total - Employee benefits expense 14,263.96 13,699.08
Finance costs
a) Interest expense on financial liabilities at amortised cost:
- Borrowings (Refer Note 30) 6,803.13 6,466.85
- Operating lease liabilities 32.63 -
b) Other borrowing costs 367.39 248.26
Total - Finance costs 7,203.15 6,715.11
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Other expenses

(Rs. in Lakhs)

For the For the
Particulars year ended year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Consumption of stores and spare parts 299.70 236.31
Manufacturing expenses 413.50 518.15
Consumption of packing materials 823.77 899.82
Power, fuel and water charges 5,157.12 5,764.77
Rent including lease rentals 68.39 143.51
Repairs and maintenance - Building 122.05 167.35
Repairs and maintenance - Machinery 1,692.67 2,336.84
Repairs and maintenance - Others 267.28 280.69
Insurance 547.66 421.29
Rates and taxes 365.86 425.98
Communication expenses 101.65 87.81
Travelling and conveyance 419.21 500.03
Printing and stationery 46.32 55.61
Freight and forwarding charges 942.96 1,057.79
Sales commission 763.00 821.77
Quallity claim 71.82 66.14
Hank yarn obligation 6.25 20.78
Business promotion expenses 82.73 91.06
Donation 5.07 0.80
Legal and professional charges 289.95 298.25
Payments to auditors (Refer note 1 below) 32.50 30.00
Corporate social responsibility expenditure 10.30 522
Provision for bad and doubtful debts 1567.35 52.13
Bad debts written off 222 1.14
Loss on sale of investment 3.83 -
Net loss on foreign currency transactions and translation 118.84 -
Miscellaneous expenses 575.16 253.68
Total - Other expenses 13,387.16 14,536.92

Note 1 - Payments to auditors:
Payments to auditors comprises

- Statutory audit fees 26.00 24.00
- For taxation matters 0.50 -
- Limited review fees 6.00 6.00
Total - Payments to auditors 32.50 30.00
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23

24

Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

Contingent liabilities :

a) Central Excise demands, pending in appeal 69.61 112.58
b) TANGEDCO demands, pending in appeal 1,166.91 1,046.30
c) Demand of Service tax on the amounts paid to Foreign Service Providers
is under dispute and an appeal has been filed before the Honourable
Madras High Court, Chennai 75.08 75.08
d) Infrastructure and amenities charges levied by Department of Town and
Country Planning, for which the Company has jointly made appeal to
Honourable High Court along with industrial units in the location and the
Honourable High Court has given a stay order. 79.60 79.60
ii) Commitments :
a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital
account and not provided for:
Tangible assets - 1,500.00
Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the
accounting year 809.51 775.96

i

iii)

iv)

V)

Vi)

Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of
the accounting year

The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made
to the supplier beyond the appointed day

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during
the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end
ofthe accounting year

The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding
year, until such date when the inferest dues as above are actually paid to
the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under section 23

Dues to micro and small enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the
basis of information collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

149



BANNARI AMMAN SPINNING MILLS LTD

Notes forming part of consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

25 Employee benéefit plans

25.1.a Defined contribution plans - provident fund and employee state insurance

The Group makes Provident Fund and Employee state insurance scheme contributions to defined contribution plans for
qualifying employees. Under the Schemes, the Group is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll
coststo fund the benefits. The Group recognised the following contributions in the Statement of profit andloss :

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particul For the For the
ariiculars year ended year ended
March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
Provident fund 435.64 359.89
Employee state insurance 87.81 85.71

25.1.b Defined benefit plan - gratuity

In accordance with applicable Indian laws, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan
(Gratuity plan). The Gratuity plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees, at retirement or termination of
employment, an amount based on the respective employee’s last drawn eligible salary and the years of employment
with the Company. The Company provides the gratuity benefit through annual contributions to a fund managed by the
Insurer included as part of *Contribution to provident and other funds’ in Note 20 Employee benefits expense. Under this
plan, the settlement obligation remains with the Company.

Description of Risk Exposures

Valuations are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions and other regulatory framework which
may vary over time. Thus, the Company is exposed to various risks in providing the above gratuity benefit which are as
follows:

a) Interest Rate Risk: The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fallin interest rates. A fallin interest rates will result in
anincrease in the ultimate cost of providing the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the
liability (as shown in financial statements).

b) Investment Risk: The probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses relative to the expected return on any
particularinvestment.

c) Salary Escalation Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary
increase rate of plan participantsin future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants
from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the
plan’sliabilty.

d) Demographic Risk: The Company has used certain mortality and afttrition assumptions in valuation of the liability.
The Company is exposed to the risk of actual experience turning out to be worse compared to the assumption.

e) Liquidity Risk: This is the risk that the Company is not able to meet the short-term gratuity payouts. This may arise
due to non-availabilty of enough cash/cashequivalent to meet the liabilities or holding of illiquid assets not being
soldintime.

Inrespect of the plan in India, the most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined
benefit obligation were carried out as at March 31, 2020 by Ms. Priyanka Shah, Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries of India.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were
measured using the projected unit credit method.
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The following table sets out the funded status of the gratuity scheme: (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particul For the For the
arficuiars year ended year ended

March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019

Components of employer expense

Current service cost 185.04 113.78
Past service cost - 21.76
Interest cost 45.59 38.85
Expected return on plan assets (35.23) (39.17)
Recognised in statement of profit and loss 195.40 135.22
Re-measurement - actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in OCI (113.94) 70.31
Total expense recognised in the Statement of total comprehensive income 81.46 205.53
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO experience (173.52) 143.53
Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO assumption changes 61.07 (564.38)
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising during period (112.45) 89.15
Actual return on plan assets (greater)/less interest on plan assets (1.49) (18.84)
Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognized in OCI (113.94) 70.31
Defined Benefit Cost

Service cost 185.04 135.54
Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 10.36 0.32)
Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognized in OCI (113.94) 70.31
Defined Benefit Cost 81.46 205.53
Change in defined benefit obligation (DBO) during the year

Present value of DBO at beginning of the year 724.14 535.84
Current service cost 185.04 113.78
Past service cost - 21.76
Interest cost 45.59 38.85
Actuarial (gains) / losses (112.45) 89.15
Benefits paid (67.76) (75.24)
Present value of DBO at the end of the year 774.56 724.14
Actual contribution and benefit payments for year

Actual benefit payments 67.76 75.24
Actual contributions 142.66 87.23
Change in fair value of assets during the year

Plan assets at beginning of the year 477.96 375.54
Expected return on plan assets 35.23 39.17
Actual company contributions 142.66 87.23
Actuarial gain / (loss) 1.49 18.84
Benefits paid (32.73) (42.82)
Plan assets at the end of the year 624.61 477.96
Actual return on plan assets 36.72 58.01
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25

Disclosures under Accounting Standards (Contd...)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particul For the For the
arficulars year ended year ended
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019

Current and Non Current liability portion
Current Assets 131.98 (137.16)
Current Liability (60.72) -
Non Current Asset / (Liability) (231.21) (126.27)
Net Asset/(Liability) (149.95) (263.43)
Net asset / (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligation 774.56 724.14
Fair value of plan assets 624.61 477.96
Funded status (Surplus / (Deficit)) (149.95) (246.18)
Net asset / (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet (149.95) (246.18)
Composition of the plan assets is as follows:
Government securities - -
Debentures and bonds - -
Fixed deposits - -
Insurer managed funds*® 100% 100%

Total 624.61 477.96
*Funds are managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India and composition of the fund as at the balance sheet date
was not provided by the insurer.
Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate 6.80% 7.70%
Expected return on plan assets 6.80% 7.70%
Attrition rate 3% to 1% 3% to 1%
Salary escalation 5% to 9% 5.00%

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the Balance Sheet date
forthe estimated term of the obligations.

Sensitivity Analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other
assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

Gratuity Plan

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Estimate value of obligation if discount rate is taken 1% higher
Estimate value of obligation if discount rate is taken 1% lower
Estimate value of obligation if salary growth rate is taken 1% higher
Estimate value of obligation if salary growth rate is taken 1% lower

Estimate value of obligation if attrition rate is taken 1% higher

Estimate value of obligation if attrition rate is faken 1% lower

685.05
816.16
814.65
685.55
737.75

752.86

667.12
791.78
791.03
667.10
468.68
452.17
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25

26

Disclosures under Accounting Standards (Contd...)

These sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit obligation in isolation and assuming
there are no other changes in market conditions at the accounting date. There have been no changes from the previous

periodsin the methods and assumptions usedin preparing the sensitivity analysis.

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:

Maturity profile, if it ensues

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

a N 0N —

Above 5

135.40
52.68
46.85
31.22
40.38

148.08

136.64
61.81
45.55
51.58
65.87

132.57

Asset Liability Matching Strategies

The Company has purchased insurance policy, which is basically a year-on-year cash accumulation plan in which the
interest rate is declared on yearly basis and is guaranteed for a period of one year. The insurance Company, as part of
the policy rules, makes payment of all gratuity liability occurring during the year (subject to sufficiency of funds under the
policy). The policy, thus, mitigates the liquidity risk. However, being a cash accumulation plan, the duration of assets is
shorter compared to the duration of liabilities. Thus, the Company is exposed to movement in interest rate (in particular,
the significant fallin interest rates, which should result in aincrease in liability without corresponding increase in the asset).

Segment Reporting

a) Primary business segment information

The Group’s operations relate to only one business segment, viz., Textiles. Accordingly, this is the only reportable

business segment.

b) Secondary geographic segmentinformation

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Capital expenditurel

Geographic Segment Revenue Segment assets incurred
Outside India March 31, 2020 32,797.20 2,607.51 81.36
March 31,2019 38.,440.43 5,082.31 -
India March 31, 2020 80,590.47 121,763.70 2,203.94
March 31,2019 79,008.51 120,386.33 2,645.33
Unallocated March 31, 2020 - 439.17 -
March 31,2019 - 535.97 -
Total March 31, 2020 113,387.67 124,710.38 2,285.30
March 31, 2019 117,448.94 126,004.61 2,645.33

Note: Segment Assets represent Assets in respective segments. Tax related assets cannot be allocated to a segment

on reasonable basis have been disclosed as “Unallocable”.
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27 Related party transactions
a) Details of Related parties :

Description of relationship

Name of related parties

Enterprises in which the
Key management Personnel or
relatives have significant influence

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Relatives of KMP

Anamallais Automobiles Private Limited

Shiva Automobiles Private Limited
Vedanayagam QOil Company

Sakthi Murugan Transports Private Limited

Murugan Enterprise Private Limited
Jahnvi Motor Private Limited
Anamallais Motors Private Limited

Sri S V Arumugam, Managing Director
Sri N Krishnaraj, Company Secretary
Sri S Seshadri, Chief Financial Officer

Smt A Umadevi
Sri A Senthil - Chief Executive Officer

b) Details of transactions during the year and balance outstanding as at the balance sheet date :

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

Related Party

For the
year ended
March 31, 2020

For the
year ended
March 31, 2019

Transactions during the year:
Purchase of yarn

Sale of yarn

Sale of fabric

Conversion/Job work charges received
Lease rent received

Lease rent paid for building and machinery

Vehicle maintenance paid

Processing charges paid
Purchase of fuel
Rent paid

Inter corporate deposits recd

Inter corporate deposits repaid

Interest paid

Remuneration of KMP

Salary to Relative of KMP

Shiva Texyarn Limited
Shiva Texyarn Limited
Shiva Mills Limited

Shiva Texyarn Limited
Shiva Texyarn Limited
Shiva Texyarn Limited
Shiva Texyarn Limited

Shiva Automobiles Private Limited
Jahnvi Motor Private Limited

Shiva Texyarn Limited
Vedanayagam Oil Company

Anamallais Automobiles Private Limited
Sakthi Murugan Transports Private Limited
Smt A Umadevi

Murugan Enterprise Private Limited
Anamallais Motors Private Limited

Anamallais Motors Private Limited

Murugan Enterprise Private Limited
Anamallais Motors Private Limited

Sri SV Arumugam, Managing Director
Sri N Krishnaraj, Company Secretary
Sri S Seshadri, Chief Financial Officer

Sri A Senthil - Chief Executive Officer

5.75
4.59

3.68

17.85
3.51
12.00

2,200.00
200.00

200.00

23.88
1.79

60.00
20.21
20.90

30.00

125.79
0.85
151.36
343.62
16.87
70.00
35.00

7.00
1.73

3.99
3.18

6.90
1.06
4.00

77.58
19.59
16.75

30.00
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

Related Party

Receivables

(Payables)

Balances outstanding as at year end :

Shiva Mills Limited
Shiva Texyarn Limited
Anamallais Automobiles Private Limited

Shiva Mills Limited

Shiva Texyarn Limited

Vedanayagam Oil Company

Sakthi Murugan Transports Private Limited
Shiva Automobiles Private Limited
Anamallais Automobiles Private Limited
Murugan Enterprise Private Limited

Smt A Umadevi

Amount outstanding as at the year end

March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
- 44.10
- 553.44
4.32 -
- (19.18)
- (244.21)
0.23) -
0.64) (0.09)
(0.60) 0.09)
1.72) 0.60)
(2,221.49) -
(0.90) (0.90)
(2,221.26) 332.47

Note: 1)

beenrecognisedinrespect ofimpaired receivables due from related parties.

There is no allowance account forimpaired receivables in relation to any outstanding balances, and no expense has

i) Related party relationship is as identified by the Company on the basis of information available with the Company
andrelied upon by the Auditors.

iii)

No amountis/has been written off or written back during the yearinrespect of debts due from orto related party.

28 Earnings per equity share
For the For the
Particulars year ended year ended
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Profit attributable to equity shareholders (Rs.) 590.49 2,366.46
Weighted average number of equity shares (Nos.) 15,754,269 15,754,269
Par value per equity share (Rs.) 10.00 10.00
Earning per share - Basic & Diluted (Rs.) 3.75 15.02
29A Income tax recognised

For the year ended March 31, 2020 For the year ended March 31, 2019
Particulars Statement of Other Statement of Other
profit and comprehensive profit and comprehensive
loss income loss income

Current Tax :
In respect of current year - - 428.49 -
Deferred Tax :
In respect of current year 413.03 25.98 (275.02) 291
Income tax expense 413.03 25.98 153.47 .91
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29B

Movement in deferred tax balances

(Rs. in Lakhs)

- Recognised .
. Opening Re'cognlfed in other Rec_ognlsed Closing
Particulars in profit . directly
balance comprehensive| . . balance
and loss . in equity
income
For the year ended March 31, 2020
a) Holding Company
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax asset
Provision for doubtful debts 205.04 49.10 - - 254.14
Provision for compensated absences and grafuity 89.07 (30.68) (25.98) - 32.41
Brought forward losses - 96.56 - - 96.56
Minimum alternate tax (net) 5,301.45 37.42 - - 5,338.87
Ofthers 41.92 39.85 - - 81.77
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax asset 5,637.48 192.25 (25.98) - 5,803.75
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax (liability)
On difference between book balance and tax
balance of fixed assets (8.307.82) (195.84) - - | (8.,503.66)
Deferred tax on gain on acquistion of control (223.47) = - - (223.47)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax (liability) | (8,531.29) (195.84) - - | (8,727.13)
Net Deferred tax asset/(liability) (2,893.81) 3.59) (25.98) (2,923.38)
b) Subsidiary Company (Young Brand Apparel
Private Limited)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax asset
Unabsorbed depreciation 886.17 (518.53) - - 367.64
Brought forward business loss 14.28 (14.28) - - 0.00
On account of difference in tfreatment of expenditure 103.08 25.57 - - 128.65
MAT credit entitlement 119.56 (119.49) - - 0.07
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax asset 1,123.09 (626.73) - - 496.36
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax (liability)
On difference between book balance and tax
balance of property, plant and equipment (1064.79) 217.29 - - (847.50)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax (liability) (1064.79) 217.29 - - (847.50)
Net deferred tax asset/(liability) 58.30 (409.44) - - (351.14)
For the year ended March 31, 2019
a) Holding Comoany
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax asset
Provision for doubtful debts 177.29 27.75 - - 205.04
Provision for compensated absences, gratuity and others 14.32 72.94 1.81 - 89.07
Minimum alternate tax (net) 5,066.50 234.95 - - 5,301.45
Ofthers 117.08 (76.26) 1.10 - 41.92
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax asset 5,375.19 259.38 291 - 5,637.48
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29C

Movement in deferred tax balance (Contd.,)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

. Recognised .
R
. Opening Re_c ogn|§ed in other ec.ognlsed Closing
Particulars in profit . directly
balance and Loss comprehensive in equity balance
income
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax (liability)
On difference between book base and tax base of
property, plant and equipment (8.384.37) 76.55 - - | (8.,307.82)
Deferred tax on gain on acquistion of control (223.47) - - - (223.47)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax (liability) | (8,607.84) 76.55 - - | (8,531.29)
Net Deferred tax asset/(liability) (3,232.65) 335.93 291 - | (2,893.81)
b) Subsidiary Company (Young Brand Apparel
Private Limited)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax asset
Unabsorbed depreciation 984.28 (98.11) - - 886.17
Brought forward business loss 55.94 (41.66) - - 14.28
On account of difference in freatment of expenditure 109.44 (6.36) - - 103.08
MAT credit entitlement - 119.56 - - 119.56
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax asset 1,149.66 (26.57) - - 1,123.09
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax (liability)
On difference between book balance and tax
balance of fixed assets (1,030.45) (34.34) - - | (1,064.79)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax (liability) (1,030.45) (34.34) - - | (1,064.79)
Net deferred tax asset/(liability) 119.21 (60.91) - - 58.30
Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company’s domestic tax rate:
For the For the
Particulars year ended year ended
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Profit before tax 1,003.52 2,519.93
Enacted income tax rate in India 31.20% 31.20%
Computed expected tax expense 313.04 786.22
Tax incentives and concessions - (167.85)
Mat credit entitlement - (428.54)
On account of enacted tax rates - (99.62)
Write off/(back) of minimum alternate tax 81.72 74.05
Tax expense of subsidiary companies - (10.79)
Others 18.27 -
Income tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss 413.03 153.47
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31

During the year the Company capitalised an amount of Rs. Nil lakhs of borrowing cost under property, plant and
equipment (Forthe yearendedMarch 31,2019 Rs. 106.11 Lakhs).

Leases

On 30 March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs had notified Ind AS 116, Leases, replacing the existing leases
standard, Ind AS 17, Leases, and related interpretations. The new lease standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract i.e., the lessee and the
lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for
all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Currently, operating lease
expenses are charged o the statement of profit and loss. The Standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements
forlessees. Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirementsinInd AS 17.

The standard permits fwo possible methods of tfransition:

Full retrospective : Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors.

Modified retrospective : Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard recognized at the
date of initial application.

The Group has entfered into leasing arrangements in respect of residential/office premises/machineries. The leasing
arrangements, which are generally cancellable, have lease periods ranging between 11 and 60 months. They are
generally renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms. The operating leases are cancellable by
lessor/lessee with notice period up to three months.

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected by the Company on the initial application:

Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which tfransactions are leases. Accordingly, INnd AS 116
is applied only fo contracts that were previously identified as leases under Ind AS 17.

In respect of those leases classified as finance leases applying Ind AS 17, at the date of initial application, the Company
has elected to recognise the right-of-use asset and the lease liability at the carrying amount of the lease asset and lease
liability immediately before that date measured applying Ind AS 17.

Applied asingle discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with a similar end
date.

Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term
on the date of initial application.

Excludedthe initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.

The Group’s weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities recognised in the balance sheet
atthe date of initial applicationi.e T April 2019 is 12% per annum.

The assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the acquisition are as follows : (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Amount
Operating lease commitments as at 31-Mar-2019 787.33
Less: Recognition of exemption for short term leases -
Net operating lease commitments as per Ind AS 17 as at 31-Mar-2019 787.33
Discounted using the incremental borrowing as at 01-Apr-2019 343.50
OLL recognised in the balance sheet upon fransition to Ind AS 116 as af 01-Apr-2019 343.50
Difference -
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Movement in right-of-use assets and lease liabilities during the year:

Right-of-use assets

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Machinery Building
As at the date of fransition, i.e., 01 April 2019 16.66 315.79
Additions - 30.83
Depreciation (16.66) (106.72)
Deletions - -
Closing balance - 239.90
Lease liabilities
Particulars Machinery Building
As at the date of transition, i.e., 01 April 2019 21.96 321.54
Additions - 30.83
Interest 0.54 32.09
Lease payments (22.50) (128.05)
Closing balance - 256.41
Current - 80.28
Non-current - 176.13
Maturity analysis of OLL
Particulars Machinery Building
1 year - 123.74
1to 5 years - 174.01
More than 5 years - -
Lease rent expense on short-term and low value lease debited to Statement of Profit and Loss
Particulars Machinery Building
Lease rent - 68.39
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Financial instruments

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019

is asfollows: .
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Carrying value Fair value
Parficulars As at As at As at As at
March March March March
31,2020 31,2019 31,2020 31,2019
Financial assets
Amortised cost
Loans 37.97 47.94 37.97 47.94
Trade receivable 16,657.65| 18,958.93 16,657.65 18,958.93
Cash and cash equivalents 3.424.40 1,060.15 3.424.40 1,060.15
Bank balances 167.11 264.75 167.11 264.75
Ofther financial assets 1,820.38 1,612.81 1,820.38 1,612.81
Investment in Government securifies 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.03
FVTOCI
Investment in equity instruments 3.86 3.86 3.86 3.86
FVTPL
Investment in equity instruments (unquoted) 21.49 83.98 21.49 83.98
Total assets 22,132.89| 21,932.45 22,132.89 21,932.45
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost
Borrowings 67,696.15| 72,516.45 67,696.15 72,516.45
Lease liabilities 256.41 - 256.41 -
Trade payables 14,732.48| 11,230.80 14,732.48 11,230.80
Other financial liabilities 451.36 288.84 451.36 288.84
Total liabilities 83,136.40| 84,036.09 83,136.39 84,036.09

The management assessed that fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade receivables, frade payables and other
current financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-termn maturities of these

instruments.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged
in a current fransaction between willing parties, other than in aforced orliquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

D} Long-term fixed-rate receivables/borrowings are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as
interest rates, specific country risk factors, individual creditworthiness of the customer and the risk characteristics of
the financed project. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken into account for the expected losses of these

receivables.

i) Fair values of the Company’s interest-bearing borrowings and loans are determined by using DCF method using
discount rate that reflects the issuer’s borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own non-
performance risk as at March 31, 2020 was assessed to be insignificant.

i) The fair values of the unquoted equity shares have been estimated using a discounted cash flow model. The
valuation requires management to make certain assumptions about the model inputs, including forecast cash
flows, discount rate, credit risk and volatility, the probabilities of the various estimates within the range can be
reasonably assessed and are used in management’s estimate of fair value for these unquoted equity investments.
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33 Fair value hierarchy
Level 1- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets foridentical assets or liabilities.

Level2- Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) orindirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level3- Inputsforthe assets orliabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The following table presents the fair value measurement hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
onrecurring basis as at March 31,2020 and March 31,2019

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Fair value measurement using
Particulars Total
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets measured at fair value :
FVTOCI financial assets designated at fair value: Date of

valuation March 31, 2020

Investment in equity As at March 31, 2020 3.86 3.86 - -

instruments (quoted) As at March 31, 2019 3.86 3.86 - -

Derivative financial As at March 31, 2020 243.51 243.51 - -

instruments As at March 31, 2019 241.02 241.02 - -
FVTPL financial assets designated at fair value: Date of

valuation March 31, 2020

Investment in equity As at March 31, 2020 21.49 - - 21.49

instruments (unquoted) As at March 31,2019 83.98 - - 83.98

There have been no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year.

34 Financial risk management

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise loans and borrowings, frade and other payables. The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the company’s operations and to provide guarantees to support its
operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, tfrade and other receivables, and cash and short-
term deposits that derive directly fromits operations.

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and interest
rate risk. The Company’s primary focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize
potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The primary market risk to the company is foreign exchange risk.
The Company uses foreign currency borrowings fo mitigate foreign exchange related risk exposures.
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The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

D

2)

Creditrisk

Creditriskis the risk of financial loss fo the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet
its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers and investment
securities. Credit risk arises from cash held with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposure to clients,
including outstanding accounts receivable. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal o the carrying value of the
financial assets. The objective of managing counterparty credit risk is fo prevent losses in financial assets. The
Company assesses the credit quality of the counterparties, taking info account their financial position, past
experience and ot.her factors.

Trade and otherreceivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The
demographics of the customer, including the default risk of the industry and country in which the customer operates,
also has aninfluence on credit risk assessment.

(Rs. in Lakhs)
The following table gives details in respect of percentage of revenues generated from top customer and top 5 customers:

Particulars

For the
year ended
March 31, 2020

For the
year ended
March 31, 2019

Revenue from top customer

7.830.82
22,954.83

9,632.85
20,544.73

3)

4)

Revenue from top 5 customers

Two customers accounted for more than 10% of the revenue for the year ended March 31,2020, however three of the
customers accounted for more than 10% of the receivables as at March 31, 2020. Two customers accounted for more
than 10% of the revenue for the year March 31,2019, however two of the customers accounted for more than 10% of
the receivables for the yearended March 31,2019.

Investments

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by generally investing in liquid securities and only with counterparties
that have a good credit rating. The company does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counter-
parties, and does not have any significant concentration of exposures to specific industry sectors.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The
Company managesits liquidity risk through credit limits with banks.

The Company’s corporate treasury department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as seftlement
management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by seniormanagement.

The working capital position of the Company is given below :

Particul As at As at
arficulars March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Cash and cash equivalents 3.,424.40 1,060.15
Bank balances 167.11 264.75
Total 3,591.51 1,324.90
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The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at

March 31,2020 andMarch 31,2019.

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Parficulars As at Less than 1-2 years 2 years

1 year and above

Borrowings March 31, 2020 48,079.21 5,5601.54 14,1156.40

March 31, 2019 49,955.18 5,986.75 16,574.52

Trade payables March 31, 2020 14,732.48 - -

March 31, 2019 11,230.80 - -

Lease liabilities March 31, 2020 256.41 - -

March 31, 2019 - - -

Other financial liabilities March 31, 2020 451.36 - -
March 31, 2019 288.84 -

5) Foreign currency risk

The Company’s exchange risk arises from its foreign operations, foreign currency revenues and expenses, (primarily in
U.S. dollar, British pound sterling and Euro) and foreign currency borrowings (primarily in U.S. dollar, British pound
sterling and Euro). A significant portion of the Company’s revenues are in these foreign currencies, while a significant
portion of its costs are in Indian rupees. As aresult, if the value of the Indian rupee appreciates relative to these foreign
currencies, the Company’s revenues measured in rupees may decrease. The exchange rate between the Indian
rupee and these foreign currencies has changed substantially in recent periods and may contfinue to fluctuate
substantially in the future. The Company’s management meets on a periodic basis to formulate the strategy for
foreign currency risk management.

Consequently, the management of the Company believes that the borrowings in foreign currency and its assets in
foreign currency shall mitigate the foreign currency risk mutually to some extent.

The following table presents foreign currency risk from non-derivative financial instruments as of March 31, 2020 and

March31,2019:

. Pound /
Particulars As at us$ Euro sterling Total
Assets
Trade receivables March 31, 2020 2,355.32 107.21 44,98 2,507.51
March 31, 2019 4,094.15 895.08 44,98 5,034.21
Cash and cash equivalents March 31, 2020 0.80 0.02 0.03 0.85
March 31, 2019 0.77 0.02 0.21 1.00
Liabilities
Trade payable March 31, 2020 820.27 - - 820.27
March 31, 2019 221.62 - - 221.62
Borrowings March 31, 2020 6,597.76 - - 6,597.76
March 31, 2019 9,477.12 - - 9,477.12
Net assets/(liabilities) March 31, 2020 (5,061.91) 107.23 45.01 (4,909.67)
March 31, 2019 (5,603.82) 895.10 45.19 (4,663.53)
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Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Company is mainly exposed to the currency USD on account of significant outstanding trade receivables,
borrwoings and trade payablesin USD.

The following table details the Company’s sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in INR against the USD. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period
end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A positive number below indicates anincrease in profit or equity where
the INR strengthens 5% against the relevant currency. For a 5% weakening of the INR against the relevant currency,
there would be a comparable impact on the profit or equity, and the balances below would be negative.

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Impact on profit for the year

253.10

280.19

For a 5% weakening of the INR against the relevant currency, there would be equivalent amount of impact on the

profit as mentionedin the above table.

6) Interestrate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Company’s debt obligations with floating interest rates and investments.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

If interest rates had been 1% higher and all other variables were held constant, the company’s profit for the year

ended would have impactedin the following manner:

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Increase / (decrease) in the Profit for the year

(615.00)

(696.63)

Ifinterest rates were 1% lower, the company’s profit would have increased by the equivalent amount as shown in the

above table.

7) Capitalmanagement

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence
and to sustain future development of the business. The Company monitors the return on capital. The Company’s
objective when managing capitalis to maintain an optimal structure so as fo maximize shareholder value.

The capital structure is as follows :

Particulars

Total equity attributable to the equity shareholders
of the company

As percentage of total capital
Current borrowings

Non-current borrowings

Total borrowings

As a percentage of total capital
Total capital (borrowings and equity)

As at As at

March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
34,718.94 34,355.78
34% 32%
42,010.52 44,377.78
25,685.63 28,138.67
67,696.15 72,516.45
66% 68%
1,02,415.09 1,06,872.23
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36 Prior year comparatives
Prior year figures have been reclassified wherever necessary to confirm current year’s classification
The following reclassifications have been done in the previous year figures to confirm current year classification :

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

For the year — Current assets
Current tax assets 166.99 305.00

In the respective previous year — Non current assets
Advance tax and tax deducted at source (Net) 166.99 305.00

For the year — Current assets
Bank balances 167.11 264.75

In the respective previous year — Current assets

Cash and Cash equivalents 167.11 264.75
In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP S V ARUMUGAM K SADHASIVAM
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director Director
DIN 00002458 DIN 00610037
BALAJIM N N KRISHNARAJ S SESHADRI
Partner Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
ACS No. 20472 .
Bengaluru Coimbatore
15" September, 2020 15" September, 2020
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Financial Performance - Yearwise (Rs. in Lakhs)
. . ! Dividend
ancia | St | R | ] v | e || e
Capital Surplus Depreciation Tax Shares (%)
1994-1995 350.05 0.32 8.60 1.21 0.90 0.32 -
1995-1996
(18 months) 350.05 42.16 3171.12 185.77 143.93 41.84 -
1996-1997 350.05 104.84 4936.08 769.28 668.09 101.19 10
1997-1998 350.05 181.02 5270.53 494.61 379.92 114.69 10
1998-1999 350.05 502.27 6137.82 792.70 342.60 450.10 10
2000-2001
(18 months) 350.05 1464.27 9942.63 1702.90 537.03 1165.87 15
2001-2002 350.05 1736.63 6365.46 736.57 333.64 402.93 10
2002-2003 350.05 2085.64 6361.65 1183.80 340.02 843.78 10
2003-2004 350.05 2685.39 7533.23 1206.95 322.97 883.99 20
2004-2005 875.13 3601.48 7487.43 1789.41 321.42 1467.99 20
2005-2006 1575.43 13569.54 8670.07 2044.41 470.86 1573.55 20
2006-2007 15675.43 14903.05 11033.07 2563.34 848.69 1714.65 20
2007-2008 15675.43 14657.28 | 20933.17 3122.39 1493.26 1629.12 20
2008-2009 1575.43 14454.79 | 29095.40 3139.29 2180.84 958.44 10
2009-2010 1575.43 15683.92 35427.40 4799.92 2565.30 2234.62 15
2070-2011 1575.43 19196.90 58645.01 12108.40 5389.09 6719.31 20
2011-2012 1575.43 17559.28 43660.96 326.46 3722.63 -3396.16 -
2012-2013 16575.43 19922.46 54928.79 7648.08 3575.65 4072.42 20
2013-2014 1575.43 22710.63 71654.61 8105.12 3500.16 4604.96 20
2014-2015 1575.43 23764.29 68539.95 4580.63 2666.24 1914.38 15
2015-2016 1575.43 26535.02 77347.89 5652.94 2880.73 2772.21 16
2016-2017 1675.43 27318.00 86703.47 4402.52 2957.47 1445.05 18
2017-2018 1575.43 27713.08 | 93164.67 3586.83 2823.26 763.57 16
2018-2019 15675.43 29334.00 | 101642.61 4912.48 3005.32 1907.16 16
2019-2020 1575.43 29096.74 | 93506.78 2854.65 2831.16 23.49 -
* Turnover = Net Sales + Closing Stock - Opening Stock
* Excludes interdivision transfers
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BI'lZ

COTTON

Bannari Amman Retails Division is Marketing Innerwear & Active Wear brand for Women, Men and Kids
in the name of “BITZ” and Juslegz. The brand BITZ and Juslegz features a wide range of products
manufactured using advanced precision technology from unique Organic Cotton and Supima Cotton.
The key feature of the products is that, all the fabric are made from 100% ORGANIC COTTON and it’s
Certified by The Global Organic Textile Standard.

ORGANIC
COTTON

NON - ORGANIC

PRICE

h
I_ 100% ORGANIC COTTON %

Manufactured & Marketed by

BANNARI AMMAN SPINNING MILLS LTD
252, Mettupalayam Road, Coimbatore - 641 043. Tamil Nadu, India.

@ www.bitzindia.com :customercare@bitzindia.com s H.O. : 0422 - 2435555 www.instagram.com/bitz_india n www.facebook.com/bitz.India

& Shop Online @ www.bitzindia.com | M\ Myntra | amazon | Flipkart £ | ©SHOPCLUES: | 4 snapdeal
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